. >,
Intervoice

annual report




about intervoice

Intervoice is a world leader in

unified communicaticons, providing
|
i

scalable, switch-independent i

g software and professional services Intervoice introduced the world's first PC-based Interactive

at power standards-based voice Voice Response (IVR) system, enabling companies‘ to offer

telephone self-service to their customers using tht}a phone’s

keypad. At the time, this was an extraordinary brt;eakthrough,
tenters, and next-generation allowing companies to dramatically lower their errating

portals, multi-channel IP contact

costs yet provide their customers with the convenlence of

around-the-clock automated customer service.
1983, Intervoice solutions have been \

mohile-enhanced services. Since

: , The innovation continues. Now, more than 24 years and
used by many of the world’s leading ‘

86 US patents later, Intervoice has evolved into a software
banks, communications companies, and services company and compiled the most impressive

healthcare institutions, utilities and customer list in the industry, including: }

government entities. With more than The world's largest financial services firm |
5,000 customers in 75 countries, . The world’s four largest banks :
. The world'’s two largest telecommunications services
Intervoice helps enterprises and \
companies |
network operators stay competitive . The world’s largest mobile phone company‘
. The world's five largest retailers |
by offering their customers best- . . .
. The world's two largest insurance companies
in-class services. Intervoice Voice . 75 of the 2007 Fortune 100, including nine'of
the Top 10 ‘
Portal, IP contact center software, P . ) .
. 35 of the 2006 Fortune Global 100, including six
enhanced messaging products, of theTop 10

Media Exchange™ platform and |
custom-built and packaged

applications are available on-premise

and, selectively, as managed or
hosted services by Intervaice.

For more information, visit




connected

ROBERT E. RITCHEY
Chief Executive Cfficer & President

To Our Shareholders

During Fiscal Year 2007 Intervoice capitalized on the investments we’ve made over the past twelve months.
Having done so, we've secured our leadership position as the company the industry can count on for developing
high-value unified communication products and solutions.

The acquisition of Edify in late FY06 fueled our growth this year by bringing Intervoice an expanded customer
base, new products, new ideas, and a host of talented professionals. Also, our purchase of the innovative Nuasis
{P-contact center technology in the third quarter of 2007 is paying dividends by providing our customers and
prospects with expanded choices for upgrading and enhancing their customer contact centers.

Further during Fiscal 2007, we completed the transition to a standards-based services delivery platform, Media
Exchange. This platform will support both our Enterprise and Network products and services with a unified
infrastructure. With Media Exchange, companies can integrate their customer communications seamlessly with
both voice and data to deliver multimodal applications. As a result, choosing an Intervoice unified communications
solution is seen as a strategic business decision that generally produces a significant ROI for our customers.

Industry Analysts and the media took increased notice of Intervoice in FY2007. Qur leadership position was
fortified this year by receiving greater recognition from key industry analysts. Notably, Intervoice was recognized
as a leader in The Forrester Wave report “Speech Self-Service Platforms, Q3 2006". Significantly in this analyst
report, only three other companies were named industry leaders, and all of them are multi-billion dollar
corporations with varied business offerings and diverse product lines. Intervoice secured our position as a leader
on the merits of our innovative products and services, not on our company size or marketing budget.

Intervoice showed impressive sales momentum in Fiscal 2007. We grew our top line revenue by 17% to $196M.
This success was achieved in part by the bookings of new Network-based Media Exchange sales. This bookings
success also drove our solutions backlog to a record high of $54.1M at the end of FY07. These are important
financial trends that we hope to capitalize on in FY 2008.

With our Enterprise and Network market opportunities expanding, Intervoice products and services met
customers’ increasing needs. Qur Enterprise customers and prospects began shifting their focus this year, actively
seeking personalized, speech-enabled self-service products and professional services from Intervoice to build
greater customer satisfaction and brand loyalty. Key successes included the launch of our new IP contact center
software, the launch of a new banking application that garnered six sales in a single quarter, and the news that one
of our wireless broadband network customers credited Intervoice solutions with helping them earn their fifth
straight J.D. Power award for customer satisfaction.




In mobile phone network services, unified messaging became a reality with these carriers, particularly in Europe,
Asia and the Middle East. During this fiscal year we signed a major contract with a large Middie Eastern
network operator to expand its voicemail capacity and offer video messaging services to its subscribers as an
added revenue-generating service. We also signed a multi-million dollar contract with a teading UK-based
mobile operator to expand enhanced messaging capabilities to its subscribers.

Intervoice Global Consulting Services executed more than 450 consulting services projects in fifteen languages
during this fiscal year ~ a new record — and scored its largest International and Americas engagements to date.
Increasingly, our clients are turning to GCS professionals to conduct “discovery” sessions to help them determine
their needs and opportunities more precisely.

One of the most exciting marketing opportunities in FYO7 was the growing interest in Intervoice Hosted
Solutions — our North American Hosted revenues increased 16% over FY04. As companies become increasingly
dependent on voice and data communications, more and more of them see the business benefits of outsourcing.
These companies are turning to Intervoice as the proven, reliable and lowest-risk choice. Whether Intervoice
manages and monitors their networks on a company’s own premises or through one of the Intervoice Network
Operations Centers around the world, or provides a software as a service option, our Hosted Solutions
customers are reporting rapid ROls, lower TCOs, and predictable expense streams.

Our strong partner relationships continue to extend our market reach into more diverse markets and
industries. This year marked a major milestone in Intervoice’s global reach. Our relationship with BEA
strengthened as we integrated our Media Exchange platform with the BEA SIP-server for IMS-based
communications services. This integration, coupled with our successful reseller relationship with next-generation
telecom provider Huawei Technologies, led to our increased presence in China where we have dedicated
resources operating out of two offices on the mainland. Through our channe! partners, from Alliances to
Resellers, Intervoice has taken the lead as the partner of choice for speech-enabled and messaging solutions for
enterprise, carrier network, and call-center projects around the world.

Throughout the industry, we're leading by example. During Fiscal 2007 we received our 86th patent for
innovative voice technologies, and 41 more are pending. We won more million-dollar orders than ever before,
and enhanced our relationship with existing customers. As companies and network providers around the world
strive to serve the new “mobile generation,” they look to Intervoice to give them the tools, technologies and
professional services they need to deliver prompt, personalized customer service — just as they have for 24 years.

On behalf of our Board of Directors and employees, | want to thank you for your continued support of Intervoice.

Sincerely,

Bet. A

Robert E. Ritchey
Chief Executive Officer & President
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Item 1. Business

Overview

Intervoice, Inc. (NASDAQ: INTV), a Texas corporation formed in 1983, is a world leader in unified
communications, switch-independent software and professional services that power standards-based voice portals,
multi-channel Internet Protocol (“IP") contact centers, and next-generation enhanced messaging platforms and
applications. We offer our contact center and network service provider customers flexible, scalable, integrated
software platforms, powerful development and reporting tools, customized and packaged software applications,
comprehensive consulting services, and post-sale support. With our recent acquisition of technology from Nuasis
Corporation {“Nuasis”™), an IP contact center provider, Intervoice now offers an end-to-end customer interaction
solution for self-service and live assistance.

Intervoice has always been a voice industry innovator, introducing the world’s first PC-based Interactive Voice
Response (“IVR™) system in 1983 for banks, retail outlets, insurance companies, government agencies and other
institutions. Now, almost 25 years later, Intervoice remains dedicated to unified voice communications, providing
contact center self-service solutions for corporate customers as well as value-added service solutions for network
service providers. We are also an indusiry leader in the deployment of standards-based systems, with more than
48,000 VoiceXML. (Voice eXtensible Mark-up Language) ports sold through February 2007.

Intervoice is commitied to delivering end-to-end solutions that are compliant with industry standards, are
hardware independent, and integrate seamlessly with other systems and software. We support standards including
Voice XML, SCXML (State Chart eXtensible Mark-up Language) and CCXML (Call Control eXtensible Mark-up
Language) for voice-enabled web applications and contact center software architectures. We continuously assess
evolving industry standards and are actively involved in industry associations such as the Eclipse Foundation, the
VoiceXML Forum, and the Internet Engineering Task Force, as well as network-focused organizations such as the
3GPP (IMS), the GSM Association, TMIA, VMA and AVIOS.

Our contact center customer base is among the largest in the industry with more than 20,000 deployments. We
offer our customers the option of deploying solutions as a customer-premise sale or as a hosted service, an option
that we feel is a competitive differentiator. Our Hosted Solutions group manages more than 30,000 ports through our
network operations centers. ’

Our contact center software and professional consulting services allow businesses to build brand loyalty by
enriching their customers’ user experiences while lowering their overall cost of operations. For network service
providers, Intervoice’s product and service suite includes next-generation 1P-based voice messaging, text messaging,
voice portal and payment systems — all providing network service providers with revenue-generating services that meet
their customers’ growing demands for enhanced mobile services and access from any device, any place and any time.

The foundation of Intervoice’s decades-long success is a corporate strategy influenced by six key market trends:

* The increasing demand for sophisticated speech applications that enable users to use their voices to interact
with technology;

* The emerging interest worldwide in multi-channel, multimedia and multimodal means of communication;

* The acceleration of adoption of open-standards that increase compatibility and interoperability among
hardware components and software applications; '

» The burgeoning adoption of VolP (Voice over 1P) is driving convergence of voice and data communications,
including the ability to network customer service agents regardless of their location — in a call center,
branch office, or at home;

* The growing demand from businesses for end-to-end solutions that give them a single-point of accountability; and

» The increasing popularity of software-as-a-service (SaaS), where Intervoice provides hosted solutions,
onsite maintenance and support for the software we provide to customers for installation on their premises.




Intervoice’s strategy is not only guiding our development of standards-based products, but is also sharpening
our focus on enabling more complex and intelligent customer interactions throughout the enterprise. We help
network service providers acceleraie the rate at which they can bring new subscriber offerings to market by
providing tools that support third-party application development. In addition, we are bringing new levels of quality
and personalization to speech self-service through our global consulting services group — one of the most
experienced in the industry. Our focus on ensuring exceptional value and usability helps our contact center and
network service provider customers enhance the experience of their customers while lowering costs and increasing
revenues.

Our activities in both the contact center and network service provider markets are supported by shared
resources in sales, operational support, research and development and administrative areas. Our corporate
headquarters is in Dallas, Texas, with remote facilities in Florida and California. Our global presence extends
to office locations throughout the world, including Europe, the Middle East, Africa, South America and Asia.

We sell our products through a direct sales force and through an established network of distributors, system
integrators and channel partners. For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, we reported revenues of approx-
imately $196.3 million, including $92.4 million of solution sales, $83.2 million of maintenance and related service
revenues and $20.7 million of hosted solutions revenues. Sales to North American customers totaled $127.7 million
or 65% of total sales for the year.

Intervoice also delivers unique value through the integration of industry-standard hardware, software, and
professional services provided by our numerous alliance partners. These strategic relationships are an integral part
of our product strategy and allow us 1o create voice automation and network services solutions tailored to fit each of
our customer’s specific business needs. Key Intervoice technology alliance partners include BEA, Nuance, Intel/
Dialogic, and HP.

Products and Services

Intervoice is a leader in providing converged voice and data solutions and related services. We sell solutions
that allow customers to access account data or order services from a company at a time they find convenient, using a
communication device they find convenient (e.g. phone, computer and PDA) and with the option of engaging a live
agent if required. We also sell solutions that support the use of various advanced phone messaging activities and
prepaid phone services. When we use the term “solutions sales” in this Annual Report, we mean the sale of
hardware and/or software applications and the related consulting services associated with designing, developing,
integrating, installing and testing custom applications to perform these functions. When we use the term “recurring
services,” we mean the sale of maintenance and software upgrade offerings and the provision of customized
solutions to customers on a hosted-solution basis.

Intervoice Solutions Framework

The Intervoice Solutions Framework (“ISF’) is designed to simplify and illustrate the commonality of our
products and services. This framework divides all Intervoice offerings into Platforms and Tools, Applications, and
Services, all of which are centered on a core software element called Home Zone™. Home Zone, which includes
patent-pending technology, is currently incorporated in our software platform allowing callers easy, single-session
management of service selections and personal profiles to obtain a customized communications experience. Home
Zone enables applications on the platform to take full advantage of all platform features and capabilities and
provides carriers a services management capability which enhances the provisioning, administration and billing of
mobile applications. The ISF Platform, called Media Exchange, is an IP-based, unified services platform that
bridges the gap between traditional voice networks and IP networks. It supports the World Wide Web Consortium
(“W3C™) compliant VXML, SCMXL, and CCXML browsers as well as our new development environment called
Development Studio. The ISF fully accommodates a converged network and at the same time provides access to
software components and services that can be implemented and shared among discrete business functions.
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Contact Center Solutions

Intervoice Voice Portal

Intervoice is a recognized market leader in the creation and deployment of voice portal solutions, which
include traditional and standards-based [VR systems and other voice portal solutions for businesses. Our voice
portal solutions allow organizations of all types to automate their communications, reduce costs and improve
interactions with customers, employees and business partners. Qur solutions provide callers with access to
information when, where, and how they want to receive it using speech-enabled and touch-tone interfaces that
have been designed and optimized for usability — in other words, designed with the callers’ needs in mind. As
speech recognition and text-to-speech technologies gain acceptance as natural user interfaces, our solutions allow
for the automation of interactions previously seen as too complex for a traditional touch-tone interface. Businesses
use our solutions to streamline access to account information, allow for secured access to sensitive information
through voice verification, edit name and address information, and support workforce management activities.
Enterprise-wide applications also enable customers to order products, activate accounts, pay bills, enroll for college
courses, apply for jobs, execute securities trades, recharge prepaid accounts and many other increasingly complex
interactions. All of these applications can be designed to give our customers the abiiity to offer their callers easy
access to information and an exceptional user experience.

Interveoice Voice Portal is our advanced software-based solution that can be used to create and manage voice-
based solutions. Intervoice Voice Portal is built on the Intervoice Solutions Framework. It delivers a flexible,
modular and highly scalable design (built upon open industry standards including VoiceXML, SCXML, CCXML
and others) that encourages the seamless integration of Web and enterprise-based systems into intuitive speech-
enabled solutions with a clear business return-on-investment (“ROI™).

Companies in a wide range of industries use our contact center solutions to drive operational efficiencies. Our
software delivers a true end-to-end converged voice and data solution and supports best-of-class deployments
through our alliance partnerships with the leading names in information technology. Our software modules can be
implemented individually to meet specific requirements or applied as a comprehensive solution to achieve
enterprise-class voice automation results. The modules include leading technologies, proven applications, an
award-winning development environment, and intuitive management tools that are backed by comprehensive
professional consultation services and technical support. The modules can be deployed in a customer premise or
hosted solutions environment.

Intervoice IP Contact Center

With the acquisition of the Nuasis technology, Intervoice has added a next-generation software solution for
customer contact routing that is based on an IP platform consistent with the Intervoice Voice Portal architecture,
The Intervoice IP Contact Center completes an end-to-end solution for self-service IVR and speech applications
with live assistance support through contact center agents. It seamlessly integrates traditional automatic call
distribution (“ACD") for routing phone calis as well as other contact types such as e-mail response and web chat
requests. All media types are handled with a single, consistent routing application and user interface for agents. The
system also provides traditional computer telephony integration (“CT1™) functionality at a fraction of the cost of
deployment in the traditional hardware based implementation. Lastly, the distributed IP architecture takes
advantage of the distributed corporate network to allow low-cost networking of agents regardless of their
location — in a call center, branch office, or at home — creating a single virtual call center.

Horizontal Application Modules

Intervoice delivers voice automation applications and solutions through a spectrum of easily re-usable
application modules and components that can be bundled together or used separately. Our solutions combine
horizontal applications, server-side software modules and components with our world-class consulting services to
deliver an exceptional user experience. Examples of Intervoice’s horizontal solutions include:

Personalization — a rules-based engine that enables the voice portal to adapt its interaction with a user
based on prior interactions :




Survey Automation — provides an automated and confidential method of surveying customers, callers
and clients

Auto-Attendant — provides an easy and automated way to self direct calls in place of a live operator

Locator Automation — portal application that provides callers with detailed location information about
nearby ATMs, stores or other destinations

Password Reset (Identifier) — provides callers with a means to reset their password in the event they
forget or lose it without going through an agent

Authenticator — provides voice authentication of a caller for access to sensitive or confidential appli-
cattons or information

Voice or Web Convergence — working with BEA’s WebLogic Portal, Voice and Web Convergence
accelerates a customer’s deployment for fully integrated, multi-channel customer service solutions

Field Force Automation — delivers voice-enabled, packaged solutions for improving the productivity of
mobile workforces while reducing the cost to support them

Vertical Application Modules

Intervoice offers industry-specific vertical solutions, applications and reusable software modules. Our proven,
pre-built components help accelerate development for faster ROI for our customers. Our offerings address needs in
the following industries:

Banking & Financial Services
Healthcare

Public Sector

Retail & Manufacturing
Telecommunications
Transportation & Travel
Utilities

Network Service Provider Solutions

We offer network service providers an array of revenue generating solutions that include next generation
IP-based messaging and media management apptications, traditional Intelligent Network (“IN”)-based voice and
text messaging applications and prepaid payment solutions. To date, our network service provider solutions have
primarily been sold to wireless network service providers in Latin America, Europe, Asia Pacific, the Middle East
and Africa.

Media Exchange for Networks

Media Exchange for Networks is a flexible, IP-based multimedia enhanced services platform designed
specifically for mobile network operators, cable service providers and fixed line operators. It is based on the ISFand
designed specifically for high availability. It includes a customizable mix of multimedia service options including
next generation messaging, voice activated dialing, web user interfaces, voice portal, calendar management and text
to speech capabilities. Media Exchange for Networks offers touch tone, voice and web user interfaces.

Our Media Exchange solution helps network service providers accelerate the rate at which they can bring
enhanced services to market. Our standards-based software platform incorporates tools which suppert third-party
application development and provides easy access to enhanced services by subscribers through the Home Zone.
Each unique combination of enhanced services allows network service providers to offer their subscribers a
differentiated service that can enhance their brand, increase revenue per subscriber and increase subscriber loyalty
and retention.




The Media Exchange for Networks suite of solutions includes the following packaged application options:

Voicemail MX — next-generation voice mail and unified messaging functionality offering a common
message store and common data base

Video Mail — a store and forward video solution for messaging

Voice to MMS (“V2MMS") — a media-independent message deposit and call completion utility that
allows subscribers to record a voice message and have it delivered as a Multi-Media Message (“MMS™)

Voice Activated Dialing — a solution which lets end users create their own address books, store contact
information and initiate calls with voice dialing

Traditional, IN-based Messaging

Qur traditional, IN-based messaging solutions include voicemail, short message service (*“SMS”) and missed-
call notification. These solutions incorporate a range of advanced features, including intelligent call return,
mailbox-to-mailbox messaging, universal mailboxes, missed-call alerts and conditional personal greetings. Our
applications support network service providers in their efforts to build subscriber counts, loyalty and usage.

Portal

Our Media Exchange applications allow subscribers instant access 1o information content and entertainment
services via a voice or touch-tone user interface or through a web browser. Portal applications include access to
horoscope information, sports, weather, traffic and financial data and can be “‘branded” and customized to enhance
subscriber loyalty and revenues.

Payment

We provide a range of products and services that allows network service providers to offer prepaid services.
Providers can offer prepaid telephony services to facilitate subscriber acquisition and usage in selected markets
where subscribers prefer to pay by cash or where collection might be an issue. We support a wide range of prepaid
services, including prepaid calling cards, prepaid residential, prepaid wireless and automated operator services. Our
prepaid solutions integrate seamlessly with other telco-grade, revenue-generating applications, including our
messaging and portal solutions.

Intelligent Network Prepaid can be deployed to provide enhanced flexibility and efficiency in both wireline
and wireless networks. Network service providers use IN Prepaid solutions to manage rapid subscriber growth,
provide cost-effective roaming, and boost subscriber satisfaction.

Consulting Services

Intervoice offers the services of sclution engineers, designers, developers and other consuiting services
specialists who provide our customers the benefit of the experience we have gained in the development of thousands
of custom touch-tone and speech-enabled solutions. We offer customers a single source for needs assessment and
application design, voice user interface (*'VUI”) design, system integration, project management, effective training
and optimization of their custom solution. With more than 150 solution-services experts worldwide and almost
25 years of experience designing, deploying and managing voice and multi-modal applications for contact center
and network service provider customers across functions and industries, this team also possesses one of the highest
concentrations of industry-recognized leaders in human factors and voice user interface design. Together our team
has created 13 of the world’s statistical language modeling (“SLM") deployments, which enabte the deep focus on
caller habits, preferences and needs required to generate customized dialogue and call flow, as well as innovative
integration and presentation of data across all channels 10 help customers maximize personalization. Customers
using Intervoice consulting services can access our industry-unique Center for User Experience (“CUE”) testing
lab, as well as analysis based on caller goal completion rates and our Usability Grade Testing Metric that helps
measure a voice application’s ease of use. Our consulting services are designed to reduce the time and cost of speech
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automation deployments, improve customer communication and satisfaction, and drive higher return-on-invest-
ment performance through increased transaction resolution rates.

Recurring Services
Maintenance and Software Support

Intervoice offers the services and support needed to keep our solutions running at peak efficiency. We
understand customers’ requirements to protect their investment through world-class technical support that is
accessible, effective and responsive to the customers’ business requirements and objectives.

Our RealCare® Services portfolio gives customers a choice of comprehensive plans to ensure the performance
of their Intervoice solution — we offer 24x7x365 responsive and proactive services to help minimize or prevent
service-impacting events. Qur RealCare Advantage maintenance programs offer three levels of services in order 10
provide customers with choices when it comes to support. Qur maintenance offerings include software support
services as a subscription-based service that provides convenient, cost-effective software upgrades. In addition, we
offer value-added services such as application consulting support and remote application monitoring to further
support our customers’ operations. Maintenance is part of Intervoice’s ongoing commitment to provide immediate
access to the people and information our customers need to keep their operations running smoothly.

Hosted Solutions

Intervoice Hosted Solutions offers our customers a portfolio of contact center applications delivered within our
unique approach to hosted services. We offer a suite of hosted solutions designed to give contact centers and
network service providers access to leading-edge applications while reducing the cost and risk of deploying
state-of-the-art voice automation. Hosted applications also enable incremental and rapid integration of emerging
technologies, as well as easier migration to speech-enabled services employing VoiceXML and next-generation
network environments such as 2.5G, 3G, GPRS, IN and SIP-based VoIP.

Intervoice supplies hosted solutions for some of the world’s largest financial institutions, enterprises and
network service providers with highly stringent network uptime and performance demands. Intervoice supports
these customers from secure, inter-networked hosting locations in Orlando, Florida and Dallas, Texas in the U.S. We
also have hosting agreements with Verizon and AT&T which enable us to deploy our solutions and services in most
developed countries in the world.

Markets

Intervoice provides the platform, software and professional services that contact centers and network service
providers need to create and support interactive speech-enabled technologies.

The contact center market confronts three ongoing challenges — to continuously improve customer service,
increase user satisfaction and build brand loyatty — all while controlling the cost of communications. Automated
communications are increasingly the norm for cost-conscious enterprises, and after initial reluctance, consurmners
are beginning to show a preference for well-designed self-service voice solutions that can speed them through the
call process. Organizations in a wide range of industries are responding to customer demand for speed and easy
access by deploying converged speech and data technologies, and Intervoice technologies have continued to evolve
to meet the needs of the contact center marketplace.

Network service providers seek innovative, popular, and high-demand services that can generate immediate
subscriber acceptance and an accelerated return-on-investment while keeping capital and operational expenditures
to a minimum. Network service providers view “hot” consumer services such as text messaging, multimedia
messaging, information portals, voice-activated dialing, video, personal alerts, voicemail, and other enhanced
services as clear opportunities to increase their subscriber base, solidify brand loyalty and stimulate network usage.
Intervoice network solutions are designed to support the needs of both wireline and wireless network service
providers for rapid-return and lower-risk features that extend and enhance the useful life of their existing network
infrastructure.




Competition

The markets we serve are fragmented and highly competitive. The principal competitive factors in our markets
include breadth and depth of software and services, product features, product scalability, consulting services,
maintenance services, the ability to implement solutions, and the ability to create and maintain a reference-able
customer base. Our major competitors in our contact center market are Nortel, Genesys Telecommunications (a
division of Alcatel/Lucent), and Avaya. All three of these companies are larger than Intervoice and focus on a larger
portfolio of products beyond voice automation and contact routing. In addition, with respect to consulting services,
we also compete with one of our alliance partners, Nuance Communications, the supplier of our embedded
advanced speech recognition and text-to-speech licenses. Each of these competitors can offer compelling value
propositions to the marketplace, but they do not provide all the same elements needed for a complete, end-to-end
contact center self-service solution without the aid of third-party pariners. We believe that our long history in the
industry coupled with our unmatched speech-enabled product line, our professional consulting services, and our
extensive customer base allow us to compete favorably in this market. The market is evolving rapidly, however, and
we anticipate intensified competition not only from our traditional competitors but also from emerging vendors with
non-traditional technologies and solutions. There is also continued competition from small venture-funded
companies that attempt to build success by plundering the installed base of larger established companies such
as Intervoice.

Competition in our network service provider market ranges from large telecommunication suppliers offering
turnkey, multi-application solutions to niche companies that specialize in a particular enhanced service such as
prepaid, voicemail or voice-aclivated dialing. Our primary competitors in this market are Comverse Technology,
Alcate)/Lucent and Unisys, each of which provides a suite of enhanced services. Other companies that compete with
us in various niche geographic and/or product markets include Openwave, Tecnomen, IP Unity Glenayre and
LogicaCMG.

We believe that, with our current suite of integrated and interoperable payment, messaging and portal services,
standards- and IP-based platform, our flexible business models, and our consulting services, we compare favorably
with our competition. Nevertheless, we anticipate that competition will continue to grow from existing and new
competitors, some of which may have greater financial, technological and marketing resources and greater market
share than Intervoice.

Sales and Marketing N

We market our products directly, with a global sales force, and through more than 100 domestic and
international distributors. We enter into arrangements with distributors to broaden distribution channels, to increase
our sales penetration in specific markets and industries and to provide certain customer services. We select
distributors based on their access to the markets, industries and customers that are candidates for Intervoice
products. Our direct sales force consists of approximately 80 personnel, including area vice presidents, regional
sales directors and sales representatives worldwide. During fiscal 2007, 60% of our solutions sales were attributable
to direct sales to end-users and 40% came from sales to distributors.

Our major domestic distributors include Fiserv {(multiple business units), Black Box, DDV, Siemens Business
Communications, Symitar Systems, Verizon and Vexis. Our major international distributors include Ericsson
{worldwide), Huawei (worldwide), Information Technologies Australia (Australia), ITApps (China), IVRS (Hong
Kong, China), Loxbit (Thailand), NextCom K.K. (Japan), Black Box (Canada), OLTP (Venezuela and the
Caribbean), Promotora Kranon (Mexico), Siemens AG (Worldwide), Switch (Chile}, Tatung (Taiwan), Telia
Promotor (Sweden), Voice Outsourcing (Latin America and the Caribbean) and Wittel (Brazil).

Intervoice subsidiaries maintain offices in the U.K., Germany, Switzerland, the Netherlands, the United Arab
Emirates, and South Africa to suppon sales throughout Europe, the Middie East and Africa. A company office
located in Singapore supports sates in the Pacific Rim. We support Latin American sales from our Dallas
headquarters and through a regional office in Brazil.




Our international revenues were 35% of total revenues in fiscat 2007, 45% of total revenues in fiscal 2006 and
41% of total revenues in fiscal 2005. See “Risk Factors” under Item 1A for a discussion of risks attendant to our
international operations.

See “Sales” in Item 7 — “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” for additional information on sales by product line and geographic area and concentration of revenue.

Backlog

Our solutions backlog at February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005, which does not include the contracted value of
future maintenance and hosted solutions to be recognized, was approximately $54 million, $34 million, and
$35 million, respectively. Our service and support contracts range in original duration from one month to five years,
with most hosted solutions contracts having initial terms of two o three years and most maintenance and related
contracts having initial terms of one year. Because many of the longer duration contracts give customers early
cancellation privileges, we do not consider our book of services contracts to be reportable backlog, as a portion of
the potential revenue reftected in the contract values may never be realized. At February 28, 2007, a portion of our
backlog related to long-term projects and cash basis customers. We generally expect all projects in our existing
backlog to be initiated within fiscal 2008 and most of such backlog to be recognized as revenue during fiscal 2008.
Approximately 10% to 20% of such backlog could revenue subsequent to fiscal 2008. Some of our sales are
completed in the same fiscal quarter as ordered. Thus, our backlog at any particular date may not be indicative of
actual sales for any future period.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses were approximately $24 million, $18 million and $16 million during
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and included the design of new products and the enhancement of existing
products.

Our research and development spending is focused in six key areas. First, we are developing software tools to
aid in the development and deployment of customer applications incorporating speech recognition, text-to-speech,
and other rich media technologies for enterprises and wireless and wireline providers. Next, we are developing
server-based application software platforms for operations and management of contact center, speech and call
completion applications. These software platforms are branded under the name Media Exchange. We will use these
software platforms for deployment and management of enterprise, wireless and wireline network operator
applications, which are designed to operate in both J2EE and Microsoft’s ® NET enterprise computing environ-
ments. Third, we are developing media servers, “voice browsers,” and call processing infrastructure based on open
standards such as VoiceXML, CCXML and SALT. These media servers are VoIP enabled, allowing operation tn
soft-switch and hybrid PSTN and VolP networks, Fourth, we are developing packaged, speech enabled applications
for the network operator and enterprise markets. These irclude a range of vertical and horizontal applications that
are designed to greatly enhance customer return-on-investment by providing many commonly used configurable
functions that can be deployed more quickly than custom applications. Fifth, we are developing software and tools
designed to provide integration of live agent positions in a customer contact center setting. This software covers a
broad range of functions including agent call-screen transfer, workflow management, full call recording, agent and
supervisor management systems and reporting and various integration functions. Finally, we are developing
modular productivity and communications applications for wireless and wireline applications including speech
driven voice mail, voice activated dialing, and enhanced personal information management. The network products
are also branded under the product name Media Exchange. '

We expect to maintain a strong commitment to research and development so that we can remain at the forefront
of technology development in our markets.
Proprietary Rights

We believe our existing patent, copyright, license and other proprietary rights in our products and technologies
are material 10 the conduct of our business. To protect these proprietary rights, we rely on a combination of patent,
trademark, trade secret, copyright and other proprietary rights laws, nondisclosure safegnards and license
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agreements. As of February 28, 2007, we owned 86 patents and had 41 pending applications for patents in the
United States. In addition, we have registered “Intervoice” as a trademark in the United States, which is part of our
portfolio of 34 registered trademarks and service marks. Some of our patents and marks are also registered in certain
foreign countries. Our software and other products are generally licensed to a customer under the terms of a
nontransferable license agreement that restricts the use of the software and other products to the customer’s internal
purposes. Although our license agreements prohibit a customer from disclosing proprietary information contained
in our products to any other person, it is technologically possible for our competitors to copy aspects of our products
in violation of our rights. Furthermore, even in cases where we hold patents, the detection and policing of the
‘unauthorized use of the patented technology is difficult. Moreover, judicial enforcement of copyrights may be
uncertain, particularly in foreign countries. The unauthorized use of our proprietary information by our competitors
could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results and financial condition.

We generally provide our customers a qualified indemnity against the infringement of third party intellectual
property rights, From time to time, various owners of patents and copyrighted works send us or our customers letters
alleging that our products do or might infringe upon the owner’s intellectual property rights, and/or suggesting that
we or our customers should negotiate a license or cross-license agreement with the owner. Our policy is to never
knowingly infringe upon any third party’s intellectual property rights. Accordingly, we forward any such allegation
or licensing request to our outside legal counsel for their review, analysis and, where appropriate, opinion. We
generally attempt to resolve any such matter by informing the owner of our position concerning non-infringement or
invalidity, and/or, if appropriate, negotiating a license or cross-license agreement. Even though we attempt to
resolve these matters without litigation, it is always possible that the owner of a patent or copyrighted work will sue
us. Other than the current litigation with a patent holder discussed in Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings,” no such
litigation is currently pending against us. As noted above, we currently have a portfolio of 86 United States patents,
and we have applied for and will continué to apply for and receive a number of additional patents to protect our
technological innovations. We believe our patent portfolic could allow us to assert counterclaims for infringement
against certain owners of intellectual property rights if those owners were to sue us for infringement. In certain
situations, it might be beneficial for us to cross-license certain of our patents for other patents which are relevant to
the call automation industry. See Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings” for a discussion of certain patent matters. See
“Risk Factors” in Item 1A for a discussion of risks associated with claims of intellectual property infringement.

Manufacturing and Facilities

Our manufacturing operations consist primarily of the final assembly, integration and extensive testing of
subassemblies, host computer platforms, operating software and our run time software. We currently use third
parties to perform printed circuit board assembly, sheet metal fabrication and customer-site service and repair.
Although we generally use standard parts and components for our products, some of our components, including
semi-conductors and, in particular, digital signal processors manufactured by Texas Instruments, are available only
from a small number of vendors. Likewise, we license speech recognition technology from a small number of
vendors. As we continue to migrate to open, standards-based systems, we will become increasingly dependent on
our component suppliers and software vendors. To date, we have been able to obtain adequate supplies of needed
components and licenses in a timely manner, and we expect to continue to be able to do so. Nevertheless, if our
significant vendors are unable to supply components or licenses at current levels, we may not be able to obtain these
items from another source or at historical prices. In such situations, we would be unable to provide products and
services 10 our customers or generate historical operating margins, and our business and operating results would
suffer.

Employees
As of April 13, 2007, we had 768 employees.

Availability of Company Filings with the SEC

Our Internet website is www.intervoice.com. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
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the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are posted on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report on Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements™ within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All
statements other than statements of historical facts included in this Form 10-K, including, without limitation,
statemnents contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera-
tions” and “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” located elsewhere in this report regarding our financial
position, our business strategy, plans and objectives of management for future operations, future sales and industry
conditions, are forward-looking statements, Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-
looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. In
addition to important factors described elsewhere in this report, we caution current and potential investors that the
following important risk factors, among others, sometimes have affected, and in the future could affect, our actual
results and could cause such results during fiscal 2608, and beyond, to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of Intervoice.

* Quroperating results may fluctuate significantly from period to period, and this may cause our stock price to
decline, Our revenue and operating results have fluctuated in the past and we expect further fluctuations in
the future. Given these fluctuations, we believe that quarter to quarter comparisons of our revenue and
operating results are not necessarily meaningful or an accurate indicator of cur future performance. As a
result, our results of operations may not meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors in the future,
which could cause our stock price to decline. Factors that contribute to fluctuations in our operating results
and can preclude our ability to accurately forecast our results include the following:

* variability in the time periods necessary to complete projects and achieve project milestones in order to
recognize revenue, which may be influenced by volume, size, timing, contractual terms of new licenses
and renewals of existing licenses and cash basis revenues;

* the components of our revenue that are deferred, including our subscription-based hosted solutions and
that portion of cur software licenses attributable to support and maintenance;

* volume, timing and fulfillment of customer orders, particularly with respect to large orders (sales of
approximately $2.0 million or more), some of which are completed in the same quarter in which they are
ordered and some of which are completed over several quarters, and fluctuations in demand for our
products and services;

+ our ability to complete orders from our solutions backlog, subject to timing changes requested by our
customers, and projects accounted for on a percentage of completion basis, inciuding estimates based on a
variety of factors and subject to revision;

» the use of low pricing to win important customers, and the possible recognition of loss contingencies for
certain projects that we estimate will be delivered at a negative gross margin;

* the lengthy sales cycle for our products, which typically involve comprehensive solutions that may require
detailed customer evaluations;

* the performance of our international business, which accounts for a significant portion of our consolidated
revenues, and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

» the mix of products we sell and services we offer and whether our products are sold through our direct
sales force or through an intermediary;

* introduction of new products, product upgrades or updates by us or our competitors, and any resulting
customer delays in purchasing products;

* any increased price sensitivity by our customers, particularly due to increased competition including open
source or free software;
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« periodic difficult economic conditions, particularly affecting the technology industry, as well as economic
uncertainties;

* higher than anticipated costs related to fixed-price contracts with our customers;
* our ability to effectively manage our operating expense levels;

» timing of significant marketing and sales promotions, and expenses incurred pursuing new product or
market opportunities;

« stock-based compensation expense, which we began recognizing for our stock-based compensation plans
in the first quarter of fiscal 2007,

» costs and charges related to certain events, including Sarbanes-Oxley compliance efforts, matters relating
to our Audit Committee investigation and litigation;

+ the structure, timing and integration of acquisitions of businesses, products and technologies and related
disruption of our current business;

« factors that lead to substantial declines in estimated values of long-lived assets below their carrying
value; and

« changes in generally accepted accounting principles.

Due to these and other factors, our revenue and operating results are difficult to forecast and are prone to
fluctuate, which may cause a decline in our stock price. Qur expense levels are based in significant part on our
expectations of future revenue, and we may not be able to reduce our expenses quickly to respond to a shortfall
in projected revenue. Therefore, our failure to meet revenue expectations could seriously harm our business,
operating results and financial condition. See the discussion entitled “Sales™ in Item 7 of Part II for a discussion
of our systern for estimating sales and tracking sales trends in our business.

s We are subject to potential and pending lawsuits and other claims.  We are subject to certain potential and
pending lawsuits and other claims discussed in Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings” of Part 1 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Furthermore, we may become subject to claims, including claims by the government,
or other adverse consequences arising from the findings of the Audit Committee investigation and related
SEC investigation discussed in Item 3. We and certain of our current and former officers and non-officer
employees are currently responding to or have responded to SEC subpoenas to produce documents and
provide testimony about the transactions that were the subject of the investigation. Any adverse judgment,
penalty or settlement related to any lawsuit or other such claim could have consequences that would be
material to our financial position or results of operations. We may be required to indemnify certain of our
current and former directors and officers under existing arrangements in connection with the defense, or
advancement of defense-related expenses, we are currently providing to certain individuals in connection
with the class action lawsuit and the SEC investigation. Our insurance policies provide coverage for losses
and expenses incurred by us and our current and former directors and officers in connection with claims
made under the federal securities laws. These policies, however, exclude losses and expenses related to the
Barrie class action lawsuit discussed in Item 3 or to other litigation based on claims that are substantially the
same as the claims in the Barrie class action and contain other customary provisions to limit or exclude
coverage for certain losses and expenses.

» We face intense competition based on product capabilities and we experience ever increasing demands from
our actual and prospective customers for our products 1o be compatible with a variety of rapidly prolif-
erating computing, telephony and computer networking technologies and standards. Our success is
dependent, to a large degree, on our effectiveness in allocating resources to developing and improving
products compatible with those technologies, standards and functionalities that ultimately become widely
accepted by our current and prospective customers. OQur success is also dependent, to a large degree, on our
ability to implement arrangements with vendors of complementary product offerings so that we can provide
our current and prospective customers greater functionality. Our principal competitors include Avaya,
Nortel, Nuance Communications, Comverse Technology, Unisys and Alcatel/Lucent. Many of our
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competitors have greater financial, technological and marketing resources than we have, as well as greater
name recognition. Although we have committed substantial resources to enhance our existing products and
to develop and market new products, there is no assurance we will be successful. In addition, it is possible
that new entrants to the market and strategic acquisitions and partnerships between existing companies could
increase the competition in the markets in which we participate. An increase in such competition could
materially adversely atfect our ability to sell our products, thereby adversely affecting our business,
operating results and financial condition.

We may not be successful in selling and implementing our products and services in the face of the new,
standards-based market. Intervoice has historically provided complete, bundled hardware and software
solutions using internally developed components to address our customers’ total business needs. The
markets for our products have required a shift to the development of products and services based on an open,
standards-based architecture such as the J2EE and Microsoft’s®. NET environments utilizing VoiceXML
and/or SALT standards. Such an open, standards-based approach allows customers to independently
purchase and combine hardware components, standardized software modules, and customization, instal-
lation and integration services {rom individual vendors deemed to offer the best value in the particular class
of product or service. In such an environment, we believe we may sell less hardware and fewer bundled
systems and may become increasingly dependent on our development and sale of software application
packages, customized software and consulting and integration services. This shift places new challenges on
us to hire and retain the mix of personnel necessary to respond to this business environment, to adapt to the
changing expense structure that the new environment may tend to foster, to respond to potentially different
competitors, and to increase sales of services, customized software and application packages to offset
reduced sales of hardware and bundied solutions. Failure to develop, enhance, acquire and introduce new
products and services to respond to continually changing market conditions or customer requirements, or
lack of customer acceptance of our products or services will materially adversely affect the value of our
intellectual property, barriers to entry to our business, customer retention, gross margins, and the results of
operations and financial condition. )

We may not be able to retain our customer base, and, in particular, our more significant customers. Our
success is heavily dependent on our ability to retain our significant customers. The loss of one of our
significant customers could negatively impact our operating results. Our installed base of customers
generally is not contractually obligated to place further solutions orders with us or to extend their services
contracts with us at the expiration of their current contracts,

We will be harmed if we lose key business and technical personnel.  We rely upon the services of a relatively
small number of key technical, project management and senior management personnel, most of whom do
not have employment contracts. If we were to lose any of our key personnel, replacing them could be
difficult and costly. If we were unable to successfully and promptly replace such personnel, our business
could be materially harmed.

Our reliance on significant vendor relationships could result in significant expense or an inability to serve
our customers if we lose these relationships.  Although we generally use standard parts and components in
our products, some of our hardware components are available only from a small number of vendors.
Likewise, we license speech recognition technology primarily from Nuance Communications, Inc., the
dominant vendor for this technology. As we continue to migrate to open, standards-based systems, we will
become increasingly dependent on our component suppliers and software vendors. To date, we have been
able to obtain adequate supplies of needed components and licenses in a timely manner, and we expect to
continue to be able to do so. Nevertheless, if our significant vendors are unable to supply components or
licenses at current levels, we may not be able to obtain these items from another source or at historical prices.
In such instances, we would be unable to provide products and services to our customers or generate
historical operating margins, and our business and operating results would suffer.

If third parties assert claims that our products or services infringe on their technology and related
intellectual property rights, whether the claims are made directly against us or against our customers,
we could incur substantial cosis.  We believe software and technology companies, including us and others
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in our industry, increasingly may become subject to infringement claims. Such claims may require us to
enter into costly license agreements or result in even more costly litigation. To the extent a licensing
arrangement is required, the arrangement may not be available at all, or, if available, may be very expensive
or even prohibitively expensive. As with any legal proceeding, there is no guarantee we will prevail in any
litigation instituted against us asserting infringement of intellectual property rights. To the extent we suffer
an adverse judgment, we might have to pay substantial damages, discontinue the use and sale of infringing
products, repurchase infringing products from our customers in accordance with indemnity obligations,
expend significant resources to acquire non-infringing alternatives, and/or obtain licenses to the intellectual
property that has been infringed upon. As with licensing arrangements, non-infringing substitute technol-
ogies may not be available and, if available, may be very expensive, or even prohibitively expensive, to
implement. Accordingly, for all of the foregoing reasons, a claim of infringement could ultimately have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are exposed to risks related to our international operations that could increase our costs and hurt our
business. Qur products are currently sold in more than 75 countries. Our international sales were 35% and
45% of total sales for the fiscal years ended February 28, 2007 and 2006, respectively. International sales,
personnel and property are subject 1o certain risks, including:

* terrorism,

* fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

* ability to collect on accounts receivable;

+ the difficulty and expense of maintaining foreign offices and distribution channels;
« tariffs and other barriers to trade;

» greater difficulty in protecting and enforcing intellectual property rights;

« general economic and political conditions in each country, including nationalization of customers or
channel partners;

* loss of revenue, property and equipment from expropriation,
» import and export licensing requirements; and

» additional expenses and risks inherent in conducting operations in geographically distant locations,
including risks arising from differences in language and culwral approaches to the conduct of business.

Our inability 10 meet contracted performance targets could subject us to significant penalties.  Many of our
contracts, particularly for hosted solutions, foreign contracts and contracts with telecommunication com-
panies, include provisions for the assessment of damages for delayed project completion and/or for our
failure to achieve certain minimum service levels. We have had to pay damages in the past and may have to
pay additional damages in the future. Any such future damages could be significant.

Increasing consolidation in the telecommunications and financial industries could adversely affect our
revenues and profitability. The majority of our largest customers are in the telecommunications and
financial industries. These industries are undergoing significant consolidation as a result of merger and
acquisition activity. This activity could result in a decrease in the number of customers purchasing our
products and/or in delayed purchases of our products by customers that are reviewing their strategic
alternatives in light of a pending merger or acquisition. If these results occur, our revenues and profitability
could decline or our loss could increase.

Qur products are complex, and software defects could reduce our revenues and expose us to litigation.  The
software products we offer are complex and may contain errors or defects, even after extensive testing and
quality control, particularly in early versions. Furthermore, because our products increasingly are designed
around an open standards based architecture incorporating elements developed by third parties, such errors
or defects may be outside of our direct ability to control or correct. Any defects or errors could potentially
result in loss of revenues, product returns or order cancellations, and could potentially hinder market
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acceptance of our products and harm our reputation. Accordingly, any defects or errors could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. Our customer license
agreements typically contain provisions to limit our product warranty obligations and exposure to potential
liability claims.

» We have grown, and may continue 1o grow, through acquisitions, which could dilute our existing share-
holders and could involve substantial acquisition risks.  As part of our business strategy, we have in the past
acquired, and expect to continue to acquire or make investments in, other businesses and technologies. We
miay issue equity securities for future acquisitions, which would dilute our existing stockholders, and we may
incur debt in connection with future acquisitions, which may include covenants or other restrictions that
hinder our ability to operate our business. Furthermore, our prior acquisitions required substantial inte-
gration and management efforts. Acquisitions can involve a number of risks, including:

« difficulty in transitioning and integrating the operations, facilities and personnel of the acquired busi-
nesses, including different and complex order processing, support and accounting and financial reporting
systems;

* loss of key management, sales, research and development and other key employees of the acquired
company;

« difficulty in integrating acquired products into our product portfolio, including engineering, sales and
marketing integration;

+» impairment of relaticnships with partners, suppliers and customers;

« difficulty in implementing and standardizing company-wide financial, accounting, billing, information
and other systems and the internal controls surrounding those systems and processes;

« disruption of our ongoing operations and distraction of management and other employees;
« difficulty in incorporating acquired technology and rights into our products and technology;

+ unanticipated expenses and delays in completing acquired development projects and technology
integration;

= difficulty in management of geographically remote operations in the United States and internationally;

* delay of sales to customers pending resolution of product integration between our existing and our newly
acquired products; and

« difficulty entering new markets or businesses in which we have limited experience.

As aresult of these and other risks, we may not realize anticipated benefits from our acquisitions. Any failure
10 achieve these benefits or failure to successfully integrate acquired businesses and technologies could result
in a material adverse affect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

* Our stock price has been and may continue to be subject to wide fluctuations.  Our stock price historically
has been volatile and may continue to be volatile in the future. Various factors contribute to the volatility of
our stock price, including business developments (such as new product introductions and acquisitions or
dispositions), litigation developments, quarterly variations in our financial results, our ability to meet
investors’ expectations, and general economic and market conditions. In addition, third-party announce-
ments by our partners and competitors may contribute to our stock price volatility. Certain types of investors
may choose not to invest in stocks with this level of stock price volatility. Fluctuations in our stock price
could cause increased risk of shareholder litigation, which could result in substantial costs and divert
management’s attention and resources.

* We are exposed to risks related to our channel program that could decrease our revenues and hurt our
business.  Although we principally sell our products and services through our direct sales force, a
significant amount of our sales are made through intermediaries such as distributors, system integrators
and other strategic channel partners. We expect the percentage of sales through intermediaries to increase as
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we continue to focus our sales efforts through the channel and other partners. We anticipate future revenue
growth to depend in large part on our success in expanding relationships, and establishing new relationships,
with intermediaries. These intermediaries may sell their own products or other vendors’ products that
compete with our products, and may compete with our own direct sales force in certain sales opportunities.
While we have instituted programs designed to increase sales of our products through intermediaries, certain
intermediaries may give greater priority to products of other suppliers, including competitors. Our ability to
grow sales through intermediaries depends on our investment in appropriate financial incentives, support
and sales tools for intermediaries, while effectively alleviating conflict with our own sales force. Failure to
effect this strategy appropriately may result in certain intermediaries choosing to cease or reduce the sales of
our products, resulting in a material adverse change in our business, results of operations and financial
conditton.

» We implemented a new company-wide ERP system during the third quarter of fiscal 2007.  During the third
guarter of fiscal 2007, we completed the implementation of a new, company-wide ERP system. Our new
system affects all facets of our business, including our ability to quote, receive and process orders, track
inventory and work in process, ship and bill completed orders, process and apply cash receipts from our
customers and summarize and report the results of our operations. If we encounter problems in the.operation
of our new system, our ability to conduct our daily operations in an efficient, effective and properly
controlled manner could be compromised, and our operating results could suffer. In addition, any such
operational problems could cause us to expend significant time and other resources in an effort to resolve
such problems, and this diversion of management and staff time could further adversely affect our ability to
serve our customers and sustain our normal operations,

+ Unanticipated changes in our effective tax rates or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could affect
our profitability or increase our loss.  'We are a U.S. based multinational company subject to tax in multiple
U.S. and foreign tax jurisdictions. We are generally required to account for taxes in each jurisdiction in
which we operate, including making assumptions, interpretations and judgments with respect to the
applicable tax requirements. Our provision for income taxes is calculated based on a mix of earnings,
statutory rates, and enacted tax rules by jurisdiction, including transfer pricing. Significant judgment is
required in determining our provision for income taxes and in evaluating our tax positions on a worldwide
basis. It is possible that these positions may be challenged which may have a significant impact on our
effective tax rate, which could affect our results of operations and financial condition.

* Failure to maintain effective internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and our stock price. A failure to maintain adequate internal control
procedures as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 may preclude our management’s
ability to conclude that we have effective internal conirols over our financial reporting. These internal
controls are also required for us to produce management financial information, make determinations on
revenue recognition and other material accounting issues, and prevent financial fraud. If we are unable to
produce reliable financial reports, make appropriate determinations on revenue recognition and material
accounting poficies or prevent fraud, our business, operating results and financial condition could be
adversely affected.

* We have sustained operating losses in the past, and may incur additional losses in the future which may
require us to raise additional capital on unfavorable terms. We cannot be certain that our revenue will
grow or that we will achieve or maintain profitable operations in the future, If we are unable to return to and
maintain profitability, the market price for our stock may decline, perhaps substantially. If we continue to
have operating losses, we may be required to raise additional capital to maintain or grow our operations.
Such additional capital may only be available at unfavorable terms that could be dilutive to existing
shareholders, have a high interest rate, contain restrictive covenants, or contain other unfavorable terms.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Intervoice owns approximately 225,000 square feet of manufacturing and office facilities in Dallas, Texas. We
lease approximately 59,000 square feet of office space as follows:

Square Feet
Oriando, Florida . . . ... .ot e e e e, 34,000
Manchester, United Kingdom . . ., ... ... . . . . i e e 27.000
Mountain View, California . ... .. ... ... .. . . . .. . 26,000
Other domestic and intemational locations. .. ...... ... . 12,000

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Intellectual Property Matters

From time to time Ronald A, Katz Technology Licensing L.P. (“RAKTL”) has sent letters to certain of our
customers suggesting that the customer should negotiate a license agreement to cover the practice of certain patents
owned by RAKTL. In the letters, RAKTL has alleged that certain of its patents pertain to certain enhanced services
offered by network providers, including prepaid card and wireless services and postpaid card services. RAKTL has
further alleged that certain of its patents pertain to certain call processing applications, including applications for
call centers that route calls using a called party’s DNIS identification number. As a result of the correspondence,
many of Intervoice’s customers have had discussions, or are in discussions, with RAKTL.

We offer certain products that can be programmed and configured to provide enhanced services to network
providers and call processing applications for call centers. Our contracts with customers usually include a qualified
obligation to indemnify and defend customers against claims that products as delivered by Intervoice infringe a
third party’s patent. None of our customers has notified us that RAKTL has claimed that any specific product
provided by us infringes any claims of any RAKTL patent. Accordingly, we have not been required to defend any
customers against a claim of infringement under a RAKTL patent. We have, however, received letters from
customers nolifying us of the efforts by RAKTL to license its patent portfolio and reminding us of our potential
obligations under the indemnification provisions of our agreements in the event that a claim is asserted.

Some of our customers have licensed certain rights under the RAKTL patent portfolio. Two such customers
who had previously attempted to tender the defense of their products to us informed us that they had entered into
agreements to license certain rights under the RAKTL patents and demanded we indemnify them for unspecified
amounts, including attorney’s fees, paid in connection with the license agreements. We notified these customers that
we believe we do not have any indemnity obligation in connection with the license agreements, We have received no
further response from either customer.

A number of customers, including customers of ours and Edify Corporation’s (“Edify”) have been sued as
defendants in several lawsuits brought by RAKTL in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas and the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. Several of these defendants who are also
customers have notified us or Edify of the lawsuits pursuant to the indemnity paragraphs of their respective sales
agreements and have indicated 1o us that the lawsuits could potentially impact the defense and indemnity
paragraphs of their respective sales agreements. Neither we nor Edify believe that we have a current obligation
to defend or indemnify these customers in connection with the current allegations made in the RAKTL lawsuits and
when contacted we have requested that the customers provide additional information concerning the assertions
made by RAKTL.

In response to the correspondence from, and litigation initiated by, RAKTL a few of our customers and
customers of Edify have attempted to tender to us the defense of our products under contractual indemnity
provisions. We have informed these customers that, while we fully intend to honor any contractual indemnity
provisions, we do not believe we currently have any obligation to provide such a defense because RAKTL does not
appear to have made a claim, either in the correspondence or litigation, that any Intervoice product infringes a
RAKTL patent. Some of these customers have disagreed with us and stated that they believe that the statements and
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allegations contained within correspondence and/or litigation pleadings filed by RAKTL can be construed as a
claim against Intervoice products.

Even though no claims have been made by RAKTL that a specific product offered by Intervoice infringes any
claim under the RAKTL patent portfolio, we have received opinions from our outside patent counsel that certain
products and applications we offer do not infringe certain claims of the RAKTL. patents. We have also received
opinions from our outside counsel that certain claims under the RAKTL patent portfolio are invalid or unen-
forceable. Furthermore, based on the reviews by outside counsel, we are not aware of any valid and enforceable
ciaims under the RAKTL portfolio that are infringed by our products. If we do become involved in litigation in
connection with the RAKTL patent portfolio, under a contractual indemnity or any other legal theory, we intend to
vigorously contest the claims and to assert appropriate defenses.

We have received letters from Webley Systems (“Webley™), a division of Parus Holdings, Inc. (“Parus™), and
its counsel alleging that certain Webley patents cover one or more of our products and services. In the letters, Parus
offers a license to the Webley patents. As a result of the correspondence, we conducted discussions with Parus.
Based on reviews by our outside counsel, we are not aware of any valid and enforceable claims under the Webley
patents that are infringed by our preducts or-services.

Pending Litigation

David Barrie, et al., on Behalf of Themselves and All Others Similarly Situated v. InterVoice-Brite, Inc., et al.;
No. 3-01CV1071-D, pending in the United States District Court, Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division:

Several related class action lawsuits were filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Texas on behalf of purchasers of common stock of Intervoice during the period from October 12, 1999 through
June 6, 2000 (the “Class Period™). Plaintiffs have filed claims, which were consolidated into one proceeding, under
Sections” 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Securities and Exchange Commission
Rule 10b-5 against us as well as certain named current and former officers and directors of Intervoice on behalf of
the alleged class members. In the complaint, Plaintiffs claim that we and the named current and former officers and
directors issued false and misleading statements during the Class Period concerning the financial condition of
Intervoice, the results of the merger with Brite Voice Systems, Inc. (“Brite”) and the alleged future business
projections of Intervoice. Plaintiffs have asserted that these alleged statements resulted in artificially inflated stock
prices.

The District Court dismissed the Plaintiffs’ complaint because it lacked the degree of specificity and factual
support to meet the pleading standards applicable to federal securities litigation. The Plaintiffs’ appealed the
dismissal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, which affirmed the dismissal in part and
reversed in part. The Fifth Circuit remanded a limited number of issues for further proceedings in the District Court.

On September 26, 2006, the District Court granted the Plaintiffs’ motion to certify a class of people who
purchased Intervoice stock during the Class Period between October 12, 1999 and June 6, 2000. On November 14,
2006, the Fifth Circuit granted our petition to appeal the District Court’s decision to grant Plaintiffs’ motion to
certify a class. The briefing on the merits of our appeal is now complete, and we are currently waiting for the Fifth
Circuit to either schedule oral argument or issue a ruling on the merits. We filed a motion to stay further discovery
pending the Fifth Circuit’s decision on the merits of our appeal, but. the District Court denied our motion. We are in
the process of continuing to produce documents in response to the Plaintiffs’ requests for production. We believe
that we and our officers and directors complied with the applicable securities laws and will continue to vigorously
defend the case.

Phoenix Solutions, Inc. vs. Sony Electronics, Inc., Case No. C07-2112 (EMC}, pending in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco Division: On December 13, 2006, Phoenix
Solutions, Inc. (“Phoenix™) filed suit against Sony Electronics, Inc. (“Sony”) in the United States District Court for
the Central District of California for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,615,172, 6,633,846, 6,665,640 and
7,050,977. On February 9, 2007, Sony filed its answer to Phoenix’s claims of infringement, denied any liability and
filed a counterclaim alleging that the patents were neither valid nor infringed by Sony. On February 26, 2007, Sony
filed a third party complaint against the Company for alleged breach of warranty of title and the warranty against
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infringement related to the claims of infringement made by Phoenix against Sony. In its third party complaint, Sony
seeks to recover actual damages suffered by it in the event a final judgment is entered against Sony or it is otherwise
liable for any damages, fees or costs arising out of the cluims of patent infringement made by Phoenix against the
Sony interaclive voice response system. On April 9, 2007, the Company filed its motion 1o dismiss the third party
complaint. The trial court recently transferred the case to the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California, San Francisco Division, and the case is now styled Phoenix Solutions, Inc. vs. Sony Electronics, Inc.,
Case No. C07-2112 (EMC). In the event that the court does not grant the pending motion to dismiss, the Company
intends to vigorously defend itself against any and all claims made against it.

Audit Committee Investigation

During fiscal 2005, our Audit Committee conducted an investigation of certain transactions that occurred
during our fiscal years 2000 through 2002. The Audit Committee was assisted in its investigation by separate
independent legal counsel and a national accounting firm, The Audit Committee reported the results of its
investigation to the SEC, and we are cooperating with the SEC in its own investigation regarding the transactions.
We have provided documents to the SEC in response to a subpoena and informal requests for information about the
transactions, and several of our current and former officers and non-officer employees have provided testimony to
the SEC. Our Audit Committee and its counsel are continuing to monitor our response to the SEC, and they also
have conducted a review of certain documents provided to the SEC which we located after the Audit Committee’s
original investigation. Intervoice is presently in discussions with the SEC about a possible settlement of the matters
covered by the Audit Committee investigation, but there is no assurance that agreement on any settlement will be
reached. We have recorded approximately $0.9 million of expense based on the current status of such settlement
discussions. Intervoice is also honoring our obligation to indemnify, io the extent appropriate, certain current and
former officers and other employees of Intervoice, including our Chief Executive Officer, who received subpoenas
to produce documents and provide testimony to the SEC in connection with the investigation. Furthermore, we are
honoring our obligation to reimburse iegal fees incurred by certain recipients of the subpoenas.

The Audit Committee investigation found that we accounted for certain transactions incorrectly during our
fiscal years 2000 through 2002. The Audit Committee investigation concluded that a $0.9 million payment made by
Intervoice to a publicly held supplier purportedly for certain prepaid licenses was linked to an agreement to amend a
1997 warrant issued to us by the supplier to permi\t our cashless exercise of the warrant. As a result, we believe the
$0.9 million payment should have been recorded as a reduction in the $21.4 million gain we recognized on the sale
of the shares underlying the warrant during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 and should not have been recorded as
prepaid license inventory. Our payment to the supplier may have rendered unavailable a nonexclusive registration
exemption for the sale of the shares underlying the warrant. The Audit Committee investigation also found that we
intentionally provided the same supplier false or misleading documents for such supplier to use to support such
supplier’s improper recognition of revenue in calendar 2001.

The Audit Committee investigation and review further found that six of the seven customer sales transactions
the Committee investigated were accounted for incorrectly and that there was intentional misconduct in at least one
of those sales transactions. These six transactions occurred at the end of quarters in which we just met analysts’
expectations with respect to earnings per share. The Audit Committee found that we improperly recognized revenue
in a quarter-end barter transacticn involving approximately 0.4% of annual revenues for fiscal 2000, and that we
improperly accelerated the recognition of revenue in five quarter-end transactions totaling approximately 0.4% and
0.3% of annual revenues in fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2002, respectively. We, and certain of our current and former
officers and the SEC have agreed that Intervoice and the officers will not assert any defenses based on a statute of
limitations with respect to any action or proceeding against Intervoice or such officers brought, by or on behalf of
the SEC arising out of the SEC investigation for the time periods set forth in the agreements. As a result of work
performed in responding to the SEC subpoena, the Audit Committee has concluded that Intervoice also improperly
recognized approximately $5.4 million of revenue in two sales transactions during the second and third quarters of
fiscal 2002 because the transactions were subject to oral side agreements that gave our customer expanded rights of
return. We subsequently reversed the $5.4 million of revenue during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 in connection
with a return of the related systems. We also provided documents to the SEC concerning these two additional sales
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transactions pursuant to a separate subpoena. Separately, the Audit Committee determined that in September 2001
one of our current executive officers improperly communicated Intervoice information 1o a shareholder.

Intervoice’s management has concluded, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee and our external
auditors, that restatement of our prior period financial statements to adjust for the findings of the Audit Committee
investigation and review is not necessary. In reaching this conclusion, we considered the impact of the incorrect
accounting on each of the periods affected, the ages of the affected financial statements and the lack of any material
changes in prior period trends as a result of the incorrect accounting. In addition, we noted that since the date of the
most recent transaction reviewed in the investigation, we have restructured our business, made significant
management changes, consolidated our physical operations, significantly reduced our fixed operating costs and
refinanced and repaid all of our major debt obligations. We cannot predict whether we may have future losses
relating to the matters investigated by the Audit Commiltee as a result of future claims, if any, including any claims
by the government,

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not applicable.

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Eguity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Common Stock

Our outstanding shares of commen stock are quoted on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol
INTV. We have not paid any cash dividends since our incorporation. We do not anticipate paying cash dividends in
the foreseeable future.

High and low share prices as reported on the NASDAQ National Market are shown below for our fiscal
quarters during fiscal 2007 and 2006.

Fiscal 2007 Quarter High Low

A i, e $8.10  $6.34
3 e $7.75 8595
2 $7.40  $5.58
D $8.70  $6.24
Fiscal 2006 Quarter High Low

B $925 $7.72
B $9.60 $8.20
2T $984 $7.72
o $12.40 $8.64

On April 13, 2007, there were 618 shareholders of record and approximately 11,000 beneficial shareholders of
Intervoice. The closing price of our common stock on that date was $6.63.

.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

We have maintained multiple compensation plans to provide for the issuance of our common stock to officers
and other employees. These plans consisted of the 1990 Employee Stock Option Plan, 1999 Stock Option Plan,
1990 Non-Employee Stock Option Plan, 2003 Stock Option Plan, and the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, which have
been approved by the sharcholders, and the 1998 Employee Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan which has not been
approved by the shareholders. The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding options and shares
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of common stock reserved for future issuance as of February 28, 2007. The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan replaced all
other plans and became the sole plan from which options could be granted.
A D C
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to Future 1ssuance Under
be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Outstanding Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding
Options, Warrants and Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Rights Warrants and Rights Column {A}))

Equity compensation plans
approved by security
holders .........,....... 7,808,405 8.19 ‘ 1,063,935

Equity compensation plans not
approved by security
holders . ................ 152,238

Total . .o 7,960,643

.
.
=

1,063,935

o0

1

(8]

During fiscal 1999, we adopted a stock option plan, which was not approved by security helders, under which
shares of common stock could be authorized for issuance by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
as non-qualified stock options to key employees. Option prices per share were the fair market value per share of
stock based on the average of the high and low price per share on the date of grant. We granted options at various

dates with terms under which options became exercisable at a rate of 25% or 33% per year and were exercisable for
" a period of ten years after the grant date, This plan is no longer a plan under which options can be granted.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph sets forth the cumulative total shareholder return (assuming reinvestment of dividends) to
our shareholders during the five-year period ended February 28, 2007 as well as an overall broad stock market
index, the NASDAQ Market Index, and a peer group index for the Company, the index for SIC Code 3661 —
Telephone and Telegraph Apparatus. The stock performance graph assumes $100 was invested on March 1, 2002 in
our common stock and in each such index. )

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
OF COMPANY, INDUSTRY INDEX AND BROAD MARKET(1)

350 -
—{}— Intervoice, Inc.
300 | =% Telephone, Telegraph Apparatus
—O— NASDAQ Market Index
250
w f\
& 200 )
- 150 —_—
21 100 DW
0 T 1 1 I R 1 T
2/28/2002 2/28/2003 212972004 212872005 228/2006  2/28/2007
Fiscal Year Ending
Company/Index/Market 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Intervoice, Inc 100,00 | 33.73 240.87 | 215.28 | 170.04 | 127.38
Telephone, Telegraph Apparatus 100,00 | 53.92. ] 13504 | 11890 { 13526 | 158.63
NASDAQ Market Index 100.00 78.34 | 119.25 | 120,72 1 135.05 | 143.72°

(1} Assumes $100 invested on March 1, 2002 and all dividends reinvested through February 28, 2007.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated

financial statements and related notes included in Item 8 and in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” set forth in [tem 7.

*k

KK

Fiscal Year Ended February 28/29

2007* 2006** 2005 2004 2003***
(In millions, except per share data)
Sales . ... e e $196.3 $168.1 $1833 $1653 $156.2
Income (loss) from operations .. ............. 3.D 9.0 24.7 18.8 44.1)
Income (loss) before the cumulative effect of a ’
change in accounting principle . ............ (1.7) 16.5 22.5 11.3 (50.6)
Netincome (1088), . ... ..ot .7 16.5 22.5 11.3 (66.4)
TOtAl ASSELS . - o v v e e e 168.6 1581 1349 1116 1010
Current portion of long term debt. .. .......... — — 0.4 — 33
Long term debt, net of current portion .. ....... — — 1.3 13.1 15.8
Per basic common share:
Income (loss) before the cumulative effect of a _ .
change in accounting principle . ... ....... (0.04) 0.43 0.62 0.33 (1.49)
Net income (10ss). . .. ... v i ie e ennnnn (0.04) 0.43 0.62 0.33 (1.95)
Shares used in per basic common share
calculation . . ....... ... . ... L .. 386 38.1 36.2 344 34.0
Per diluted common share:
Income (loss) before the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle ... ........ (0.04) 0.42 0.59 0.32 (1.49)
Netincome (loss). . ..................:.. {(0.04) 0.42 0.59 0.32 (1.95)
Shares used in per diluied common share ‘
calcudation . . ....... . ... 38.6 39.0 38.5 357 34.0

During fiscal 2007, we incurred approximately $2.5 million in special charges in connection with three
severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 55 positions. In addition, we incurred approx-
imately $1.2 million in special charges in connection with the elimination of redundant office leases. In
addition, we recorded a loss provision of approximately $1.9 million related to a contract and a loss provision
of approximately $0.9 million related to the current status of settlement discussions with the SEC.

We acquired all of the outstanding stock of Edify on December 30, 2005. Beginning December 31, 2005, our
financial results include the operations of Edify. During fiscal 2006, we incurred approximately $1.9 million in
charges in connection with restructuring expenses for severance and organizational changes affecting
approximately 50 persons made at the time of the acquisition of Edify. In addition, during fiscal 2006,
our income tax provision included benefits totaling $7.6 million resulting from the reversal of valuation
aliowances on certain deferred tax assets and from the resolution of tax contingencies, partially offset by a
charge of $1.0 million related to the repatriation of foreign earnings.

The fiscal 2003 loss from operations was impacted by speciai charges of $34.3 million related to staffing
reductions, facilities closures, the write down of excess inventories, costs associated with loss contracts, loss on
early extinguishment of debt, and impairment of certain intangible assets. The fiscal 2003 net loss was also
increased as a result of a $15.8 million charge for the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
associated with our adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Accounting for
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Fisca! 2003 results benefited from a change in the U.S. federal tax law
that allowed us to recognize net tax benefits of approximately $3.0 million.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Critical Accounting Policies

In preparing our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generatly
accepted in the United States, we use estimates and projections that affect the reported amounts and related
disclosures and that may vary from actual results. We consider the following accounting policies to be both those
most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and those that require the most subjective judgment. If
actual results differ significantly from management’s estimates and projections, there could be a material effect on
our financial statements.

Revenue Recognifion

Intervoice recognizes revenue from the sale of hardware and software solutions, from the delivery of recurring
maintenance and other software support associated with installed solutions and from the provision of our enterprise
and network solutions on a managed service basis. Our policies for revenue recognition follow the guidance in
Statement of Position No, 97-2 “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended (SOP 97-2}, SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104 (SAB 104) and EITF 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” If contracts
include multiple elements, each element of the arrangement is separately identified and accounted for based on the
relative fair value of such element as evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence. In situations where vendor
specific objective evidence exists for all undelivered elements, but does not exist for one or more of the delivered
elements, the residual method is used. In these cases, the vendor specific objective evidence of fair value of the
undelivered items is deferred and the residual is recognized as revenue related to the delivered elements. Revenue is
not recognized on any element of the arrangement if undelivered elements are essential to the functionality of the
delivered elements. :

Sale of Hardware and Software Solutions: Many of our sales are of customized software or customized
hardware/software sotutions. Such solutions incorporate newly designed software and/or standard building blocks
of hardware and software which have been significantly modified, configured and assembled to match unique
customer requirements defined at the beginning of each project. We account for sales of these customized solutions
using contract accounting principles, following the relevant guidance in Statement of Position No. 81-1 “Account-
ing for Performance of Constructioﬁ-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts” {SOP 81-1), under either the
percentage of completion (“POC”) or completed contract methodology, as further described below, In other
instances, particularly in sitvations where we sell to distributors or where we are supplying only additional product
capacity (i.e., similar hardware and software solutions to what is already in place) for an existing customer, we may
sell soluttons that do not require significant customization. In those situations, we recognize revenue when there is
persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, our fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is probable. Typically, this is at shipment when there is no installation obligation or at the completion
of minor post-shipment installation obligations.

Generally, we use POC accounting for our more complex custom solutions. In determining whether a
particular sale qualifies for POC treatment, we consider multiple factors including the value of the contract and the
degree of customization inherent in the project. Projects normally must have an aggregate value of more than
$500,000 to qualify for POC treatment. For a project accounted for under the POC method, we recognize revenue as
work progresses over the life of the project based on a comparison of actual labor hours worked to current estimates
of total labor hours required to complete the project. We review and update project estimates on a quarterly basis.

The terms of most POC projects require customers to make interim progress payments during the course of the
project. These payments and a written customer acknowledgement at the completion of the project, usually
following a final customer test phase, document the customer’s acceptance of the project. In some circumstances,
the passage of a contractually defined time period or the customer’s use of the solution in a live operating
environment may also constitute final acceptance of a project.

We use completed contract accounting for smaller custom projects not meeting the POC thresholds described
above. We also use completed contract accounting in situations where the technical requirements of a project are so
complex or are so dependent on the development of new technologies or the unique application of existing
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technologies that our ability to make reasonable estimates is in doubt or in situations where a sale is subject to
unusual “inherent hazards.” Such hazards are unrelated to, or only incidentally related to, our typical activities and
include situations where the enforceability of a contract is suspect, completion of the contract is subject to pending
litigation, or where the solutions produced are subject to condemnation or expropriation risks. These latter
situations are extremely rare. For all completed contract sales, we recognize revenue upon customer acceptance as
evidenced by a written customer acknowledgement, the passage of a contractually defined time period or the
customer’s use of the solution in a live operating environment.

We generate a significant percentage of our sales, particularly sales of network solutions, outside the United
States. Customers in certain countries are subject to significant economic and political challenges that affect their
cash flow, and many customers outside the United States are generally accustomed to vendor financing in the form
of extended payment terms. To remain competitive in markets outside the United States, we may offer selected
customers such payment terms. In all cases, however, we only recognize revenue at such time as our solutions or
service fee is fixed or determinable, collectibility is probable and all other criteria for revenue recognition have been
met, In some limited cases, this policy causes us to recognize revenue on a “cash basis,” limiting revenue
recognition on certain sales of solutions and/or services to the actual cash received to date from the customer,
provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Sale of Maintenance and Sofrware Support:  We recognize revenue from maintenance and software support
when the services are performed or ratably over the related contract period. All significant costs and expenses
associated with maintenance contracts are expensed as incurred. This approximates a ratable recognition of
expenses over the contract period.

Sale of Hosted Solutions: We provide enhanced communications solutions to some customers on an
outsourced basis through our hosted solutions business. While specific arrangements can vary, we generally build
a customized solution to address a specific customer’s business needs and then own, monitor, and maintain that
system, ensuring that it processcs the customer’s business transactions in accordance with defined specifications.
For our services, we generally receive a one-time setup fee paid at the beginning of the contract and a service fee
paid monthly over the life of the contract. Most contracts range from 12 to 36 months in length.

We combine the setup fee and the total service fee to be received from the customer and recognize revenue
ratably over the term of the hosted solutions contract, We capitalize the cost of the computer system(s) and related
applications used to provide the service and depreciate such costs over the contract life (for assets unique to the

* individual contract) or the life of the equipment (for assets common to the general hosted solutions operations or for

assets whose useful lives are shorter than the related contract term). We expense all labor and other period costs
required to provide the service as we incur them.

Loss Contracts:  We update our estimates of the costs necessary to complete all customer contracts in process
on a quarterly basis. Whenever current estimates indicate that we will incur a loss on the completion of a contract,
we immediately record a provision for such loss as part of the current period cost of goods sold.

Stock-Based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payments,” effective March 1, 2006 using the modified pro-
spective transition method. Determining the amount and classification of expense for stock-based compensation, as
well as the associated impact to the balance sheets and statements of cash flows, requires us to develop estimates of
the fair value of stock-based compensation expenses using fair value models. The most significant assumptions
used in calculating the fair value include the expected volatility, expected lives and estimated forfeiture rates for
employee stock option grants.

We use a weighted average of the implied volatility, the most recent one-year volatility and the median
historical volatility for the period of the expected life of the option to determine the expected volatility to be used in
our fair value calculation, with the median historical volatility receiving the heaviest weighting of the three factors.
We believe that this is the best available estimate of expected volatility. The expected lives of options are determined
based on our historical stock option exercise experience. We believe the historical experience method is the best
estimate of future exercise patterns currently available. Estimated forfeiture rates are derived from historical
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forfeiture patterns. We believe the historical experience method is the best estimate of forfeitures currently
available. Changes to these assumptions or changes to our stock-based compensation plans, including the number of
awards granted, coutd impact our stock-based compensation expense in future periods. We update these assump-
tions annually or as circumstances arise which would indicate the need for them to be updated more often.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets are comprised of separately identifiable intangible assets arising out of
our fiscat 2007 acquisition of centain assets of Nuasis, our fiscal 2006 acquisition of Edify and our fiscal 2000
acquisition of Brite, and certain capitalized purchased software. We amortize intangible assets using the straight-
line method over each asset’s estimated useful life. Such lives range from 18 months to 12 years. We review our
intangible assets for possible impairment when events and circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired
and the undiscounted projected cash flows associated with such assets are less than the carrying amounts of the
assets. In those situations, we recognize an impairment loss on the intangible asset equal to the excess of the
carrying amount of the asset over the asset’s fair value, generally based.upon discounted estimates of future cash
flows.

We expense the cost of internally developed software products and substantial enhancements to existing
software products for sale until technological feasibility is established, after which point any additional costs are
capitalized. Technological feasibility of a computer software product is established when we have completed all
planning, designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to meet its
design specifications including functions, features, and technical performance requirements. No costs have been
capitalized to date for internally developed software products and enhancements as our current process for
developing software is essentially completed concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility. We
capitalize purchased software upon acquisition when such software is technologicaliy feasible or if it has an
alternative future use, such as use of the software in different products or resale of the purchased software.

Goodwill:  Goodwill is attributable to our fiscal 2006 acquisition of Edify and our fiscal 2000 purchase of
Brite. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life and is not subject to.annual amortization. We do,
however, perform an impairment test on our goodwill balance on at least an annual basis and more frequently if we
identify triggering events on an interim basis. Our impairment review follows the two-step approach defined in
SFAS No. 142. The first step compares the fair value of Intervoice with its carrying amount, including goodwill. If
the fair value exceeds the carrying amount, goodwill is considered not impaired. If the carrying amount exceeds fair
value, we compare the implied fair value of goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, we recognize an impairment loss in an amount
equal to the lesser of that excess or the carrying amount of goodwill.

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred income taxes using the liability method and reflect the tax impact of temporary
differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such amounts as
measured by tax laws and regulations. We provide a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets in circumstances
where we do not consider realization of such assets to be more likely than not. This is a highly subjective assessment
and requires us to evaluate the predictability of future taxable income while considering our operating history which
includes significant losses in fiscal 2003 and 2002. In fiscal 2006, we reversed a significant portion of the valuation
allowances originally recorded in fiscal 2002 and 2003 associated with deferred tax assets of our U,S, operations.
We believe our profitability in the U.S. for fiscal 2007 and the previous three years and our projected future
profitability make it more likely than not that we will realize the benefit of these previously reserved deferred tax
assets. We continue to provide valuation allowances on foreign and state deferred tax assets and on certain
U.S. federal deferred tax assets that will benefit equity if and when realized.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation (“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No, 109" (“FIN 48™). This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for -
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements. FIN 48 requires companies to
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determine that it is “more likely than not” that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate
taxing auvthorities before any part of the benefit can be recorded in the financial statements, FIN 48 also-provides

guidance on the derecognition of tax benefits, measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along
with any related interest and penalties. FIN 48 will also require significant additional disclosures regarding
uncertain tax positions. FIN 48 is effective for years beginning after December 15, 2006 and we will be required to
adopt the interpretation in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 on a prospective basis. We continue to evaluate the impact
FIN 48 will have on our financial position and resuits of operations,

Results of Operations

The following table presents certain items as a'percemage of sales for our last three fiscal years.

- Year Ended February 28
2007 2006 2005

SaleS L 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofgoods sold . ... .. ... . . 45.0 437 44.2
GrOSS MAFEIN - -+ v e oo e e e e e DU 550 563 5.8
Research and development expenses . .. ....... .. ... . i 12.0 10.7 8.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .. .................... 42.8 39.6 329
Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets ... .............. 1.3 0.7 0.8
Settlement provision. . ... ... . 0.5 — —
Operating income (1085) . . . ..ot it e e (1.6) 53 13.5
Other income (EXpense), DEL . . ... .. . ...ttt 0.6 1.4 0.2
Income (loss) before income taxes .........c..coviv oo n.. (1.0% 6.7 13.7
Income taxes (beneflt) . . ... . .. . e e 0.1 3.0 1.4
Netincome (1058} . ... . i i e e e e e e e 0.9% 98% 12.3%
Sales

Intervoice is a leading provider of converged voice and data solutions and related services. As used in this

report, solutions sales inciude the sale of hardware and/or software applications and the related consulting services

| associated with designing, integrating, and installing custom applications to address customers’ business needs.

I Recurring services include a suite of maintenance and software upgrade offerings and the provision of customized

' solutions to customers on a hosted solution (outsourced) basis. Our solutions product line includes voice portal,
i messaging, and payment solutions.

Our sales by product line for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

% Change % Change
From Prior From Prior
2007 Year 2006 Year 2605

Voice portal solution sales. . ............ $ 69.2 40.7% § 49.2 (33.5)% % 740
Messaging §01ution sales............... 14.6 (23.6)% 19.1 83.7% 10.4
Payment solution sales ................ 8.6 (12.2Y% 9.8 (39.1)% 16.1
Total solutionsales .. ................. 92.4 18.3% 78.1 (22.3)% 100.5
Maintenance and relaled services revenues. . 83.2 29.2% 64.4 3.4% 59.4
Hosted solutions revenues .. ............ 20.7 (19.1Y% 25.6 9.4% 234 f
Total recurring services revenues . . . ... ... 103.9 15.4% 80.0 8.7% 82.8 }
Total Sales . ........ooii e $196.3 16.8%  $168.1 83)% $183.3 |




We assign revenues to geographic locations based on the location of the customer. Our net sales by geographic
area for fiscal years 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

% Change % Change
From Prior From Prior
2007 Year 2006 Year 2005

North America .......... P, $127.7 387% § 92.1 (14.6)% $107.8
Europe .. ......... P 28.5 (27.1)% 39.] (4.4Y% 40.9
Middle East and Africa................ 15.4 (19.4)% 19.1 (10.3)% 21.3
Central and South America . ............ 14.7 16.7% 12.6 85.3% 6.8
Pacific Rim......................... 10.0 92.3% 52 (20.0)% 6.5
Total .. ....... .. . . ... - $196.3 16.8%  $168.1 (8.3Y% $183.3

International sales constituted 35% of total sales in fiscal 2007, 45% of 10tal sales in 2006 and 41% of total
sales in 2005.

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates from fiscal 2006 to 2007 served to increase sales for fiscal 2007 by
approximately $1.3 million. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates from fiscal 2005 to 2006 served to
decrease sales for fiscal 2006 by approximately $1.6 million.

Sales of voice portal solutions increased significantly in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. All geographies except
Europe reflected increases in voice portal sales during this timeframe, with the largest increase reflected in North
America. This increase reflects the inclusion of sales to former Edify customers for the full year of fiscal 2007
including approximately $4.6 million recognized under an approximately $7.3 million sale to a major U.S. satellite
television provider. Fiscal 2007 also incleded $2.5 million of revenue from a cash basis customer based in the
Central and South American market as welt as $3.5 million from a follow on order for incremental capacity from the
same customer which was recognized on an accrual basis based upon several years of successful cash collections
activities associated with this customer. Given the delays we are experiencing in collection of this receivable, we
will return to the cash basis of accounting for future transactions with this customer. Sales of voice portal solutions
declined significantly in fiscal 2006 from fiscal 2005 levels. A portion of the decline resuits from the fact that sales
in fiscal 20035 included approximately $10.3 million recognized under an $11.4 million sale to a major U.S. wireless
provider. There were no individual sales of this magnitude in fiscal 2006. The balance of the decline reflected
weakness in our voice portal sales across all our major geographic markets, with the Jargest decline focused in North
America. We believe some voice portal customers postponed investment decisions during fiscal 2006 while they
continued to evaluate the effects of the market shift to open standards on their individual processing environments.

Fiscal 2006 included recognition of approximately $6.2 million under the first two contracts for our new
advanced messaging product. Sales of messaging solutions decreased in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006. The largest
decreases were reflected in the Middle East, Africa and Latin America where fiscal 2007 did not include any
contracts of comparable size to the first two media exchange contracts recognized during fiscal 2006. One of these
contracts was completed during the first quarter of fiscal 2007 and the second contract was completed during the
first quarter of fiscal 2008. '

Qur sales of payment solutions in 2007 and 2006 primarily reflect sales of capacity upgrades Lo existing clients
in the Middle East and Africa, Latin America and the Pacific Rim. The decline in such sales from fiscal 2005 to
fiscal 2006 is largely attributable to the loss of an MEA customer who had purchased $4.9 million in payment

solutions during fiscal 2005. |

The 29.2% increase in maintenance and related service revenues in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 is
comprised of increases of $19.6 million (35.3%) in maintenance revenues on voice portal solutions offset, in part, by
decreases of $0.8 million (8.5%) in maintenance revenues on messaging and payment solutions. This increase
resulted primarily from the acquisition of Edify. The 8.4% increase in our maintenance and related services
revenues in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 is comprised of increases of $7.0 million (15.5%) in maintenance
revenues on voice portal solutions offset, in part, by decreases of $2.0 million (13.8%}) in maintenance revenues on
messaging and payment solutions.
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The 19.1% decrease in hosted selutions revenues in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006 is comprised of
growth of $2.1 million (16.2%) in revenues from our North American enterprise customers offset by reductions of
$7.0 million (55.7%) from our international network customers. We recognized revenues totaling $3.0 million in
fiscal 2007, $8.3 million in fiscal 2006 and $10.0 million in fiscal 2005 under one long-term international hosted
solutions contract with a U.K. based network operator. This contract expired in July 2006. International hosted
solutions revenues during fiscal 2007 included $1.4 million relating to services performed for an international
hosted solutions customer for which we recognize revenue on a cash basis. We recognized $2.0 million and
$1.5 million of similar sales to the same customer in fiscal 2006 and 2005, respectively. The 9.4% increase in hosted
solutions revenues in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 is comprised of growth of $3.2 million (33.3%) in
revenues from our North American enterprise customers offset, in part, by net reductions of $1.0 million (7.5%) in
revenues from our international network customers.

No customer accounted for 10% of our total sales during fiscal 2007. We have historically made significant
sales of solutions, maintenance and hosted solutions, including the hosted solutions described above, to O2. Such
combined sales accounted for 10% of our total sales during fiscal 2006 and 2005. No other customer accounted for
10% or more of our sales during such periods.

We are prone to quarterly sales fluctuations. Some of our transactions are completed in the same fiscal quarter
as ordered. The quantity and size of large sales (sales valued at approximately $2.0 million or more) during any
quarter can cause wide variations in our quarterly sales and earnings, as such sales are unevenly distributed
throughout the fiscal year. We use a system combining estimated sales from our recurring services contracts,
“pipeline” of solution sales opportunities, and backlog of committed solution orders to estimate sales and trends in
our business. For the years ended February 28, 2007, February 28, 2006 and February 28, 2005 sales were sourced
as follows: ‘

Year Ended February 28
2007 2006 2005

(Based on Averages of
Quarterly Activity)

Sales from recurring service and support contracts, including contracts for

hosted SOIULIONS . . ...ttt e e e 53% 54%  45%
Sales from solutions backlog ... ... ... ... .. . . e 27% 29%  41%
Sales from the pipeline. . .. ... ... i e 2%  17% _14%

100%  100%  100%

Our service and support contracts range in original duration from one month to five years, with most hosted
solutions contracts having initial terms of two to three years and most maintenance and related contracts having
initial terms of one year. Because many of the longer duration contracts give customers early cancellation
privileges, we do not consider our book of services contracts to be reportable backlog, as a portion of the potential
revenue reflected in the contract values may never be realized. Nevertheless, it is easier for us to estimate service
and support sales than to estimate solution sales for future quarters because the service and support contracts
generally span multiple quarters and revenues recognized under each contract are generally similar from one quarter
to the next. ‘

Our backlog is made up of customer orders for solutions for which we have received complete purchase orders.
At February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005, our backlog of solutions sales was approximately $54.1 million, $33.9 million
and $35.4 million, respectively. We generally expect all projects in our existing backlog to be initiated within fiscal
2008 and most of such backlog to be recognized as revenue during fiscal 2008. Approximately 10% to 20% of such
backlog could revenue subsequent to fiscal 2008. Our ability to estimate the amount of backlog that will be
converted to revenue in any fiscal quarter can be affected by factors outside our control, including changes in project
timing requested by our customers and cash collections from certain international customers.

Our pipeline of opportunities for solutions sales is the aggregation of our sales opportunities for which we have
not received a purchase ordet, with each opportunity evaluated for the date the potential customer will make a
purchase decision, competitive risks, and the potential amount of any resulting sale. No matter how promising a
pipeline opportunity may appear, there is no assurance it will ever result in a sale. Accordingly, upward or
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downward trends in our total pipeline are not considered meaningful from a financial analysis perspective. While
we incorporate an estimate of sales from pipeline into our business planning and budgeting, pipeline estimates are
necessarily speculative and may not consistently correlate to solutions sales in a particuiar quarter or over a longer
period of time. While we know the amount of solutions backlog available at the beginning of a quarter, we must
speculate on our pipeline of solutions opportunities for the quarter, Our accuracy in estimating total solutions sales
for future fiscal quarters is, therefore, highly dependent upon our ability to successfully estimate which pipeline
opportunities will close during the quarter.

To compete effectively in our target markets in fiscal 2008 and beyond, we believe we must continue to
transition our products and services to an open, standards-based business model, We have historically provided
complete, bundled hardware and software systerns using internally developed components 10 address our cus-
tomers’ total business needs. Increasingly, the markets for our products are requiring a shift to the development of
products and services based on an open, standards-based architecture such as the J2EE and Microsoft’s®. NET
environments utilizing VoiceXML, CCXML, SCXML and/or SALT standards. Such an open, standards-based
approach allows customers to independently purchase and combine hardware components, standardized software
modules, and customization, installation and integration services from individual vendors deemed to offer the best
value in the particular class of product or service. In such an environment, we believe we may sell less hardware and
fewer bundled systems and may become increasingly dependent on our development and sale of sofiware
application packages. customized software and consulting and integration services. This shift will place new
challenges on our management to transition our products and to hire and retain the mix of personne! necessary to
respond to this business environment, to adapt to the changing expense structure that the new environment may tend
to foster, and to increase sales of services, customized software and application packages to offset reduced sales of .
hardware and bundled systems,

Special Charges
Fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2007, we incurred approximately $2.5 million in special charges in connection with three
severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 55 positions. In addition, we incurred approximately
$1.2 million in special charges in connection with the elimination of redundant office leases. The following table
summarizes the effect on reported operating results by financial statement category of all special charges activities
for fiscal 2007 (in millions);

Cost of Selling,
Goods Research and General and
Sold Development Administrative Total
Severance payments and related benefits . . ... .., ., $1.0 $0.3 §1.2 $2.5
Facility costs . . ... .. .. .. i, $— $— $1.2 $1.2
Total ... ... .. e $L.0 $0.3 $2.4 $3.7

Of this amount, $1.0 million remained accrued at February 28, 2007,

Fiscal 2006

During fiscal 2006, we incurred approximately $1.9 million in charges in connection with restructuring
expenses for severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 50 persons made at the time of the
acquisition of Edify. The following table summarizes the effect on reported operating results by financial statement
category of such special charges (in millions):

Cost of Selling,
Goods Research and General and
Sold Development Administrative Total
Severance payments and related benefits . . ... .. ... $0.5 30.2 $1.2 $1.9

All amounts related to these special charges have been paid.
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Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold was comprised of the following for the three years ended February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in millions):
2007 2006 2005

Solution COGS . ..ot $59.2 $48.0 $52.1
As percentage of solutions sales . . ........... ... ... . L. 64.1% 61.5% 51.9%
Services COGS ... ... e $29.1  $255 3289
As percentage oOf SETVICES FEVETIUES . .. . .. ..t iit i e e 28.0% 284% 35.0%
Total COGS . ... i e e $88.3  $735 $81.0
As percentage of total sales . ....... ... ... ... . . 450% 437% 44.2%

During fiscal 2007 and 2006, we incurred special charges to cost of goods sold totaling $1.0 million (0.5% of
sales) and $0.5 million (0.3% of sales), respectively, as described in the preceding Special Charges section. Cost of
goods sold for fiscal 2007 included approximately $0.9 million of stock compensation expense, resulting from the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R which requires us to include a compensation expense in our financials related to share-
based awards. A significant portion of our solutions cost of goods sold is comprised of labor costs that are fixed over
the near term as opposed to direct material and licensefroyalty costs that vary directly with sales volume. The
increase in solutions cost of goods sold as a percentage of solutions sales in fiscal 2007 as compared to fiscal 2006
resulted primarily from the recording of a loss provision of approximately $1.9 million related to a $10.3 million
media exchange contract entered into in February 2007. Progress on this percentage of completion project resulted
in approximately $0.8 million of revenue on which we recognized no net margin during fiscal 2007. In addition, we
recognized no net margin on approximately $0.7 million of revenue recognized on the first two contracts for our
advanced messaging product — media exchange for networks. The increase in solutions costs of goods sold as a
percentage of solutions sates in fiscal 2006 as compared to fiscal 2005 resulted largely from the changes in solution
sales volume across the pertod which occurred without proportional increases or decreases in our fixed labor costs.
In addition, as discussed in the Sales section above, we performed significant work during fiscal 2006 on the first
two contracts for our new advanced messaging product — media exchange for networks. Because of the
significant effort involved in these initial deployments of this product, we realized no net margin on approximately
$6.2 million of revenue recognized during fiscal 2006.

During fiscal 2007, our services cost of goods sold increased in dollar amount and remained relatively
unchanged as a percentage of services revenues as compared to fiscal 2006 levels. The increase in actual costs
related to the increase in services revenues. During fiscal 2006, our services cost of goods sold declined both in
dollar amount and as a percentage of services revenues over fiscal 2005 levels. The reduction in actual costs resulted
primarily from contractual reductions in third party costs associated with our international hosted solutions
business, reduced telecommunications costs negotiated based on higher volumes in our domestic hosted solutions
business, and lower warranty and repairs and maintenance costs. The reduction in cost as a percent of recurring
revenues resulted from these cost savings and from our ability to support net revenue growth in both our
maintenance and hosted solutions business with limited additions to our existing cost structure, Our cost of goods
sold percentage also benefited from a shift in the geographic mix of some maintenance revenues from areas with a
relatively higher cost structure to lower cost areas.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses for the three years ended February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as
follows {in millions}:

2007 2006 2005

Research and development expenses ... ....... ... ... $236 S$179 $158
Aspercentage of total sales .. ... ... ... .. ... ... .. Ll 120% 107%  8.6%

Research and development expenses for fiscal 2007 included approximately $0.5 million of stock compen-
sation expense resuiting from our adoption of SFAS No. 123R which requires us to include a compensation expense
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in our financial statements related to share-based awards. In addition, fiscal 2007 included a full year of the impact
of the acquisition of Edify and the addition of resources to support the technology acquired from Nuasis. We
incurred special charges of $0.3 million (0.2% of sales) and $0.2 million (0.1% of sales) in fiscal 2007 and 2006,
respectively, as described in Special Charges above. Expenses were up approximately $0.9 million in fiscal 2006 as
compared to fiscal 2005 as a result of the acquisition of Edify. The remainder of the increase in year-over-year R&D
expenditures from fiscal 2005 10 fiscal 2006 relates to the continued investment in various research and devel-
opment initiatives involving packaged applications and voice over IP (“VoIP”) as well as network product offerings.
Recurring research and development expenses included the design of new products and the enhancement of existing
products.

Qur research and development spending is focused in six key areas. First, we are developing software tools to
aid in the development and deployment of customer applications incorporating speech recognition, text-to-speech,
and other rich media technologies for enterprises and wireless and wireline providers. Next, we are developing
server-based application software platforms for operations and management of contact center, speech and call
completion applications. These software platforms are branded under the name Media Exchange. We will use these
software platforms for deployment and management of enterprise, wireless and wireline network operator
applications, which are designed to operate in both J2EE and Microsofi’s ®NET enterprise computing environ-
ments, Third, we are developing media servers, “voice browsers,” and call processing infrastructure based on open
standards such as VoiceXMI., CCXML, SCXML and SALT. These media servers are VoIP enabled, allowing
operation in soft-switch and hybrid PSTN and VoIP networks. Fourth, we are developing packaged, speech enabled
applications for the network operator and enterprise markets. These include a range of vertical and horizontal
applications that are designed to greatly enhance customer return-on-investment by providing many commonly
used configurable functions that can be deployed more quickly than custom applications. Fifth, we are developing
software and tools designed to provide integration of live agent positions in a customer contact center setting. This
software covers a broad range of functions inctuding agent call-screen transfer, workflow management, full call
recording, agent and supervisor management systems and reporting and various integration functions. Finally, we
are developing modular productivity and communications applications for wireless and wireline applications
including speech driven voice mail, voice activated dialing, and enhanced personal information management. The
network products are also branded under the product name Media Exchange.

We expect to maintain a strong commitment to research and development so that we can remain at the forefront
of technology development in our markets.
Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three years ended February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
as follows ({in millions):

2007 2006 2005

Selling, general and administrative expenses . .............. P 3$84.1  $66.5 $60.3
As percentage of total sales .. ............... .. ... .. .......... 428% 395% 329%

Selling, general and administrative expenses for fiscal 2007 included approximately $3.4 million due to our
adoption of SFAS No."123R which requires us to include a compensation expense in our financial statements related
to share-based awards. Fiscal 2007 reflects a full year of the impact of the acquisition of Edify which affected
salaries, commissions and related expenses. Sales and marketing expenses increased approximately $11.1 million
from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007. In addition, depreciation expense increased by approximately $1.4 million for the
same time frame, largely as a result of the start of depreciation related to the SAP system which went into production
during the third quarter of fiscal 2007, Fiscal 2006 included increases of approximately $1.0 million for legal
expenses primarily related to increased patent and merger and acquisition activities, $0.6 million for non-
capitalizable contract labor associated with our SAP implementation and $0.3 million for website development
and rebranding efforts. We incurred SG& A charges in connection with the Audit Committee and SEC investigations
described in Item 3 of Part I of this Form 10-K of approximately $1.7 million, or 0.9% of total sales, during fiscal
2007, $1.1 million, or 0.7% of total sales, during fiscal 2006 and $2.0 million, or 1.1% of total sales, during fiscal
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2005. SG&A expenses included special charges of $2.4 million (1.2% of sales) and $1.2 million (0.7% of sales) in
fiscal 2007 and 2006, respectively, as described in “Special Charges” above.

Settlement provision

Fiscal 2007 includes approximately $0.9 million of expense related to an expected payment to the SEC based
on the current status of discussions with the SEC regarding its investigation.

Amortization and Impairment of Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

In connection with our purchase of certain assets from Nuasis in fiscal 2007, our purchase of Edify in fiscal
2006 and Brite in fiscal 2000, we recorded intangible assets and goodwill totaling $1.9 million, $35.5 mitlion and
$103.8 million, respectively. The separately identifiable intangible assets were assigned useful lives ranging from
18 months to 10 years. For the fiscal years ended February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recognized amortization
expenses related to these intangible assets as follows (in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets . .............. .. ... $25 $12 %15

At February 28, 2007, we had $9.5 million in remaining net intangible assets other than goodwill which will be
subject to amortization in future periods. The estimated amortization expense atiributable to our intangible assets
for each of the next five years is as follows (in millions):

FisCal 2008 . . ot e e $2.8
Fiscal 2009 . ... ... oot S USRI $2.5
FisCal 2000 . . o ot ettt e e e e e e $1.8
FisCal 200 .ot e e e e e e e $1.3
Fiscal 2002 o oottt et et e e e e e $0.5

We conducted our required annual test of goodwill impairment during the fourth quarters of fiscal 2007, 2006
and 2005. No impairment of goodwill was indicated.

Interest Income

Interest income was approximately $1.5 million, $2.2 million and $0.9 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The increase in interest income during fiscal 2006 resulted from our positive cash flow and from rising
interest rates. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we used approximately $34.3 million of cash in connection
with our acquisition of Edify. As a result, we earned less interest income in fiscal 2007 than in fiscal 2006.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income {expense) during fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 totaling approximately ($0.3) million, $0.1 million
and $0.1 million, respectively, was comprised primarily of foreign currency transaction gains and losses. Fiscal
2007 also includes approximately $0.6 million primarily resulting from the sale of MetLife common stock acquired
as a result of MetLife’s demutualization which offsets the foreign currency loss reported in fiscal 2007.

Income Taxes

We recognized an income tax benefit of $0.2 million (11% of pretax loss) and $5.3 million (47% of pretax
income) for fiscal 2007 and fiscal 2006, respectively, and income tax expense of $2.6 million (10% of pretax
income) for fiscal 2005. The fiscal 2007 percentage differs from the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a result
of the geographic mix of our operating results in foreign markets with varying tax rates and other permanent
differences. The fiscal 2006 percentage differs from the U.S. statutory rate of 35% primarily as a resuit of the release
of valuation allowances previously maintained against certain U.S. deferred tax assets and the favorable resolution
of certain tax contingencies during the year offset, in part, by additional tax expense incurred on the repatriation of
certain foreign earnings, all as further discussed below. The fiscal 2005 percentage differs from the U.S. statutory
rate of 35% primarily as a result of the taxability in the U.S. of certain dividends deemed to have been received from
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our foreign subsidiaries, the use of certain fully reserved net operating loss carryforwards and other fully reserved
deferred tax assets as further described below and the favorable resolution of certain tax contingencies.

During fiscal 2003 and 2002, we incurred significant losses. As a result, we were unable 1o conclude that it was
more likely than not that we would recognize the benefit of our net deferred tax assets, and, accordingly, we
established a valuation allowance against such assets. For the three years ended February 28, 2006, we reported
profits on both our consolidated and U.S. operations. Given this history of profitability and our belief that we would
continue to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to realize the benefits of certain of our remaining
U.S. federal deferred tax assets, in February 2006 we benefited our fiscal 2006 income tax provision by reversing
$4.4 million of valuation allowance associated with such assets. We continue to provide valuation allowances on
foreign and state deferred tax assets and on certain U.S. federal deferred tax assets that will benefit equity if and
when realized. These valuation allowances are provided because of remaining uncertainty about the realizability of

. such assets. .

During fiscal 2006, we resolved various tax contingencies arising out of our U.S., U.K., German and MEA
operations. The resolution of all such items resulted in a $3.2 million reduction in our tax expense for fiscal 2006
and was associated with the completion of audits of certain of our international tax returns and with the closing of
certain tax periods due to the passage of time. ’

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (the “AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA provides
for a deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defined in the AJCA. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006, we elected to repatriate $10.3.million from our U.K. subsidiary pursuant to the provisions of
the AJCA. In doing so, we incurred related income tax expense of approximately $1.0 million,

Our U.S. 1axable income for fiscal 2005 included distributions deemed 1o have been made to our U.S. company
by several of our foreign subsidiaries, including, particularly, our U.K. subsidiary. Such deemed distributions
stemmed from the existence and ultimate settlement of intercompany debt owed by the U.S. entity to certain of our
foreign subsidiaries and from the pledging of certain U.K. assets as collateral for a term loan that was outstanding
for a portion of fiscal 2004,

During fiscal 2005, we used net operating losses carried forward from previous years and the reversal of certain
temporary differences to offset virtualty all of our U.S. taxable income. As a result, our current tax expense was
limited to a small amount of U.S. alternative minimum tax expense and to tax expense on our international
operations, The reversal of a portion of our deferred tax asset valuation allowances offset the deferred 1ax expense
we would otherwise have incurred as a result of using the assets, and, as a result, our overall effective tax rate for the
years was substantially less than the statutory rates. Tax expense for fiscal 2005 also reflected the benefit of a
$0.9 million favorable tax settlement with a foreign government reached during the year.

At February 28, 2007, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $1.3 million. This amount,
if not used, will expire beginning in fiscal 2021. All of these federal net operating loss carryforwards arose from
employee stock option exercises. As a result, the realization of such carryforwards when used to reduce federal tax
payments in fiscal 2008 and future years will increase equity and will not reduce our tax provision for those years.

Income From Operations and Net Income

We generated loss from operations of $3.1 million and net loss of $1.7 million during fiscal 2007 and income
from operations and net income were $9.0 million and $16.5 million, respectively, during fisca! 2006. In fiscal 2007,
our loss was primarily attributable to the increased research and development and other operating expenses (o
support the two acquisition activities undertaken late in fiscal 2006 and in fiscal 2007 and the increased investment
in sales initiatives and marketing rebranding efforts to increase sales as well as stock-based compensation expense,
increased restructuring expenses and loss provisions for a contract and the current status of settlement discussions
with the SEC. In fiscal 2006, our reduced operating profitability was primarily attributable to the significant decline
in our solution sales from prior year levels, The effect of this sales reduction on our fiscal 2006 net income was
mitigated, in part, by the large tax benefits associated with the reversal of valuation allowances on deferred tax
assets as described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
At February 28, 2007, we had $28.2 million in cash and cash equivalents, and we had no debt outstanding.

Operating cash flows for fiscal 2007 were impacted by increases in accounts receivable and inventory. Qur
accounts receivable at February 28, 2007 included approximately $2.7 million from a Venezuelan customer. Given
the delays that we have experienced in collection of this receivable, we will return to the cash basis of accounting for
future transactions with this customer, Qur days sales outstanding of accounts receivable was 70 days at February 28,
2007, up from 57 days at February 28, 2006 due to the timing of billings within the quarter combined with the effect
of the delayed collection of the Venezuelan receivable.

For sales of certain of our more complex, customized solutions (generally those with a sales price of $500,000
or more), we recognize revenue based on a percentage of completion methodology. Unbilled receivables accrued
under this methodology totaled $7.3 million (19.7% of total net receivables) at February 28, 2007, as compared to
$5.1 million (19.8% of total receivables) at February 28, 2006. We expect to bill and collect unbilled receivables as
of February 28, 2007 within the next twelve months.

We generate a significant percentage of our sales, particularly sales of network solutions, outside the United
States. Customers in certain countries are subject to significant economic and political challenges that affect their
cash flow, and many customers outside the United States are generally accustomed to vendor financing in the form
of extended payment terms. To remain competitive in markets outside the United States, we may offer selected
customers such payment terms. In all cases, however, we only recognize revenue at such time as our solution or
service fee is fixed or determinable, collectibility is probable and all other criteria for revenue recognition have been
met. In some limited cases, this policy may result in our recognizing revenue on a “cash basis,” limiting revenue
recognition on certain sales of solutions and/or services to the actual cash received to date from the customer,
provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

We used $16.9 million of cash in net investing activities during fiscal 2007. Of this amount, we used
$0.9 million for payment of expenses related to the acquisition of Edify, $2.4 million in the purchase of certain
assets from Nuasis, $3.1 million to purchase equipment to expand our hosted solutions business. $7.3 million for
cosls in connection with our SAP implementation, and the remaining $3.2 million for replacement and expansion of
our computing infrastructure and other capital purchases. We expect to make capital expenditures of approximately
$8.0 million in fiscal 2008. Actual capital expenditures, however, are dependent, in part, on the level of expenditures
made in connection with expansion of our hosted solutions business and could vary from this amount.

During fiscal 2007, our financing activities provided $2.4 million in net cash flow. Qur option holders
exercised options for 0.3 million shares of common stock and, in so doing, provided us with $0.7 million of cash.
Financing activities also included approximately $1.7 million related to excess tax benefits resulting from the
exercise of stock options.

Letter of Credit Facility

In February 2006, we terminated our existing line of credit and entered into a new letter of credit line with the
lender. The letter of credit line provides that the lender wili issue letters of credit not to exceed the principal amount
of $2.0 million. At February 28, 2007, letters of credit totaling approximately $0.5 million were outstanding. Any
draft actually paid by the lender will bear interest at a rate of one-fourth of one percent (0.25%}) above the prime rate
until the amount is repaid. This agreement contains certain representations and warranties, certain negative and
affirmative covenants, and certain conditions and events of default which are customarily required for similar
financings. As of February 28, 2007, we were in compliance with all such covenants.
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Summary of Future Obligations

The following table summariZ&s our obligations and commitments as of February 28, 2007, to be paid in fiscal
2008 through 2012 (in millions):

Payments Due by Period
Fiscal Year Ending February 28/29

Nature of Commitment : 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Operating lease payments . . .. ......... ... ... ..., $3.1  $28 $24 $24 524
Firm purchase commitments . . . ... ... ............., ... 29 04 - = -
Total obligations and commitments. . ... ................ $_6__=0 & $24 324 $24

|
|
H

The operating lease payments shown above were our only off-balance sheet arrangements at February 28,
2007. '

Most of our purchases are executed under cancelable purchase orders. The firm purchase commitments shown
above are comprised of non-cancelable commitments for certain communications charges and royalties.

We believe our cash reserves and internally generated cash flow will be sufficient to meet our operating cash
requirements for at least the next twelve months. '

Impact of Inflation

We do not expect any significant short-term impact of inflation on our financial condition. Technological
advances should continue to reduce costs in the computer and communications industries. Further, we presently are
not bound by long-term fixed price sales contracts. The absence of such contracts should reduce our exposure to
inflationary effects. '

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
May 31, August 31, November 30, February 28,

Fiscal 2007 _ 2006 2006 2006* 2007**
(In millions, except per share data)
Sales ... . $45.7 $50.5 . 8528 $474
Grossprofit .. ... ... ... ... ... ..., 25.9 28.0 28.8 254
Income (loss) from operations. . . ... ........- (1.3 2.0 0.1} 3.7
Netincome (loss). .. ... ... ..., 0.4 1.6 0.1} (2.8)
Net income (loss) per basic share . . ... ....... ©01) 004 0.00 0.07)
Net income (loss) per diluted share. .. ........ 0.0y - 0.04 0.00 (0.07)

Three Months Ended
May 31, August 31, November 30, February 28,

Fiscal 2006 2005 2005 2005 2006%+*
(In millions, except per share data)
Sales ... ... $43.3 $43.3 $41.0 $40.5
Grossprofit ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ..., 24.3 24.0 23.1 23.1
Income (loss) from operations. . .. ........... 4.5 4.5 2.8 2.8)
Netincome ............................ 39 4.6 3.6 43
Net income per basic share. . . .............. 0.10 0.12 0.09 0.11
Net income per diluted share ............... 0.10 0.12 0.09 0.11

During the third quarter of fiscal 2007, we incurred approximately $1.3 million in special charges in
connection with organizational changes affecting approximately 35 positions, In addition, we incurred
$1.1 million in special charges in connection with the elimination of redundant office leases.
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#* During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we incurred approximately $0.7 million in special charges in
connection with severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 10 positions, In addition, we
incurred approximately $0.1 million in special charges in connection with the elimination of redundant office
leases. We also recorded a loss provision of approximately $1.9 million related to a contract and a loss
provision of approximately $0.9 million related to the current status of settlement discussions with the SEC.

**% We acquired all of the outstanding stock of Edify on December 30, 2005. Beginning December 31, 2005, our
financial results include the operations of Edify. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we incurred
approximately $1.9 million in charges in connection with restructuring expenses for severance and organi-
zational changes affecting approximately 50 persons made al the time of the acquisition of Edify. In addition,
for the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, our income tax provision included benefits totaling $6.8 million resulting
from the reversal of valuation allowances on certain deferred tax assets and from the resolution of tax
contingencies, partially offset by a charge of $1.0 million related to the repatriation of foreign earnings.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We invest cash balances in excess of operating requirements in short-term securities that generally have
maturities of 90 days or less. The carrying value of these securities approximates market value, and there is no long-
term interest rate risk associated with these investments.

Foreign Currency Risks

We transact business in certain foreign currencies including, particularly, the British pound and the Euro. Our
primary software application development, research and development and other administrative activities are
conducted from offices in the United States and the United Kingdom, and our primary manufacturing operations are
conducted in the United States. Virtually all sales arranged through our U.S. offices are denominated in U.S. dollars,
which is the functional and reporting currency of our U.S, entity. Sales arranged through our U.K. subsidiary are
denominated in various currencies, including the British pound, the U.S. dollar and the Euro; however, the U.K.
subsidiary’s functional currency is the British pound.

For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, sales originating from cur U.K. subsidiary represented
approximately 23% of consolidated sales. As a result of our international operations, we are subject 1o exposure
from adverse movements in certain foreign currency exchange rates. We have not historically used foreign currency
options or forward contracts to hedge our currency exposures because of variability in the timing of cash flows
associated with our larger contracts, and we did not have any such hedge instruments in place at February 28, 2007,
Rather, we attempt to mitigate our foreign currency risk by generally transacting business in the functional currency
of each of our major subsidiaries, thus creating natural hedges by paying expenses incurred in the local currency in
which revenues will be received. :

As noted above, our operating results are exposed to changes in cenain exchange rates including, particuiarly,
those between the U.S. dollar, the British pound and the Euro. When the U.S. dollar strengthens against the other
currencies, our sales are negatively affected upon the translation of U.K. operating results to the reporting currency.
The effect of these changes on our operating profits varies depending on the level of British pound denominated
expenses and the U.K. subsidiary’s overall profitability. For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, the result of a
hypothetical, uniform 10% strengthening in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the British pound and the Euro
would have been a decrease in sales of approximately $2.5 million and an increase in net income of approximately
$1.7 million. In addition to the direct effects of changes in exchange rates, which are a changed dollar value of the
resulting sales and/or operating expenses, changes in exchange rates also could affect the volume of sales or the
foreign currency sales price as competitors’ products become more or less attractive. This sensitivity analysis of the
effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates does not factor in a potential change in sales levels or local
currency prices.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Emst & Young LLP and the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Intervoice as of February 28, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three years in the period
ended February 28, 2007 follow.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Intervoice, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intervoice, Inc. as of February 28, 2007 and
2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended February 28, 2007. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule
listed in the index at Item 15(a). These consolidated financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Intervoice, Inc. at February 28, 2007 and 2006, and the consolidated results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 28, 2007, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein, '

As discussed in Note B and Note J to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method
of accounting for stock-based compensation effective March 1, 2006,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Intervoice, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 28,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated May 8, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 8, 2007

39




INTERVOICE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

February 28, February 28,
2007 2006

(In thousands, except share
and per share data)

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cashand cashequivalents. . ....... ... it iinirnreiniaen.. $ 28,215 $ 42,076
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,476 in

2007 and $1,701 in 2006, . . . .. e e 36,837 25,745
IVemIOrY . . e 13,751 9,439
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ..........c..vvv it 3,909 4,406
Income taxes receivable ... i e e e 1,098 —
Deferred INCOME aXES . . v i it ettt e sttt et et et e 3,880 3,047

87,690 84,713

Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $62,419 in 2007 and
$59,0021in 2006 . . . ... e e e 34,429 28,893

Other Assets
Intangible assets, net of accumutated amortization of $20,040 in 2007 and

S17343 102006 . . ... o e e 9,505 10,284
Goodwill . ... e e 32,193 32,461
Long term deferred income taxes ............. .00 4,613 1,330

L 11 3T 1T - 135 454
$168,565 $158,135

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable . ... ... e e e $ 12.881 $ 10,154
Accrued eXpenses . . . ... .. 15,571 15,176
Customer deposils. .. ...t e 4,365 6,157
Deferred INCOME . . . .ottt e et ettt i e e e 32,368 32,172
Income taxes payable . ... ... .. ... — 484
Deferred INCOmME LaXES . . . v ittt ettt e e 196 270

65,381 64,413

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $100 par value — 2,000,000 shares authorized: none issued

Common stock, no par value, at nominal assigned value — 62,000,000 shares
authorized: 38,727,628 issued and outstanding in 2007, 38,470,087 issued and

outstanding in 2006. .. .. .. ... .. 19 19
Additional capital . .. ... .. .. e e 101,608 92,050
Retained earnings . . . . ..ottt e e s 1,861 3,558
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ... ........ ... ... .. P (304) (1,905)

103,184 93,722

$168.565 $158,135

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERVOICE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Fiscal Year Ended

February 28, February 28, February 28,
2007 2006 2005

(In thousands, except per share data)

Sales
Solutions ... .. v e e $ 92,455 $ 78,107 $100,504
Recurring services. . .. ... ... . it 103,890 89,996 82,754
196,345 168,103 183,258
Cost of goods sotd
Solutions .. ... .. L e 59,151 48,007 52,116
Recurring services. . ... ... ... .. . i 29.116 25,534 28,928
88,267 73,541 81,044
Gross margin
Solutions . ... ... .. e e 33,304 30.100 48,388
Recurring services. . ................. e 74,774 64,462 53,826
108,078 94,562 102,214
Rese-arch and development expenses . . ............ ... ... ..., 23,630 17,918 15,812
Selling, general and administrative expenses ... ............... 84,120 66,462 60,265
Settlement provision. . ............ . . 943 — —_
Amortization of acquisition related intangible assets ............ 2,518 1,228 1,461
Income (loss) fromoperations. . . . ... ...... ... ... ... .. ...... 3,133 8,954 24,676
Interest INCOMIE. . . ...t e e e e e 1,526 2,245 914
Interest eXpense - . . .. . e e (17) (31 (585)
Other income (EXPense) . . ... ..ottt earaen., (276) 56 60
Income (loss) before income taxes ....................u.... (1,900) 11,224 25,065
Income taxes (benefit) .......... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... . .... (203) (5,265) 2,555
Netincome (lOSS) . ... .ottt e e e $ (1,697) $ 16,489 $ 22510
Net income (loss) per share —basic .. .......... .. vviin. .. $ (0.04) $ 043 $ 062
Shares used in basic per share computation . . ... .............. 38,585 38.064 36,214
Net income (loss) per share —diluted. .. .................... $ (0.04) $ 042 $ 059
Shares used in diluted per share compuwtation, ... .............. 38,585 39,044 38,461

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at February 29, 2004. . . ..
Netincome ................
Foretgn currency translation

adjustment . . .............

Comprehensive income

Tax benefit from exercise of
stock options .. ...........

Exercise of stock options . ... ..
Balance at February 28, 2005. . ...

Netincome ................
Foreign currency translation
adjustment . . .............

Comprehensive income

Utilization of net operating loss
carryforward and current year
tax benefits

Exercise of stock options . . .. ..
Exercise of warrants. .. .......

Non-cash compensation . ... ...
Balance at February 28, 2006. . . ..

Netincome ................

Foreign currency translation
adjustment . ..............

Comprehensive income (loss) . . .

Utilization of net operating loss
carryforward and current year
tax benefits

Exercise of stock options . . . ...
Non-cash compensation . . ... ..

Balance at February 28, 2007. .. ..

INTERVOICE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Retained Accumulated
Common Stock Additional (Afca:lr:liunlgied Com:l)rtllallfernsive
Shares Amount Capital Deficit) Loss Total
(In thousands, except share data}
35,691,389  $18  § 75276 $(35,441) $ (600) § 39,253
— — — 22,510 — 22,510
— — — — 539 539
23,049
— — 939 — — 939
1,504,827 1 9,206 — — 9.207
37,196,216  $19  § 85421  $(12,931) $ 6 §$ 72448
— — — . 16,489 — 16,489
— _ — — (1,844} (1,844)
14,645
_ — 952 — — 952
652,567 — 3,152 — — 3,152
621,304 — 2,500 — — 2,500
— = 25 — — 25
38,470,087 $19 $ 92050 $ 3,558 $(1,905)  $ 93,722
- — (1,697) — (1,697)
— — — — 1,601 1,601
(96)
— — 3,823 — — 3,823
257,541 — 715 _ — 715
— = 5,020 — — 5,020
38,727,628 $19 $101,608 § 1,861 $ 304y 5103,184

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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INTERVOICE, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Net income (loSS) . o v v v et e et ettt e et

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . .. ............. ... ......
Deferred income taxes. ... .. ... .. oo
Provision for doubtful accounts .. .............. ... .....
Write down of inventories ... ...... ... ... ... ... .. ...
Disposal of equipment. . . . ... ... ... .. L. .
Foreign exchange loss (gain) . . ............ ... ... .....
Utilization of net operating loss carryforward . . ............
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . .. .............
Non-cash compensation. . ........... ... ... ... ... .....

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable. . . ........ ... .. o e
Inventories .. ... ... e
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ......................
Accounts payable and accrued expenses. .. ........ .. ... ..
Income taxes payable ......... ... ... . ... .. . .
Customer deposits . . . ... it i
Deferred income . . ... .. ... . ... .
Other .. ... . .. e

Net cash provided by operating activities. . .. .................

Investing activities
Purchase of Edify Corporation, net of cash acquired. . . ... .. ...
Purchase of property and equipment . .....................
Purchase of Nuasis assets, net of cash acquired . .............
Other ... e e
* .. Net cash used in investing activities ............. ... ...

Financing activities
Paydown of debt. . . .. ... ... i
Premium on early extinguishment of debt ........... ... ..
BOomowings. .. ..ot
Restricted cash . ... ... ... .. i
Exercise of stock options. ... .. ... . i i i
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . . .. ..............
Exerciseof warrants . . . .. .. ... .. ... L. o

Net cash provided by financing activities. . .. .................
Effect of exchangerateoncash. . .......... ... ... ... ......

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. .............
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . . .. ... ... .. ...

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period. . .. .................

Fiscal Year Ended

February 28, February 28, February 28,
2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)
$ (1,697) $ 16,489 $ 22,510
11,433 8,602 7,733
(4,205) (4,082) —
475 506 312
— 501 57
145 23 4
275 (233) 271)
2,153 603 —
— 349 939
5,020 25 —
(10,010) 10,085 (8,701)
(3,110) (3,296) 807
758 546 895
2,997 (3,971 1,822
(1,548) (3,506) (3,280)
{1,792) (714) 385
(863) 4,817 1,732
205 (16) 560
236 26,722 25,496
(926) (34,341) —
(13,571) (13,182) (7,253)
(2,439) — —
— (300) —
(16,9306) {47,823) (7,253)
— (1,733) (19,368)
— — &)
— — 8,000
— —_ 2,750
715 3,152 9,207
1,669 — —_
— 2,500 —
2,384 3,919 584
455 (984) 556
(13,861) (18,166) 19,383
42,076 60,242 40,859
$ 28,215 $ 42,076 $ 60,242

See notes to conselidated financial statements.
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INTERVOICE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note A — Description of Business

Intervoice, Inc. (together with our subsidiaries) is a leader in providing converged voice and data solutions for
the network and enterprise markets. Through our open, standards based product suites, we offer speech-enabled
voice portal applications, multi-media and network-grade portals, voicemail and prepatd calling solutions that
allow network operators and service providers to increase revenue through value-added services and/or reduce costs
through automnation and that allow enterprise customers to reduce costs and improve customer service levels. In
addition, we provide a suite of consulting services including implementation, business and technical consulting
services and recurring maintenance services that supports our installed systems. To further leverage the strong
return-on-investment offered by our systems offerings, we also offer enhanced communications solutions to our
customers on a hosted solution (outsourced) basis.

Note B — Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Intervoice. and
our subsidiaries, all of which are directly or indirectly 100% owned by Intervoice. All significant intercompany
transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. Financial statements of our foreign subsidiaries
have been translated into U.S. dollars at current and average exchange rates. Resulting translation adjustments are
recorded in stockholders’ equity as a part of accumulated other comprehensive loss. Any foreign currency
transaction gains or losses are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resulis could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents include investments in highly liquid sécurities with a maturity
of three months or less at the time of acquisition. The carrying amount of these securities approximates fair market
value. Interest income was §1.5 million, $2.2 million and $0.9 mitlion in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Inventories: Inventonies are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories are recorded at standard cost

which approximates actual cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. We periodically review our inventories for
unsaleable or obsolete items and for items held in excess quantities based on current and projected usage.

Adjustments are made where necessary to reduce the carrying value of individual items to reflect the lower of costor

market, and any such adjustments create a new carrying value for the affected items. . -

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over each asset’s estimated useful life. The range of useful iives by major category is as
follows: buildings: 5 to 40 years: computer equipment and software: 3 to 7 years; fumniture, fixtures and other:
5 years; and service equipment: 3 years. Depreciation expense totaled $8.7 million, $7.0 million and $6.1 million in
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Intangible Assets and Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Intangible assets are comprised of separately
identifiable intangible assets arising out of our fiscal 2007 purchase of certain assets of Nuasis, our fiscal 2006
acquisition of Edify (See Note C — “Acquisition of Edify Corporation™) and our fiscal 2000 acquisition of Brite
and certain capitalized purchased software. We amortize intangible assets using the straight-line method over each
asset’s estimated useful life. Such lives range from eighteen moenths to twelve years. Amortization expense for these
items totaled $2.7 million, $1.6 million and $1.7 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. We review our
intangible and other long-lived assets for possible impairment when events and circumstances indicate that the
assets might be impaired and the undiscounted projected cash flows associated with such assets are less than the
carrying amounts of the assets. In those situations, we recognize an impairment loss on the intangible asset equal to
the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over the asset’s fair value, generally determined based upon
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INTERVOICE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

discounted estimates of future cash flows (See “Note D — Goodwill and Intangible Assets™). No impairment was
indicated for fiscal 2007, 2006 or 2005.

We expense the cost of intemally developed software products and substantial enhancements to existing
software products for sale until technological feasibility is established, after which point any additional costs are
capitalized. Technological feasibility of a computer software product is established when we have completed all
planning, designing, coding, and testing activities necessary to establish that the product can be produced to meet its
design specifications including functions, features, and technical performance requirements. No costs have been
capitalized to date for internally developed software products and enhancements as our current process for
developing software is essentially completed concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility. We
capitalize purchased software upon acquisition when such software is technologically feasible or if it has an
alternative future use, such as use of the software in different products or resale of the purchased software.

Goodwill-  Goodwill is attributable to our fiscal 2006 purchase of Edify (See Note C) and our fiscal 2000
purchase of Brite. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets,” goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite life and is not subject to annual
amortization. We, however, do perform an impairment test on our goodwill balance on at least an annual basis and at
any interim date at which we identify that a triggering event has occurred. No impairment was indicated for fiscal
2007, 2006 or 2005,

Customer Deposits: Customer deposits is comprised of amounts received from customers for orders not yet
fulfilled.

Deferred Income: Deferred income is comprised primarily of amounts collected but not yet earned under
annual maintenance and software support contracts. We recognize revenue from such contracts ratably over the
term of the contracts.

Product Warranties: 'We provide limited warranties on the sate of certain of our solutions. Such warranties
cover routine bug-fixes and hardware problems and do not provide a right to system upgrades and enhancements,
The warranties are typically valid for one year. At February 28, 2007 and 2006, our accrued warranty costs totaled
$0.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively. :

Revenue Recognition: We recognize revenue from the sale of hardware and software solutions, from the
delivery of recurring maintenance and software support associated with installed solutions and from the provision
*f our enterpias und network solutioris on a hosted solution basis. Our policies for revenue recognition follow the
guidance in Statement of Position No. 97-2 “Software Revenue Recognition,” as amended (SOP 97-2), SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 104 (SAB 104) and EITF 00-21 “Revenue Arrangements with Muttiple Deliverables”
(EITF 00-21). If contracts include multiple elements, each element of the arrangement is separately identified and
accounted for based on the relative fair value of such element as evidenced by vendor specific objective evidence. In
situations where vendor specific objective evidence exists for all undelivered elements, but does not exist for one or
more of the delivered elements, the residual method is used. In these cases, the vendor specific objective evidence of
fair value of the undelivered items is deferred and the residual is recognized as revenue related to the delivered
elements. Revenue is not recognized on any element of the arrangement if undelivered elements are essential to the
functionality of the delivered elements.

Sale of Hardware and Software Solutions: Many of our sales are of customized software or customized
hardware/software solutions. Such solutions incorporate newly designed software and/or standard building blocks
of hardware and software which have been significantly modified, configured and assembled to match unique
customer requirements defined at the beginning of each project. We account for sales of these customized solutions
using contract accounting principles, following the relevant guidance in Statement of Position No. 81-1 “Account-
ing for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts” (SOP 81-1), under either the
percentage of completion (“POC™) or completed contract methodology, as further described below. In other
instances, particularly in situations where we sell to distributors or where we are supplying only additional product
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

capacity (i.e., similar hardware and software solutions to what is already in place) for an existing customer, we may
sell solutions that do not require significant customization. In those situations, we recognize revenue when there is
persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, our fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectibility is probable. Typically, this is at shipment when there is no instaltation obligation or at the completion
of minor post-shipment installation obligations.

Generally, we use POC accounting for our more complex custom solutions. In determining whether a
particular sale qualifies for POC treatment, we consider multiple factors including the value of the contract and the
degree of customization inherent in the project. Projects normally must have an aggregate value of more than
$500,000 to qualify for POC treatment. For a project accounted for under the POC method, we recognize revenue as
work progresses over the life of the project based on a comparison of actual labor hours worked to current estimates
of total labor hours required to complete the project. We review and update project estimates on a quarterly basis,
Unbilled receivables accrued under this POC methodology totaled $7.3 million (209% of total net receivables) and
$5.1 million (20% of total net receivables) at February 28, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We expect to bill and collect
unbilled receivables as of February 28, 2007 within the next twelve months.

The terms of most POC projects require customers to make interim progress payments during the course of the
project. These payments and a written customer acknowledgement at the completion of the project, usually
following a final customer test phase, document the customer’s acceptance of the project. In some circumstances,
the passage of a contractually defined time period or the customer’s use of the solution in a live operating
environment may also constitute final acceptance of a project.

We use completed contract accounting for smaller custom projects not meeting the POC thresholds described
above. We atso use completed contract accounting in situations where the technical requirements of a project are so
complex or are so dependent on the development of new technologies or the unique application of existing
technologies that our ability to make reasonable estimates is in doubt or in situations where a sale is subject to
unusual “inherent hazards.” Such hazards are unrelated to, or only incidentally related to, our typical activities and
include situations where the enforceability of a contract is suspect, completion of the contract is subject to pending
litigation, or where the solutions produced are subject to condemnation or expropriation risks. These latter
situations are extremely rare. For all completed contract sales, we recognize revenue upon customer acceptance as
evidenced by a written customer acknowledgement, the passage of a contractually defined time period or the
customer’s use of the solution in a live operating environment.

- . ’
We generate a significant percentage of our sales, particularly sales of network solutions, outside the cuued
States. Customers in certain countries are subject to significant economic and political challenges that affect their
cash flows, and many customers outside the United States are generally accustomed to vendor financing in the form
of extended payment terms. To remain competitive in markets outside the United States, we may offer selected
customers such payment terms. In all cases, however, we only recognize revenue at such time as our solutien or
service fee is fixed or determinable, collectibility is probable and all other criteria for revenue recognition have been
met. In some limited cases, this policy causes us to recognize revenue on a “cash basis,” limiting revenue
recognition on certain sales of solutions and/or services to the actual cash received 1o date from the customer,
provided that all other revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.

Sale of Maintenance and Software Support:  We recognize revenue from maintenance and software support
when the services are performed or ratably over the related contract period. All significant costs and expenses
associated with maintenance contracts are expensed as incurred. This approximates a ratable recognition of
expenses over the contract period. :

Sale of Hosted Solutions: We provide enhanced communications solutions to some customers on an
outsourced basis through our hosted solution business. While specific arrangements can vary, we generally build
a customized solution to address a specific customer’s business need and then own, monitor, and maintain that
system, ensuring that it processes the customer’s business transactions in accordance with defined specifications.
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For our services, we generatly receive a one-time setup fee paid at the beginning of the contract and a service fee
paid monthly over the life of the contract. Most contracts range from 12 to 36 months in length.

We combine the setup fec and the total service fee to be received from the customer and recognize revenue
ratably over the term of the hosted solutions contract. We capitalize the cost of the computer system(s) and related
applications used to provide the service and depreciate such costs over the contract life (for assets unique to the
individual contract) or the life of the equipment (for assets common to the general hosted solutions operations or for
assets whose useful lives are shorter than the related contract term). We expense all labor and other period costs
required to provide the service as we incur them.

Loss Contracts: 'We update our estimates of the costs necessary to complete all customer contracts in process
on a quarterly basis. Whenever current estimates indicate that we will incur a loss on the completion of a contract,
we immediately record a provision for such loss as part of the current period cost of goods sold.

Research and Development: Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was $3.4 million in
fiscal 2007, $2.1 million in fiscal 2006 and $2.2 million in fiscal 2005.

Income Taxes: We recognize deferred income taxes using the liability method to reflect the tax impact of
temporary differences between the amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such
amounts as measured by tax laws and regulations. We provide a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets in
circumstances where we do not consider realization of such assets to be more likely than not. This is a highly
subjective assessment and requires us to evaluate the predictability of future taxable income while considering our
operating history which includes significant losses in fiscal 2003 and 2002. During fiscal 2006, we reversed a
significant portion of the valuation allowances associated with deferred tax assets of our U.S. operations. (See
Note | — “Income Taxes™). :

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48. This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in a company’s financial stalements. FIN 48 requires companies 1o determine that it is “more likely
than not” that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate taxing authorities before any part
of the benefit can be recorded in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on the derecognition of tax
benefits, measurement and classification of income tax uncertainties, along with any related interest and penalties.
FIN 48 also requires significant additional disclosures regarding uncertain tax positions. FIN 48 is effective for
years beginning after December 15, 2006 and we will be required to adopt the interpretation in the first quarter of
fiscal 2008 on a prospective basis. We continue to evaluate the impact FIN 48 will have on our financial position and
results of operations.

Stock-based Compensation: We adopted SFAS No. 123R effective March 1, 2006 using the modified
prospective transition method. Determining the amount and classification of expense for stock-based compensa-
tion, as well as the associated impact to the balance sheets and statements of cash flows, requires us to develop
estimates of the fair value of stock-based compensation expenses using fair value models. The most significant
assumptions used in calculating the fair value include the expected volatility, expected lives and estimated forfeiture
rates for employee stock option grants {See Note J — “Stock-Based Compensation™).

We use a weighted average of the implied volatility, the most recent one-year volatility and the median
historical volatility for the period of the expected life of the option to determine the expected volatility to be used in
our fair value calculation, with the median historical volatility receiving the heaviest weighting of the three factors.
We believe that this is the best available estimate of expected volatility. The expected lives of options are determined
based on our historical stock option exercise experience. We believe the historical experience method is the best
estimate of future exercise patterns currently available. Estimated forfeiture rates are derived from historical
forfeiture patterns. We believe the historical experience method is the best estimate of forfeitures currently
available. Changes to these assumptions or changes to our stock-based compensation plans, including the number of
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awards granted, could impact our stock-based compensation expense in future periods. We update these assump-
tions annually or as circumstances arise which would indicate the need for them to be updated more often.

Note C — Acquisition of Edify Corporation

On December 30, 2005, we completed our acquisition of Edify, a leading global supplier of interactive voice
response solutions, from 81 Corporation (“$1”). While Edify was smaller in revenues and personnel than
Imervoice, Edify possessed a diverse customer base and marketing strengths that, when added to the capabilities
of Intervoice, allow the combined company to enhance its position of leadership in the enterprise voice portal
market. The merger was a taxable event and is being accounted for as a purchase of a business. Our statement of
operations for fiscal 2006 reflects the results of operations of Edify beginning December 31, 2005, The total
purchase price of $35.5 million is comprised of payments to S1 of $34.1 million and estimated transaction costs of
$1.4 million. The allocation of the purchase consideration is as follows (in millions):

Cash .« oo e 502
Accounts recelvable, Dl . . .o e e e e e e e e 4.8
Prepald B PENSES . . . . e e e 0.7
Property and equipment, NEL, . ... ..., .t e 0.5
Separately identifiable intangible assets ... ......... .. ... ... . o ool 6.8
Goodwill . ... e e e e e 28.8
L 104123 g T _03

Total aSSets ACQUITEA. . . . . -« o\ttt o e ettt et et e e e $42.1
AcCOUNES Payable. . . ..o e $03
Accrued restructuring COSES . . ..o v it ittt it e it e et e e e 0.3
Other accrued liabilities . .. ... o 27
Deferred INCOME . . . ... L e e e 33

Total labilities assumed . . . ... .. L e e e $ 66
Total purchase price. . ... ... .. $35.5

The value assigned to separately identifiable intangible assets is comprised of $4.0 million for developed
technology with an estimated useful life of five years, $2.5 million for customer relationships with an estimated
useful life of eight years, and $0.3 million for trademarks and trade names with an estimated useful life of eighteen
months. We expect to amortize these intangible assets on a straight line basis over their respective estimated useful
lives (See Note D — “Goodwill and Intangible Assets™). Of the recorded goodwill of approximately $28.8 million,
approximately $19.6 million is deductible for tax purposes,

The value assigned to deferred income reflects a reduction of $1.3 million in the historical balance that was
necessary in order to record deferred income at fair value. This reduction reduced income recognized in the first
year following the acquisition from that which would have been recognized by Edify in the absence of the
acquisition.

The accrued restructuring costs of $0.3 million are comprised of severance and related costs associated with
our elimination of 19 Edify positions identified at the time of the acquisition. We paid these amounts during fiscal
2007.

The following unaudited pro forma information represents our results of operations for the fiscal years ended
February 28, 2006 and 2005 as if the Edify acquisition had occurred at March 1, 2005 and 2004, The pro forma
information has been prepared by combining the results of operations of Intervoice and Edify, adjusted for
additional amortization expense of identified intangibles, a reduction in interest income as a resolt of our use of cash
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1o acquire Edify and pay transaction costs, and the resulting impact on the provision for income taxes. The
unaudited pro forma information does not purport to be indicative of what would have occurred had the Edify
acquisition occurred as of the date assumed or of results of operations which may occur in the future (in millions,
except per share data):

Fiscal Year Ended

February 28,
2006 2005
{Unaudited)
SALES © o\t e e e $198.4 $2204
Income before iNCOME FAXES + . v o o v vt it ittt ettt ae e st aan s 114 23.0
NELIMCOIME . o v o e vt et e ettt e e et e e et e e 16.6 20.6
Net income per share —diluted . ......... .. ... .. i 0.43 0.54

. Note D — Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the years ended February 28, 2007 and 2006 are as follows
{in millions):

Balance at February 28, 2005. . ... ... oot $ 34
Additions — Acquisition of Edify. . ... ... i 29.1
Impairment Charges . ... ... ..ot e e —
Balance at February 28, 2006. . . ... ..ottt $32.5
1 1T T O T —
Adjustments —Edify . ... ... (0.3)
Impairment Charges . . .. .. ... u i e -—
Balance at February 28, 2007 . . .. ... .ottt e e $32.2

Intangible assets other than goodwill at February 28, 2007 and 2006 are comprised of the following
(in millions}):
February 28, 2007

Gross
Amortization Carrying Accumulated Unamortized

Amortized Intangible Assets Period Amount Amortization Balance
Customer relationships — Brite . . ... .............. 10 years $18.6 $16.3 $2.3
Developed technology — Edify ........... . 5 years 4.0 0.9 3.1
Customer relationships — Edify. ... ......... ... ... 8 years 25 04 2.1
Trademark/trade name — Edify . ............ ... ... 18 months 0.3 0.2 0.1
Purchased technology — Nuasis .................. 5 years 1.9 0.2 1.7
Other intangibles. . . .. ... ... .. i . 5-12 years 2.2 2.0 0.2

Total. .o e - $295 $20.0 9.5
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February 28, 3006

Gross '
Amortization Carrying Accumolated Unamortized
Amortized Intangible Assets Period Amount Amortization Balance
Customer relationships — Brite . . ... .............. 10 years $186 $15.3 $ 33
Developed technology — Bdify . .................. 5 years 4.0 0.1 39
Customer relationships — Edify. . ... ...... ... ... 8 vears 25 0.1 2.4
Trademark/trade name — Edify .. ... ......... .«... 18 months 0.3 — 0.3
Otherintangibles. . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .... 5-12 years 2.3 1.9 04
Total. ..o e 27.7 17.4 510.3

|

The estimated amortization expense attributable to these intangible assets for each of the next five years is as

follows (in millions):

Fiscal 2008 . . . . e e
Fiscal 2000 . . . e e e e e e e e
Fiscal 20010 . .o e e
Fiscal 2011 . . . o e e
Fiscal 2002 . . o e e

Note E — Inventory

Inventory at February 28, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following (in millions):

Purchased parts ... ... .. .. . e
WOTK I PIOZIESS .« o . ottt e i et et et e et e et e e e

Note F — Property & Equipment

Our property and equipment consisted of the following (in millions):
February 28, 2007

February 28,

2006

339
3.5

4

2006

Land and buildings. ... .. .. ... it $174
Computer equipment and software . ... .. ...... ... . ... .. 523
Furniture and fixtures . ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ... e 33
Hosted solutions equipment . .......... ... ... ... ..... 16.5
Maintenance services equipment. . .. ... ... ..o, 7.3
96.8
Less allowance for accumulated depreciation, . .. ........... (62.4)
Property and equipment, net . . ... ................ e $ 344

$16.9
42.8
3.2
16.3
_ 87

879

(59.0)

$ 289

At February 28, 2007 and 2006, the balance in our computer equipment and software account included
approximately $14.9 million and $8.0 million, respectively, in capitalized costs associated with the first phase of our
SAP implementation, Depreciation on approximately $2.6 million of the total began during the third quarter of
fiscal 2006 as certain elements of the SAP project were placed into service. Depreciation on approximately
$0.5 million additional of the total began during the second quarter of fiscal 2007, and depreciation on the remaining
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balance began in the third quarter of fiscal 2007 as the remainder of the system was placed in service, and is being
amortized over 7 years. We have capitalized approximately $0.5 million associated with subsequent phases of our
SAP implementation during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. These amounts will begin being depreciated when the
related functionality is placed into service. :

Note G — Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consisted of the following at February 28, 2007 and 2006 (in millions):

2007 2006
Accrued compensation and other employee related costs, including accrued
L Tor: 101 1 $89 §$87
O . . . e e e e _67 65
3156 3152
Note H— Long-Term Borrowings g

We had no debt outstanding at February 28, 2007 or 2006.

Letter of Credit Facility

In February 2006, we terminated our existing line of credit and entered into a new letter of credit line with the
lender. The letter of credit line provides that the lender will issue letters of credit not to exceed the principal amount
of $2.0 million. At February 28, 2007, letters of credit totaling approximately $0.5 million were outstanding. Each
draft actually paid by the lender will bear interest at a rate of one-fourth of one percent (0.25%) above the prime rate
until the amount is fully repaid to the lender. This agreement contains certain representations and warranties, certain
negative and affirmative covenants, certain conditions and events of default which are customarily required for
similar financings. As of February 28, 2007, we were in compliance with all such covenants.

Cash Interest Paid
We made interest payments totaling less than $0.1 million in each of fiscal 2007 and 2006 and $0.6 million in
fiscal 2005. .
Note I — Income Taxes

Our income before income taxes was attributable to our domestic and foreign operations as follows
(in millions):

Domestic Foreign
Fiscal Year _ Qperations  Operations Total
2007 . . e e $ 09 $(2.8) $1.9)
2006 . . . e e 5.8 5.4 11.2
2005, ... o e e et 15.4 9.7 25.1
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Our income tax provision (benefit) attributable to income before income taxes was comprised of the following
elements (in millions):

2007 2006 2005

Income tax provision (benefit):

Current;
Federal . . .. .. .. .. $03 $(1.1) $06
Al . . L e e — 0.1) (0.1)
Fc_)reign ................................................ {0.6) — 2.1
Total CUITENt . . . . oo e e (0.3 (1.2) 2.6
Deferred:
Federal . . . ... . .. . e — (4.4) —_
State. . . e e — — —
Boreign. .. 0.1 0.3 —
Total deferred ... ...... .. ... .. i . 0.1 4.1 —_

502) $53) $26

A reconciliation of our income tax expense (benefit) with the United States federal statutory rate is as follows
(in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Federal income taxes (benefit) at statutory rates ............. $(0.7) 35% $39 35% $88 35%
AJCA repatriation tax ............ ..ot iiuiiiennennn. —_ - 1.0 9 _ -
Deemed dividends and other taxable income from wholly owned
foreign subsidiaries. . . ....... ... ... . ., - — —_ = 1.3 5
Release of valuation allowance in February 2006 ............ _ = 4.4y (39 - —
Change in valuation allowance, primarily as a result of the use of
net operating losses and tax credits carried forward from prior
=221 ¢ —_ — (06) (5 (62) (2%
Resolution of tax contingencies ......................... -— — 32 299 (09 @
Other foreign tax adjustments. . . ... ., ...........c0ivur.. — — 04 @ _ -
Effectof non-US. taxrates .. ......... ... vt .. 03 (4 (06 ) 02 )
State taxes and foreign taxes withheld, net of federal effect. . . .. 0.1 5y (@ O @1y —
Other. . o e e ol 3 0O @® (©1n —
$0.2) AD% $(5.3) @N% 326 _10%

We paid income taxes, net, of $1.9 million, $0.6 million, and $4.6 million in fiscal 2007, 2006, and 2003,
respectively. .

During fiscal 2003 and 2002, we incurred significant losses. As a result, we were unable to conclude that it was
more likely than not that we would recognize the benefit of our net deferred tax assets, and, accordingly, we
established a valuation allowance against such assets. For the three years ended February 28, 2006, we reported
profits on both our consolidated and U.S. operations. During those years, we used net operating losses and credits
carried forward from previous years and the reversal of certain temporary differences to offset virtually alt of our
U.S. taxable income. The reversal of a portion of our deferred tax asset valuation allowances offset the deferred tax
expense we would otherwise have incurred as a result of using the assets, and, as a result, our overall effective tax
rate for the years was substantially less than the statutory rates.
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Given our three year history of profitability as of February 28, 2006 and our belief that we would continue to
generate sufficient taxable income in the future to realize the benefits of certain of our remaining U.S. federal
deferred tax assets, in February 2006 we reversed an additional $4.4 million of valuation allowance associated with
such assets. We continued to provide valuation allowances on certain foreign and state deferred tax assets and on
certain U.S. federal deferred tax assets that will benefit equity if and when realized. These valuation allowances are
provided because of remaining uncertainty about the realizability of such assets.

_ On October 22, 2004, the AJICA was signed into law. The AJCA provides for a deduction of 85% of certain
foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defined in the AICA. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, we elected to
repatriate $10.3 million from our U.K. subsidiary pursuant to the provisions of the AJCA. In doing so, we incurred
related income 1ax expense of approximately $1.0 million.

During fiscal 2006, we resolved various tax contingencies arising out of our U.S., UK., German and MEA
operations. The resolution of all such items resulted in a $3.2 million reduction in our tax expense for fiscal 2006
and was associated with the completion of audits of certain of our international tax returns and with the closing of
certain tax periods due to the passage of time. Tax expense for fiscal 2005 reflected the benefit of a $0.9 million
favorable 1ax settlement with a foreign government reached during the year.

Our U.S. taxable income for fiscal 2005 included distributions deemed to have been made to our U.S. company
by several of our foreign subsidiaries, including, particularly, our U.K. subsidiary. Such deemed distributions
stemmed from the existence and ultimate settlement of intercompany debt, owed by the U.S. entity to certain of its
foreign subsidiaries and from the pledging of certain U.K. assets as collateral for a term loan that was outstanding
for a portion of fiscal 2004,

Deferred taxes arise because we recognize the effect of certain transactions in different periods for financial
and tax reporting purposes. Our deferred tax assets and liabilities were comprised of the following significant
components at February 28, 2007 and 2006 (in millions):

2007 2006
Deferred Tax Assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards. . .. ... .o $§12 %39
Tax credit carryforwards . .. ... ... . e 4.1 3.1
ACCTUEd BXPENSES . . . . o i e 2.2 1.8
T 1110 N 1.4 1.5
Depreciation and amortization. . .. ....... ... ot 1.4 1.0
Deferred revenuUe . .. ..o e e e e 0.4 0.1
Allowance for doubtful acCOUNTS . . . . . .. ittt e s 04 0.4
Stock-based compensation ................. .. ... e 1.5 0.0
L1373l £ ) 04 0.9
Total deferred 12X @SS€LS . . . oo i e ittt s 13.0 12.7
Valuation allowance . . ... vt n i i e e e e e (2.9) (6.4)
Net deferred tax a8SE8 . . vt v i it it e e e e e e s 10.1 6.3
Deferred tax liabilities:
Acquisition-related identified intangibles . ... ... ... ... .. . ool (1.0Y (1.2)
(01T 1 1= 1 11 O U G (0.8) (1.0
Total deferred tax liabilities. . . . .. .. . i i e (1.8) (2.2)
Net deferred 18X 888615 . . . . . ittt ittt e ettt n e $83 § 41
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At February 28, 2007, the net deferred income tax assets of $8.3 million were presented in the balance sheet,
based on tax jurisdiction, as deferred income tax assets of $8.5 million and deferred income tax liabilities of
$0.2 million.

At February 28, 2007, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $1.3 million. This amount,
if not used, will expire beginning in fiscal 2021. These federal net operating loss carryforwards arose from
employee stock option exercises and certain foreign exchange losses. As a result, the realization of such
carryforwards when used to reduce federal tax payments in fiscal 2008 and future years will increase equity
and will not reduce our tax provision for those years,

During fiscal 2007, we utilized $8.8 million of U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards arising from
employee stock option exercises and foreign currency tax benefits to reduce our U.S. federal taxable income. In
addition, we utilized current year income tax deductions associated with the exercise of employee stock options to
reduce U.S. and U.K. taxable income. All of these tax deductions totaled $3.8 million and are reflected as an
increase in equity.

We do not provide for U.S. federal income taxes on undistributed earnings of our non-U.S. subsidiaries
because, in the opinion of management, such earnings are indefinitely reinvested outside of the U.S. Should these
earnings be distributed in the form of dividends or otherwise, we would be subject to both U.S. income taxes and
withholding taxes in certain foreign jurisdictions. As of February 28, 2007, the unrecognized deferred income taxes
on these earnings was approximately $3.7 million,

Note J — Stock-Based Compensation

Our shareholders approved the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan in July 2003. This plan encompasses all remaining
shares available for grant under all prior plans. As of February 28, 2007, we had reserved 9,172,078 shares of
common stock for issuance under the plan, with 8,108,143 shares reserved for stock options and restricted stock
units outstanding at that date and 1,063,935 shares reserved for future grants, The Compensation Committee of our
Board of Directors contrels the granting of options and restricted stock units under the plan. Option prices are set at
the fair market value per share of stock on the date of grant. Substantially all of the options have a 7-year or 10-year
term. Except for options granted in July 2004 and July 2005, options generally vest ratably over a 3 or 4 year period.
Fifty percent of the options granted in July 2004 vested on February 28, 2005, and the remaining fifty percent will
vest in July 2007, Fifty percent of the options granted in July 2005 vested on February 28, 2006, and the remaining
fifty percent will vest in February 2009. We recognize compensation expense of share-based awards which vest
ratably on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.

Effective March 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R using the
modified prospective application method. SFAS No. 123R requires companies to include a compensation expense
in their statements of operations relating to the issuance of employee stock options and other equity awards based on
the grant date fair value of the equity instrument. We applied the requirements of the statement to new awards and to
awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after March 1, 2006. In addition, we recognized compensation cost over
the remaining service periods for the portion of awards outstanding as of March 1, 2006, which was based on the
grant date fair value of these options as determined in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123,
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The following is the effect of adopting SFAS No. 123R as of March 1, 2006 (in millions, except per share
amounts):

Year Ended
February 28, 2007
Costof Goods Sold. . . ... ... i e e s $09
R . e e 0.5
G A it e e e 34
Decrease in Operating inCOME . .. . ...ttt nnr e ia ey § 48
Related deferred income tax benefit. .. .. ... ... ... . Lo i 1.4
Decrease in NELANCOMIE . .« . .. v vt ittt et et e et aeeee s $ 34
Decrease in earnings per share —basic .. ... ... .. . i $0.09
Decrease in earnings per share —diluted. . ... ..., ... ... oo il $0.09

No amounts relating to share-based payments have been capitalized.

As a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, approximately $1.7 million is reflected in the financing
activities section of the Statement of Cash Flows related to the excess tax benefit from the exercise of stock options.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, such amounts would have been included in the operating activities section
of the Statement of Cash Flows.

We use the Black-Scholes valuation model for estimating the fair value of the share-based payments granted
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
February 28,
2007 2006 2005
Expected Volatility . . .. .. ... .. e 57.7% 57.0% B86.0%
Expected term (in YEars) . ... ...t ier et e 376 352 216
RiSK-TT8E TALES .« . o v v vttt e e e e e e e e ittt et e e e 49% 399% 2.47%
Dividend yield. . ... ... 0.0% 00% 00%
FOrfeitUre TALE . . . vttt e e e e e e e et it et ettt e e s 8.0% 0.0% 0.0%

The dividend yield of zero is based on the fact that we have never paid cash dividends and have no present
intention to pay cash dividends. We use a weighted average of the implied volatility, the most recent one-year
volatility and the median historical volatility for the period of the expected life of the option to determine the
expected volatility to be used in our fair value calculation. The historical volatility factor carries the largest
weighting of the three factors considered. We believe that this is the best available estimate of expected volatility.
The expected lives of options are determined based on our historical stock option exercise experience. We believe
the historica! experience method is the best estimate of future exercise patterns currently available.

Based on the above assumptions, the weighted average fair values of the options granted under the plan for the
year ended February 28, 2007 was $3.30. Weighted.average fair values of options granted in fiscal 2006 and 2005
were $4.13 and $4.43, respectively.

Estimated forfeiture rates are derived from historical forfeiture patterns. We believe the historical experience
method is the best estimate of forfeitures currently available. We will record additional expense if the actual
forfeitures are lower than estimated and we will record a recovery of prior expense if the actual forfeitures are higher
than estimated.

Under the modified prospective application method, results for periods prior to March 1, 2006 have not been
restated to reflect the effecis of implementing SFAS No. 123R. The following pro forma information, as required by
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SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 123,” is presented for comparative purposes and illustrates the pro forma effect on income from
continuing operations and related eamings per common share for fiscal years 2006 and 2003, as if we had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based compensation for those periods (in millions,
except per share amounts):

Year Ended Year Ended
February 28,  February 28,

2006 2005

Netincome, asreported . . .. .. ... ... . .. . . i e $16.5 $22.5
Less: Total stock-based compensation expense determined under fair

value based methods for all awards, netoftax .................. (5.2) (7.5
Proformanetincome ......... ... .. ... .. . .. . i $11.3 $15.0
Net income per share:
Basic—asreported. . .. ... .. ... $0.43 $0.62
Basic—proforma. . . ... ... e e $0.30 $0.42
Diluted —asreported ......................... J $0.42 $0.59
Diluted —proforma .. ........ ... .. . .. $0.30 $0.40

Stock Options

The table below summarizes activity relating to stock options for the year ended February 28, 2007:

Weighted Average Aggpregate
Number of Weighted Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding as of February 28, 2006. ... .. 7,094,003 $8.39
Granted ........... ... ............ 2,138,060 $6.93
Exercised . ............ ... . .. (257,541) $2.78
Forfeited and cancelled. . ... ........... (1,013,879) $8.88
Outstanding as of February 28, 2007. ... .. 7,960,643 $8.12 5.8 years $2.9 million
Exercisable as of February 28, 2007 ... ... 4,425,688 $8.15 5.3 years $2.9 million

During the years ended February 28, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised
was $1.1 million, $3.1 million and $9.9 million, respectively. The fair value of shares vested during fiscal 2007,
2006 and 2003 was $4.8 million, $8.1 million and $7.5 million, respectively. The unamortized fair value of stock
opticens as of February 28, 2007 was $7.4 million with a weighted average remaining recognition period of 2.3 years.

Restricted Stock Units

We also granted restricted stock units under our 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. These units will vest upon the
completion of the service period of two to four years from the date of grant. Each restricted stock unit granted
reduces the number of shares available for future grant under the plan by two shares.
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The table below summarizes dctivity relating to restricted stock units for the year ended February 28, 2007:

Weighted Average Weighted Average Agpgregate
Number of Grant Date Fair Remaining Intrinsic
RSUs Value Contractual Term Value
Outstanding as of February 28,
20006 ... 46,875 $8.20
Granted . . ..........covunnnn. ' 106,250 $6.74
Vested .. .................... 0
Forfeited . ................... (5,625) $7.55
Outstanding as of February 28, :
2007 ... ... 147,500 $7.17 2.2 years $0.9 million

No shares were exercisable at February 28; 2007 and 2006. Unamortized compensation expense related to
outstanding restricted stock units at February 28, 2007 was $0.8 million.

Note K — Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Share Purchase Rights

One Preferred Share Purchase Right is attached to each outstanding share of our common stock. The rights will-
become exercisable upon the earlier to occur of ten days after the first public announcement that a person or group
has acquired beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our outstanding commeon stock, or ten days after a person
or group announces a tender offer that would result in beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our outstanding
common stock. At such time as the rights become exercisable, each right will entitle its holder to purchase one
eight-hundredth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock for $37.50, subject to adjustment. If we are acquired in a
business combination transaction while the rights are outstanding, each right will entitle its holder to purchase for
$37.50 common shares of the acquiring company having a market value of $75. In addition, if a person or group
acquires beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our outstanding common stock, each right will entitle its
holder (other than such person or members of such group) to purchase, for $37.50, a number of shares of our
common stock having a market value of $75. Furthermore, at any time after a person or group acquires beneficial
ownership of 20 percent or more (but tess than 50 percent} of our outstanding common stock, the Board of Directors
may, at its option, exchange part or all of the rights (other than rights held by the acquiring person or group) for
shares of our common stock on a one-for-one basis. At any time prior to the aequisition of such a 20 percent
position, we can redeem each right for $0.00125, The Board of Directors is also authorized to reduce the 20 percent
thresholds referred to above to not less than 10 percent if, in its judgment, it is to Intervoice’s benefit to do so. The
rights expire in May 2011,
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Warrants

In connection with a sale of convertible notes during fiscal 2003, which notes were subsequently redeemed in
full for cash prior to the fiscal 2003 year end, we issued warrants to the buyers. The warrants gave the holders the
right to purchase from us an aggregate of 621,304 shares of our common stock for $4.0238 per share. In April 2005,
the warrant holders paid us $2.5 million to purchase the full 621,304 shares available under the warrants.

Accumulated Comprehensive Loss

Changes in accumulated comprehensive loss are as follows (in millions):

Balance at February 29,2004 .. ... .. e e e e e $(0.6)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . . ... ... . ... ... . . e 05
Balance at February 28, 2005 . ... ... e $(0.1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments .. .. ........ ... ... .. .. o _(1.8)
Balance at February 28, 2006 . . . . ... . ... ... s $(1.9)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . ... ... .. ... ... .. _16
Balance at February 28, 2007 . . ... .. . e e e e e &)

Note L — Leases

Rental expense was $3.4 miilion, $2.2 million and $2.0 million in fiscal 2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively.
Rental costs in all years generally related to office and manufacturing facility leases. The lease agreements include
renewal provisions and require us to pay taxes, insurance and maintenance costs. At February 28, 2007, our
commitments for minimum rentals under noncancelable operating leases were as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2008 . . e e e e $3.1
2000 e $2.8
2000 .. e e e $24
200 e $24
200 e e e $2.4
Thereafter . . ... $0.3
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Note M — Special Charges
Fiscal 2007

During fiscal 2007, we incurred approximately $2.5 million in special charges in connection with three
severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 55 positions. In addition, we incurred approximately
$1.2 million in special charges in connection with the elimination of redundant office leases. The following table

summarizes the effect on reported operating results by financial statement category of all special charges activities
for fiscal 2007 (in millions): ' '

Selling,
Cost of Research General T
Goods and and
Sold Development Administrative Total
Severance payments and related benefits ... ....... 31.0 $0.3 . $2.5
Facility Costs . .. ... e $— $— $1.2 $1.2
Total. . .. e $1.0

503 s24 837
Of this amount, $1.0 million remained accrued at February 28, 2007.
Fiscal 2006

During fiscal 2006, we incurred approximately $1.9 million in charges in connection with restructuring
expenses for severance and organizational changes affecting approximately 50 persons made at the time of our
acquisition of Edify. The following table summarizes the effect on reported operating results by financial statement
category of all special charge activities for fiscal 2006 (in millions).

Selling,
Cost of Research General
Goods and and
Sold Development Administrative Total
Severance payments and related benefits ... ....... $0.5 $0.2 $1.2 319

All amounts related to these special charges have been paid.
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Note N — Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year Ended February 28,
2007 2006 2005
(In millions, except per share

data)

Numerator:
Net income (1088} . .o o oottt e e e e e e $(L.7) %165 $225
Denominator:
Denominator for basic eamnings pershare . .. ....... ... it ., 38.6 38.1 36.2
Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options and restricted stock units . . ...................... — 0.9 1.9

Ouistanding Warrants . . .. . .. ..ottt e — — 0.4
Denominator for diluted earnings pershare. ... ... .. ... .. .. .. 38.6 39.0 385
Net income per share — basic . .. ... ... ... .. .. .. . . it $(0.04) 3043 $0.62
Net income per share —diluted . . .. ... ... ... .. .. . .. .. ... $(0.04) %042 30.59

Options to purchase 7,960,643, 2,800,489 and 1,109,000 shares of common stock at average exercise prices of
$8.12, $10.83 and $14.19, respectively, were outstanding at February 28, 2007, February 28, 2006 and February 28,
2005, respectively, but were not included in the computations of diluted earnings per share because the effect would
have been anti-dilutive to the calculations because of the loss for fiscal 2007 and because the options’ exercise
prices were greater than the average prices of our shares for fiscal 2006 and 2003.

Note O — Operating Segment Information and Major Customers

We operate as a single, integrated business unit. Qur chief operating decision maker assesses performance and
allocates resources on an enterprise wide basis. Our product line includes voice portal solutions, messaging
solutions, payment solutions, maintenance and related services, and hosted solutions provided for customers on an
outsourced or hosted solutions provider basis. Our net sales by product line for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as
follows {in millions):

2007 2006 2005
Voice portal solution sales. . .......... ... ... i 692 $492 § 740
Messaging solution sales . . . ....... ... ... .. ... . ol 14.6 19.1 -10.4
Payment solution sales ........... ... ..., 8.6 9.8 16.1
Total solution sales ... ........ ... it e 92.4 78.1 100.5
Maintenance and related services revenues. . ... ................. 83.2 64.4 59.4
Hosted solutions revenues . . ...ttt inine e iannn 20.7 256 234
Total recurring services revenues . .. .......... P Fe 103.9 50.0 82.8
Total sales ... ... .. e e $196.3 $168.1 $i83.3
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Geographic Operations

We assign revenues to geographic locations based on locations of customers. Qur net sales by geographic area
for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 were as follows (in millions):

2007 2006 2005
NOrth AMETCA . . ot vttt ettt et e e aeae s $127.7 $ 92,1 31078
BUiope . ... ..o e e 28.5 39.1 40.9
Middle Eastand Africa. . ... .. .. ... ... . .. 15.4 19.1 21.3
Central and South America . . ... ... ot 147 12.6 6.8
Pacific Rim. . . ... ... e 10.0 5.2 6.5
0 1 P $196.3 $168.1 $183.3
Our fixed assets by geographic location are as fol]ows (in millions);
2007 2006
United S1ales . . ..ttt e e e $332 3274
United Kingdom . ... ... e 1.2 1.5
$344  $289

I

Concentration of Revenue

We have historically made significant sales of solutions, maintenance and hosted solutions to OZ2. Such
combined sales accounted for 10% of our total sales during fiscal 2006 and 2005. There were no other customers
accounting for 10% or more of our sales during such periods. No customer accounted for 109% of our total sales
during fiscal 2007.

Note P — Concentrations of Credit Risk

We sell systems directly to end-users and distributors primarily in the banking and financial, telecommu-
nications, human resource, and healthcare markets. Customers are dispersed across different geographic areas,
primarily North America, Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Central and South America and the Pacific Rim. We
extend credit based on an evaluation of a customer’s financial condition, and we generally require a deposit. We
have made a provision for credit losses in these financial statements.

Note Q — Employee Benefit Plan

We sponsor an employee savings plan in the United States which qualifies under section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. All full time employees who have completed one month of service are eligible to participate in the
plan. We match 50% of employee contributions up to 6% of the employee’s eligible compensation. We also sponsor
a plan in the U.K. where our contribution is based on the employee’s age and ranges from 5% to 9% of the
employee’s base salary. Company contributions under all plans totaled $1.6 million, $1.9 million and $1.8 million in
fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note R — Contingencies
Intellectual Property Matters

We generally provide our customers a qualified indemnity against the infringement of third party intellectual
property rights. From time to time, various owners of patents and copyrighted works send us or our customers letters
alieging that our products do or might infringe upon the owner’s intellectual property rights, and/or suggesting that
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we or our customers should negotiate a license or cross-license agreement with the owner. Our policy is to never
knowingly infringe upon any third party’s intellectual property rights. Accordingly, we forward any such allegation
or licensing request to our outside legal counsel for their review, analysis and, where appropriate, opinion. We
generally attempt to resolve any such matter by informing the owner of our position concerning non-infringement or
invalidity, and/or, if appropriate, negotiating a license or cross-license agreement. Even though we attempt to
resolve these matters without litigation, it is always possible that the owner of a patent or copyrighted work will sue
us. Other than the current litigation with a patent holder discussed in Item 3 — “Legal Proceedings,” no such
litigation is currently pending against us. We currently have a portfolio of 86 United States patents, and we have
applied for and will continue to apply for and receive a number of additional patents to protect our technological
innovations. We believe our patent portfolio could allow us to assert counterclaims for infringement against certain
owners of intellectual property rights if those owners were to sue us for infringement.

From time to time Ronald A. Katz Technology Licensing L.P. (“RAKTL”) has sent letters to certain of our
customers suggesting that the customer should negotiate a license agreement to cover the practice of certain patents
owned by RAKTL. In the letters, RAKTL has alleged that certain of its patents pertain to certain enhanced services
offered by network providers, including prepaid card and wireless services and postpaid card services, RAKTL has
further alleged that certain of its patents pertain to certain call processing applications, including applications for
call centers that route calls using a called party’s DNIS identification number. As a result of the correspondence,
many of Intervoice’s customers have had discussions, or are in discussions, with RAKTL.

We offer certain products that can be programmed and configured to provide enhanced services to network
providers and call processing applications for call centers. Qur contracts with customers usually include a qualified
obligation to indemnify and defend customers against claims that products as delivered by Intervoice infringe a
third party’s patent. None of our customers has notified us that RAKTL has claimed that any specific product
provided by us infringes any claims of any RAKTL patent. Accordingly, we have not been required to defend any
customers against a claim of infringement under a RAKTL patent. We have, however, received letters from
customers notifying us of the efforts by RAKTL to license its patent portfolio and reminding us of our potential
obligations under the indemnification provisions of our agreements in the event that a claim is asserted.

Some of our customers have licensed certain rights under the RAKTL patent portfolio. Two such customers
who had previously attempted to tender the defense of their products to us informed us that they had entered into
agreements to license certain rights under the RAKTL patents and demanded we indemnify them for unspecified
amounts, including attorney’s fees, paid in connection with the license agreements, We notified these customers that
we believe we do not have any indemnity obligation in connection with the license agreements. We have received no
further response from either customer.

A number of customers, including customers of ours and Edify’s have been sued as defendants in several
lawsuits brought by RAKTL in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Texas and the United
States District Court for the District of Delaware. Several of these defendants who are also customers have notified
us or Edify of the lawsuits pursuant to the indemnity paragraphs of their respective sales agreements and have
indicated to us that the lawsuits could potentially impact the defense and indemnity paragraphs of their respective
sales agreements. Neither we nor Edify believe that we have a current obligation to defend or indemnify these
customers in connection with the current allegations made in the RAKTL lawsuits and when contacted we have
requested that the customers provide additional information concemning the assertions made by RAKTL.

In response to the correspondence from, and litigation initiated by, RAKTL a few of our customers and
customers of Edify have attempted to tender to us the defense of our products under contractual indemnity
provisions. We have informed these customers that, while we fully intend to honor any contractual indemnity
provisions, we do not betieve we currently have any obligation to provide such a defense because RAKTL does not
appear to have made a claim, either in the correspondence or litigation, that any Intervoice product infringes a
RAKTL patent. Some of these customers have disagreed with us and stated that they believe that the statements and
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allegations contained within correspondence and/or litigation pleadings filed by RAKTL can be construed as a
claim against Intervoice products,

Even though no claims have been made by RAKTL that a specific product offered by Intervoice infringes any
claim under the RAKTL patent portfolio, we have received opinions from our outside patent counsel that certain
products and applications we offer do not infringe certain claims of the RAKTL patents. We have also received
opinions from our outside counsel that ceriain claims under the RAKTL patent portfolio are invalid or unen-
forceable. Furthermore, based on the reviews by outside counsel, we are not aware of any valid and enforceable
claims under the RAKTL portfolio that are infringed by our products. If we do become involved in litigation in
connection with the RAKTL patent portfolio, under a contractual indemnity or any other legal theory, we intend to
vigorously contest the claims and to assert appropriate defenses.

We have received letters from Webley Systems (“Webley™), a division of Parus Holdings, Inc. (“Parus™), and
its counsel alleging that certain Webley patents cover one or more of our products and services. In the letters, Parus
offers a license to the Webley patents. As a result of the correspondence, we conducted discussions with Parus,
Based on reviews by our outside counsel, we are not aware of any valid and enforceable claims under the Webley
patents that are infringed by our products or services.

Pending Litigation

David Barrie, et al., on Behalf of Themselves and All Others Similarly Situated v. InterVoice-Brite, Inc., et al.;
No. 3-01CV1071-D, pending in the United States District Court, Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division:

Several related class action lawsuils were filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Texas on behalf of purchasers of common stock of Intervoice during the period from October 12, 1999
through June 6, 2000 (the “Class Period™). Plaintiffs have filed claims, which were consolidated into one
proceeding, under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 and Securities and
Exchange Commission Rule 10b-5 against us as well as certain named current and former officers and
directors of Intervoice on behalf of the alleged class members. In the complaint, Plaintiffs claim that we and the
named current and former officers and directors issued false and misleading statements during the Class Period
concerning the financial condition of Intervoice, the results of the merger with Brite and the alleged future
business projections of Intervoice. Plaintiffs have asserted that these alleged statements resulted in artificially
inflated stock prices, ‘

The District Court dismissed the Plaintiffs’ complaint because it lacked the degree of specificity and
factual support to meet the pleading standards applicable to federal securities litigation. The Plaintiffs’
appealed the dismissal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit, which affirmed the dismissal
in part and reversed in part. The Fifth Circuit remanded a limited number of issues for further proceedings in
the District Court.

On September 26, 2006, the District Court granted the Plaintiffs’ motion to certify a class of people who
purchased Intervoice stock during the Class Period be.lwecn October 12, 1999 and June 6, 2000. On
November 14, 2006. the Fifth Circuit granted our petition to appeal the District Court’s decision to grant
Plaintiffs’ motion to certify a class. The briefing on the merits of our appeal is now complete, and we are
currently waiting for the Fifth Circuit to either schedule oral argument or issue a ruling on the merits. We filed a
motion to stay further discovery pending the Fifih Circuit’s decision on the merits of our appeal, but the District
Court denied our motion. We are in the process of continuing to produce documents in response to the
Plaintiffs’ requests for production. We believe that we and our officers and directors complied with the
applicable securities laws and will continue 1o vigorously defend the case.

Phoenix Solutions, Inc. vs. Sony Electronics, Inc., Case No. C07-2112 (EMC), pending in the United States
District Court for the Northern District of California, San Francisco Division: On December 13, 2006, Phoenix
Solutions, Inc. ("Phoenix”) filed suit against Sony Electronics, Inc. (“Sony™) in the United States District Court for
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the Central District of California for infringement of U.S. Patent Nos. 6,615,172, 6,633,846, 6,665,640 and
7,050,977. On February 9, 2007, Sony filed its answer to Phoenix’s claims of infringement, denied any liability and
filed a counterclaim alleging that the patents were neither valid nor infringed by Sony. On February 26, 2007, Sony
filed a third party complaint against the Company for alleged breach of warranty of title and the warranty against
infringemnent related to the claims of infringement made by Phoenix against Sony. In its third party complaint, Sony
seeks to recover actual damages suffered by it in the event a final judgment is entered against Sony or it is otherwise
liable for any damages, fees or costs arising out of the claims of patent infringement made by Phoenix against the
Sony interactive voice response system. On April 9, 2007, the Company filed its motion to dismiss the third party
complaint. The trial court recently transferred the case to the United States District Court for the Northern District of
California, San Francisco Division, and the case is now styled Phoenix Solutions, Inc. vs. Sony Electronics, Inc.,
Case No. C07-2112 (EMC). In the event that the court does not grant the pending motion to dismiss, the Company
intends to vigorously defend itself against any and ali claims made against it.

- Audit Committee Investigation

During fiscal 2005, our Audit Committee conducied an investigation of certain transactions that occurred
during our fiscal years 2000 through 2002. The Audit Committee was assisted in its investigation by separate
independent legal counsel and a national accounting firm. The Audit Committee reported the results of its
investigation to the SEC, and we are cooperating with the SEC in its own investigation regarding the transactions.
We have provided documents to the SEC in response to a subpoena and informal requests for information about the
transactions, and several of our current and former officers and non-officer employees have provided testimony to
the SEC. Our Audit Committee and its counsel are continuing to monitor our response to the SEC, and they also
have conducted a review of certain documents provided to the SEC which we located after the Audit Committee’s
original investigation. Intervoice is presently in discussions with the SEC about a possible settlement of the matters
covered by the Audit Committee investigation, but there is no assurance that agreement on any settlement will be
reached. We have recorded expense of approximately $0.9 million based on the current status of such settlement
discussions. Intervoice is also honoring our obligation to indemnify, to the extent appropriate, certain current and
former officers and other employees of Intervoice, including our Chief Executive Officer, who received subpoenas
to produce documents and provide testimony to the SEC in connection with the investigation. Furthermore, we are
honoring our obligation to reimburse legal fees incurred by certain recipients of the subpoenas.

The Audit Committee investigation found that we accounted for certain transactions incorrectly during our
fiscal years 2000 through 2002. The Audit Committee investigation concluded that a $0.9 million payment made by
Intervoice to a publicly held supplier purportedly for certain prepaid licenses was linked to an agreement to amend a
1997 warrant issued 10 us by the supplier to permit our cashless exercise of the warrant. As a result, we believe the
$0.9 million payment should have been recorded as a reduction in the $21.4 million gain we recognized on the sale
of the shares underlying the warrant during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 and should not have been recorded as
prepaid license inventory. Our payment to the supplier may have rendered unavailable a nonexclusive registration
exemplion for the sale of the shares underlying the warrant. The Audit Committee investigation also found that we
intentionally provided the same supplier false or misleading documents for such supplier to use to support such
supplier’s improper recognition of revenue in caléndar 2001.

The Audit Committee investigation and review further found that six of the seven customer sates transactions
the Committee investigated were accounted for incorrectly and that there was intentional misconduct in at least one
of those sales transactions. These six transactions occurred at the end of quarlers in which we just met analysts’
" expectations with respect to earnings per share. The Audit Committee found that we improperly recognized revenue
in a quarter-end barter transaction involving approximately 0.4% of annual revenues for fiscal 2000, and that we
improperly accelerated the recognition of revenue in five quarter-end transactions totaling approximately 0.4% and
0.3% of annual revenues in fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2002, respectively. We, and certain of our current and former
officers and the SEC have agreed that Intervoice and the officers will not assert any defenses based on a statute of
limitations with respect (o any action or proceeding against Intervoice or such officers brought, by or on behalf of
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the SEC arising out of the SEC investigation for the time periods set forth in the agreements. As a result of work
performed in responding to the SEC subpoena, the Audit Committee has concluded that Intervoice also improperly
recognized approximately $5.4 million of revenue in two sales transactions during the second and third quarters of
fiscal 2002 because the transactions were subject to oral side agreements that gave our customer expanded rights of
return. We subsequently reversed the $5.4 million of revenue during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 in connection
with a return of the related systems. We also provided documents to the SEC conceming these two additional sales
transactions pursuant to a separate subpoena. Separately, the Audit Committee determined that in September 2001
one of our current executive officers improperly communicated Intervoice information to a shareholder.

Intervoice’s management has concluded, with the concurrence of the Audit Committee and our external
auditors, that restatement of our prior period financial statements to adjust for the findings of the Audit Committee
investigation and review is not necessary. In reaching this conclusion, we considered the impact of the incorrect
accounting on each of the periods affected, the ages of the affected financial statements and the lack of any material
changes in prior period trends as a result of the incorrect accounting. In addition, we noted that since the date of the
most recent transaction reviewed in the investigation, we have restructured our business, made significant
management changes, consolidated our physical operations, significantly reduced our fixed operating costs and
refinanced and repaid all of our major debt obligations. We cannot predict whether we may have future losses
relating to the matiers investigated by the Audit Committee as a result of future claims, if any, including any claims
by the government.

Other Matters

We are a defendant from time to time in lawsuits incidental to our business. Based on currently available
information, we believe that resolution of the lawsuits and other matters described above, is uncertain, and there can
be no assurance that future costs related to such matters would not be material to our financial position or results of
operations. ‘

We are a party to many routine contracts in which we provide general indemnities and warranties in the normal
course of business to third parties for various risks. These indemnities and warranties are discussed in the following
paragraphs. Except in specific circumstances where we have determined that the likelihodd of loss is probable and
the amount of the loss quantifiable, we have not recorded a liability for any of these indemnities. In general, we are
not able to estimate the potential amount of any liability relating to these indemnities and warranties.

Many of our contracts, particularly for hosted sotutions, foreign contracts and contracts with telecommuni-
cation companies, include provisions for the assessment of damages for delayed project completion and/or for our
failure to achieve certain minimum service levels. We have had to pay damages in the past and may have to pay
additional damages in the future. Any such future damages could be significant. '

Our contracts with our customers generally contain qualified indemnifications against third party claims
relating to the infringement of intellectual property as described in “Intellectual Property Matters” above.

Our contracts with our customers also generally contain warranties and, in some cases, general indemnifi-
cations against other unspecified third party and general liability claims. We have liability insurance protecting us
against certain obligations, primarily certain claims related to property damage, that result from these indemnities.

We are obligated under letters of credit totaling approximately $0.5 million issued by a bank to guarantee our
performance under a long-term international managed services contract and related proposals. These letters of
credit expire during fiscal 2008.

We had employment agreements with four executive officers and three other officers at February 28, 2007. One
agreement with an executive officer requires us 1o make termination payments to the officer of one and one-half
times the officer’s annual base compensation in the event the officer’s services are terminated without cause or
payments of up to 2.99 times the officer’s annual compensation including bonuses in connection with a termination
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of the officer’s services within a two year period following a change in ownership of Intervoice, as defined in the
agreement. If the officer with such agreement were terminated for one of the preceding reasons during fiscal 2008,
we would incur costs ranging from $0.6 million to $1.2 million. The agreements with two other executive officers
require us to make termination payments of one and one-half times the officer’s annual base compensation in the
event the officer’s services are terminated without cause or payments of up to two times the officer’s annual base
compensation including bonuses in connection with a termination of the officer’s services within an {8 month
period following a change in ownership of Intervoice, as defined in the agreements. If both of these officers were
terminated for one of the preceding reasons during fiscal 2008, we would incur costs ranging from $0.9 million to
$1.2 million. The agreement with the fourth executive officer, which was amended and restated on October 9, 2006,
required us to make payment of the greater of the compensation for the unexpired term of the contract which would
have expired in December 2007 or one-half of the annual compensation under the contract. We incurred costs of
approximately $0.! million when we terminated this officer’s employment during the first quarter of fiscal 2008.
The remaining agreements with officers provide for their employment through December 2007 for one of the
officers and through August 2008 with respect to the remaining two officers. If we terminated these officers prior to
the expiration of their contracts, we would owe them the greater of their compensation for the unexpired term of the
contracts or one-half of their annual compensation under the contract. If these officers were terminated during fiscal
2008, we would incur costs ranging from $0.6 million to $0.7 million.

Under the terms of our Articles of Incorporation, we indemnify our directors, officers, employees or agents or
any other person serving at our request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation in connection
with a derivative suit if he or she (1) is successful on the merits or otherwise or (2) acted in good faith, and in a
manner he or she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation. We will not
provide indemnification, however, for any claim as to which the person was adjudged liable for negligence or
misconduct unless the court determines that under the circumstances the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to
indemnification. We provide the same category of persons with indemnification in a non-derivative suit only if such
person (1) is successful on the merits or otherwise or (2) acted in good faith, and in a manner he or she reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, had no reason to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. Under the terms of our Bylaws, we also
indemnify our current and former officers and directors to the fullest extent permitted or required under
Article 2.02-1 of the Texas Business Corporation Act.

In connection with certain lawsuits filed against us and certain of our present and former officers and directors
(see “Pending Litigation” above), we have agreed to pay in advance any expenses, including attorneys’ fees,
incurred by such present and former officers and directors in defending such litigation, in accordance with
Article 2.02-1 of the Texas Business Corporation Act and the Company’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws.
Each of these parties has provided us with a written undertaking to repay us the expenses advanced if the person is
ultimately not entitled to indemnification.

We have a qualified obligation to indemnify certain current and former officers and other employees of
Intervoice in connection with activities resulting from the Audit Committee investigation and related SEC inquiries
described in “Audit Committee Investigation™ above.

Texas corporations are authorized to obtain insurance to protect officers and directors from certain liabilities,
including liabilities against which the corporation cannot indemnify its officers and directors. We have obtained
liability insurance for our officers and directors as permitted by Article 2.02-1 of the Texas Business Corporation
Act. Our insurance policies provide coverage for losses and expenses incurred by us and our current and former
directors and officers in connection with claims made under the federal securities laws. These policies, however,
exclude losses and expenses related to the Barrie class action lawsuit, or to other litigation based on claims that are
substantially the same as those in the Barrie class action, and contain other customary provisions to limit or exclude
coverage for certain losses and expenses.

66




INTERVOICE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Note S — Subsequent Event (Unaudited)

In April 2007, we announced a cost reduction program that includes reduced marketing, contractor and other
third party expenditures, as well as departmental consolidation and organizational realignment, Severance,
restructuring and reorganization costs associated with our planned cost reduction program are currently expected
to be in the $1.5 million to $2.5 million range and the majority of such costs are expected to be incurred in the first
quarter of fiscal 2008 which ends May 31, 2007. '
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" SCHEDULE I1
INTERVOICE, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A : Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions Additions
(n @
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
] Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Period

{In millions)

Year Ended. February 28, 2007:

Allowance for doubtful accounts .. ... $1.7 $0.5 $— $0.7XA)_  $1.5
Year Ended February 28, 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ... $0.8 %0.5 $0.5(B) $0.)A)  $1.7
Year Ended February 28, 2005:

Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ... 509 $0.3 — $(0.4)(A)  $0.8

(A) Accounts written off.
(B) Allowance accounts included in Edify acquisition.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure conirols and procedures.  Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have
reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e)
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of February 28, 2007. Based on that review and
evaluation, which included inquiries made to certain other employees, the chief executive officer and chief financial
officer have concluded that our current disclosure controls and procedures, as designed and implemented, are
effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. Such officers also have concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file or
submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive and principal financial officers, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. The management of Intervoice is
responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting as definéd in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Qur internal control aver financial reporting is designed
to provide reasonable assurance to our management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair
presentation of published financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect |
misstatements. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance
with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of February 28, 2007, .
In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COS0) in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework”. Based on this assessment, we
believe that, as of February 28, 2007, our internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of February 28,
2007, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public accounting firm that also audited
our consolidated financial statements. Ernst & Young’s attestation report on management’s assessment of our
internal control over financial reporting follows below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.  There were no changes in our internal control over
financial reporting during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting, '

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting ’

Stockholders and Board of Directors
Intervoice, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessiment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, that Intervoice, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of February 28, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Intervoice, Inc.’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control ¢ver financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s interal control over financial reperting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Intervoice, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of February 28, 2007, is fairly stated, in all matenial respects, based on the COSO criteria,
Also, in our opinion, Intervoice, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of February 28, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Intervoice, Inc. as of February 28, 2007 and 2006, and the related

consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended February 28, 2007, Our report dated May 8, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 8, 2007
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PART I

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

We have adopted a code of ethics applicable to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer and
principal accounting officer. Such code of ethics is included as Exhibit 14 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
additional information required by this item will be contained in the sections entitled “Election of Directors”,
“Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Executive Officers” in our Definitive Proxy
Statement, involving the election of directors, to be filed pursnant to Regulation 14A with the Securities and
Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K (the
“Definitive Proxy Statement”) and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be contained in the section entitled “Executive Compensation™ in
the Definitive Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this item will be contained in the section entitled “Election of Directors” in the
Definitive Proxy Statement and Item 5 of this report on Form 10-K. Such information is incorporated herein by
reference. ' '
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be contained in the section entitled “Certain Transactions and
Director Independence” in the Definitive Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be contained in the section entitled “Auditors”™ in the Definitive
Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

{a) The following consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule of Intervoice, Inc. and

; subsidiaries are included in Item 8.

(1)

(2)

Page
Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. . ... ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 39
Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 28, 2007 and 2006 .. .. ... ... ... .o ot 40
Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended February 28,
200 e e 41
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the
period ended February 28, 2007 . ... .. L e 42
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 28,
00T e e e e e e e e 43
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. . ............... S e 44
Financial Statement Schedule Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts . . . .. ... ... ............. 68

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the

financial statements or notes thereto.

(3)

Exhibits:

The exhibits required to be filed by this Item 15 are set forth in the Index to Exhibits accompanying this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INTERVOICE, INC.

By: fs/ ROBERT E. RITCHEY

Robert E. Ritchey
President and Chief Executive QOfficer

Dated: May 9, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
fs/  ROBERT E. RITCHEY President and Chief Executive Officer May 9, 2007
Robert E. Ritchey and Director
/s/ CRAIG E. HOLMES Executive Vice President, Chief Financial May 9, 2007
Craig E. Holmes Officer and Principal Accounting Officer
/s/  GERALD F, MONTRY Chairman of the Board May 9, 2007

Gerald F. Montry

/s/ SAJ-NICOLE A. JONI Director May 9, 2007
Saj-Nicole A. Joni

fs/ JOSEPH J. PIETROPAOLO Director May 9, 2007
Joseph J. Pietropaolo

/s/ GEORGE C. PLATT Director May 9, 2007
George C. Plat

I's
/s/ DONALD B. REED Director May 9, 2007
Donald B. Reed

/s/ JACK P. REILY Director May 9, 2007
Jack P. Reily
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated November 18, 2005 by and among S1 Corporation, Edify
Corporation, Edify Holding Company, Inc., Intervoice, Inc. and Arrowhead I, Inc. (28)

22 Asset Purchase Agreement dated September 1, 2006 by and between Intervoice, Inc. and Nuasis
Corporation. (31)

3.1 Articles of Incorporation, as amended of Registrant.(1)

3.2 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Registrant.(7)

3.3 Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Registrant.(12)

34 Third Restated Bylaws of Registrant.(19)

4.1 Third Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated as of May 1, 2001 between the Registrant and
Computershare Investor Services, LLC, as Rights Agent.(3)

4.2 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2002, between the Registrant and each of the

Buyers under a Securities Purchase Agreement.(10)

4.3 First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated as of May 29, 2002,
between the Registrant and Computershare Investor Services, LLC, as Rights Agent.(10)

10.1 The InterVoice, Inc. 1990 Incentive Stock Option Plan, as Amended.(5)

10.2 The InterVoice, Inc. 1990 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Employees, as amended. (2)
10.3 InterVoice, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan.(4)

10.4 InterVoice, [nc. 1998 Stock Option Plan.(6)

10.5 Acquisition Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of April 27, 1999, by and among the Company,
InterVoice Acquisition Subsidiary ITI, Inc. (“Acquisition Subsidiary™) and Brite Voice Systems, Inc.(8)

10.6 Patent License Agreement between Lucent Technologies GRL Corp. and InterVoice Limited
Partnership, effective as of October 1, 1999. Portions of this exhibit have been excluded pursuant to a
request for confidential treatment.(7)

10.7 Intervoice, Inc, 1999 Stock Option Plan.(9)

10.8 Second Amended Employment Agreement dated as of February 18, 2002, between the Company and
David W. Brandenburg.(11)

10,9 Employment Agreement dated as of October 23, 2002, between the Company and Robert E. Ritchey.(13)
10.10  Separation Agreement with Rob-Roy J. Graham dated June 25, 2003. (14)
10.11  Intervoice, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended and restated effective June 24, 2003.(15)

10.12  Credit and Security Agreement dated as of January 26, 2004, between the Company and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A.(16)

10.13 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 3, 2004, between the Registrant and Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association (“Wells Fargo™).(18)

10.14  First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of August 17, 2004, between Registrant and Wells
Fargo.(19)

10.15  Fiscal Year 2005 Transition Year Incentive Plan Summary.(19)

10.16  Intervoice, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan.(19)

10.17  Letier Agreement dated November 18, 2004 between Registrant and David W. Brandenburg. (21)

10.18  Summary of Fiscal Year 2005 Second Half Incentive Plan. (20)

10.19  Summary of Fiscal Year 2006 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan. (22)

1020  Summary of Fiscal Year 2006 Non-Employee Director Cash Compensation. (23)

10.21  Employment Agreement effective December 1, 2004 between Registrant and Robert E. Ritchey. (29)

1022  Statement of Terms and Conditions of Employment for Francis Sherlock. (24)

10.23  Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Summary of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award
Agreement for Employees. (25)

10.24  Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan Summary of Stock Option Grant and Stock Option Award
Agreement for Non-employee Directors. (25)

10.25  Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. (26)
10.26  Extension of Health Care Coverage to Non-Employee Directors. (27)
10.27  Salary Increases for Executive Officers. (27)
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.28  Summary of the Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan. (30)

10.29  Employment Agreement effective May 8, 2006 between Registrant and Craig E. Holmes. (32)

10.30  Employment Agreement effective May 8, 2006 between Registrant and James A. Milton. (32)

10.31  Separation Agreement dated as of September 19, 2006 between Registrant and Ronald Nieman. (33)

10.32  Sublease dated as of March 30, 2004, by and between PayPal, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“Sublandlord”y and Nuasis Corporation, a Delaware corporation regarding property known as
303 Bryant Street in the City of Mountain View, California, (34)

1033 Assignment, Assumption and Amendment of Sublease dated as of August 30, 2006, by and between
Nuasis Corporation, as Assignor, Intervoice, Inc., as Assignee and PayPal, Inc., as Sublandlord. (34)

14 Code of Ethics.(17)

21 Subsidiaries. (35)

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. (35)

311 Centification of Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant 10 Rule 13a-14(a) or
Rule 15d-14(a). (35)

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or
Rule 15d-14(a). (35}

32.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350. (35)*

322 Certification by Chief Financial Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350. (35)*

99.1 Pages 12, 13, 18, 38-40, 43 and 45 of the Registration Statement on Form 5-4, as amended
(incorporated by reference to pages 12, 13, 18, 38-40, 43 and 45 of the Registration Statement on
Form S-4/A (Amendment No. One) filed by the Company on July 13, 1999). (7)

{13 Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 1995, filed with the SEC on May 30, 1995.

(2) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC
on April 6, 1994, with respect to the Company’s 1990 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan for Non-Employees,
Registration Number 33-77590.

(3) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to Form 8-A/A (Amendment 3) filed with the SEC on May 9, 2001.

(4) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s 1996 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 29, 1996, filed with the SEC on May 29, 1996.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s 1997 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 1997, filed with the SEC on May 29, 1997,

{(6) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 1998, filed with the SEC on October 14, 1998.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
August 31, 1999, filed with the SEC on October 14, 1999.

(8) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99(b)(1) of the Schedule 14-D1 filed by Brite Voice Systems, Inc. and
Intervoice Acquisition Subsidiary I, Inc. on May 3, 1999.

(9) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on October 15, 1999,
Registration Number 333-89127.

(10) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
May 30, 2002.

(11) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s 2002 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2002, filed with the SEC on May 30, 2002,

(12) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 2002, filed with the SEC on October 15, 2002.
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(13) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2003, filed with the SEC on May 29, 2003.

(14) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended May 31, 2003, filed with the SEC on July 15, 2003.

(15) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 2003, filed with the SEC on October 14, 2003.

(16) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
January 26, 2004.

(17) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2004, filed with the SEC on May 14, 2004.

(18) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
June 4, 2004,

(19} Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 2004, filed with the SEC on October 12, 2004.

(20) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
November 19, 2004.

(21) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended November 30, 2004, filed with the SEC on January 10, 2005.

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on April 28, 2005.
(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on January 21, 2005.

(24) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended November 30, 2003, filed with the SEC on January 9, 2006.

(25) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended August 31, 2005, filed with the SEC on October 7, 2005.

(26) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
June 3, 2005.

(27) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended May 31, 2005, filed with the SEC on July 8, 2005.

(28) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
January 3, 2006.

(29) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2005, fited with the SEC on May 16, 2005.

(30) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
March 10, 2006.

(31} Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
September 6, 2006.

(32) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter
ended May 31, 2006, filed with the SEC on July 10, 2006.

(33) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
October 5, 2006.

(34) Incorporated by reference to exhibits to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
September 20, 2006.

(35) Filed herewith.

* The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 accompany the Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not be deemed “filed” by the Company for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
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. INTERVOICE, INC,
17811 WATERVIEW PARKWAY
DALLAS, TEXAS 75252

DF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON JULY 23, 2007

The annual meeting of shareholders of Intervoice, Inc., a Texas corporation (the “Company”), will be held on Monday, July 23,
2007, at 3:00 p.m., local time at the Intercontinental Hotel, 15201 Dallas Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75248 for the following purposes:

1. To elect seven directors to hold office until their successors have been duly elected and qualified at the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders;

2. To consider and:vote upon a proposal to approve the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan; and
3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed May 30, 2007 as the record date to determine the shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at
the meeting or any adjournment thereof. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on the record date are entitled to notice of
and to vote at the meeting. A complete list of such shareholders will be available for examination at our offices in Dallas, Texas,
during ordinary business hours for a period of 10 days prior to the meeting.

A record of the Company’s activities during the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007 and the financial statements for such fiscal
year are contained in the accompanying 2007 Annual Report. The 2007 Annual Report does not form any part of the material for th
solicitation of proxies. ) :

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting. SHAREHOLDERS ARE URGED, WHETHER OR NOT THEY
PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING, TO COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD AND
TO RETURN IT PROMPTLY IN THE POSTAGE-PAID RETURN ENVELOPE PROVIDED OR TO VOTE BY
INTERNET OR TELEPHONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE INSTRUCTIONS SET FORTH ON THE
ACCOMPANYING PROXY CARD. If a shareholder who has returned a proxy attends the meeting in person, such shareholder may
revoke the proxy and vote in person on all matters submitted at the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Robert E. Ritchey

President and Chief Executive Officer
Dallas, Texas
June 26, 2007




INTERVOICE, INC,
17811 WATERVIEW PARKWAY
DALLAS, TEXAS 75252

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON JULY 23, 2007

INTRODUCTION AND VOTING PROCEDURES

The accompanying proxy card is solicited by and on behalf of our Board of Directors for use at the annual meeting of
shareholders we will hold at the time and place and for the purposes set forth in the foregoing notice. The approximate date on which
we will mail this proxy statement and the accompanying proxy card to our shareholders is June 26, 2007.

Shares represented by properly executed proxy cards will be voted at the meeting in accordance with the directions given. If no
direction is indicated, we will vote such shares for the election of the Board’s seven nominees for director and for the proposal to
approve our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

The Board of Directors is not aware of any other matter to be presented for consideration at the meeting. If any other matter is
properly presented for action at the meeting, the proxy holders represented by properly executed proxy cards will vote the proxies in
accordance with their best judgment in such matters. Such proxy holders may also in their discretion, vote such proxies to adjoum the
meeting or to recess the meeting from time to time. ‘

Any shareholder who returns a proxy has the right to change or revoke the proxy at any time before the vote 15 taken at the
meeting:

* By delivering to our President and Chief Executive Officer, Robert E. Ritchey, at Intervoice, inc., at 17811 Waterview
Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75252 a signed written notice of revocation, bearing a date later than the date of the proxy,
-stating that the proxy is revoked; :

+ By attending the meeting and voting in person (the shareholder’s attendance at the meeting will not, by itself, revoke the
proxy — the shareholder must vote in person at the meeting to revoke a prior proxy);

+ By submitting a later-dated proxy card:
»  If the shareholder voted by telephone or the Internet, by voting at a later time by telephone or the Internet; or

» |f the shareholder has instructed a broker, bank or other nominee to vote the sharechelder’s shares, by following the
directions received from the broker, bank or other nominee to change those instructions.




’——————7——7.

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

Only holders of record of Common Stock at the close of business on May 30, 2007, the record date for the meeting, are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the meeting or any adjournment(s) thereof. The presence of a majority of the Common Stock outstanding on
the recerd date is necessary to constitute a quorum. On the record date for the meeting, there were issued and outstanding 38,863,648
shares of Common Stock. At the meeting, cach shareholder of record on the record date will be entitled to one vote for each share
registered in such shareholder’s name on the record date. Our Articles of Incorporation deny cumulative voting rights. The following
table sets forth certain summary information with respect to the only shareholders who are known to the Company to be the beneficial

owners of more than five percent of the outstanding shares of Commen Stock as of May 30, 2007.

Name and
Address
of Beneficial Number of Shares

Owner Beneficially Owned Percent of Class
BlackRock, Inc. 4.051,724 (1) 10.43%
40 East 52nd Street
New York, NY 10022
Master Value Opportunities Trust 3,213,600 (2) 8.27%
800 Scudders Mill Road
Plainsboro, NJ 08536
Franklin Resources, Inc., 2,305,913 (3) 5.93%

Franklin Templeton Portfolio
Advisors, Inc., Charies B.
Johnson, and

Rupert H. Johnson, Jr.

One Franklin Parkway

San Mateo, CA 94403-1906

(1) A Schedule 13G/A dated April 30, 2007 was filed by BlackRock, Inc., on behalf of itself and its subsidiaries, disclosing that they
may be deemed to beneficially own 4,051,724 shares of Common Stock. The Schedule 13G recites that BlackRock, Inc. has
shared voting and dispositive power for all 4,051,724 shares. .

(2) A Schedule 13G/A dated April 30, 2007 was filed by Master Value Opportunities Trust, disclosing that tﬁey may be deemed to
beneficially own 3,213,600 shares of Common Stock. The Schedule 13G recites that Master Value Opportunities Trust has shared
voting and dispositive power for ail 3,213,600 shares.

(3) A Schedule 13G dated December 31, 2006 was filed by Franklin Resources, [nc., Charles B. Johnson, Rupert H. Johnson, Jr., and
Franklin Templeton Portfolic Advisers, Inc., disclosing that they may be deemed to beneficially own 2,305,913 shares of
Commen Stock. The Schedule 13G recites that Franklin Templeton Portfolio Advisors Inc. holds sole voting ahd dispositive
power for all 2,305,913 shares.




VYOTING PROCEDURES AND TABULATION

We will appoint one or more inspectors of election to act at the meeting and to make a written report of the results of the meeting.
Prior to the meeting, the inspectors will sign an cath to perform their duties in an impartial manner and to the best of their abilities.
The inspectors will ascertain the number of shares outstanding and the voting power of each of such shares, determine the shares
represented at the meeting and the validity of proxies and ballots, count all votes and ballots and perform certain other duties as
required by law. The inspectors will tabulate the number of votes cast for or withheld as to the vote on each nominee for director and
for, against or abstained from the proposal to approve the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

With regard to the election of directors, votes may be cast in favor of or withheld from each nominee. Votes that are withheld
from a nominee will have the same effect as a vote cast against such nominee. Directors are elected by a majority of the shares of
Common Stock of the Company present in person or by proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote.

The proposal to approve the Company’s 2007 ‘Stock Incentive Plan must be approved by a majority of the shares of Common
Stock present or represented and voting on the proposal at the meeting. If a shareholder marks a ballot or proxy card to abstain from
voting on the proposal to approve the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, it will have the same effect as a vote cast “AGAINST”
the proposal. ! a

If we receive a signed proxy card with no indication of the manner in which to vote shares on a particular propesal, we will vote
the shares in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors for such proposal and, in the case of the seven nominees
for election to the Board of Directors, “FOR” the election of the seven nominees and, in the case of the Company’s 2007 Stock
Incentive Plan, “FOR” the approval of the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

Brokers who hold shares in street name for customers ate required to vote as the beneficial owners instruct. A “broker non-vote”
occurs when a broker does not have discretionary voting power with respect to a proposal and has not received instructions from the
beneficial owner. Brokers are not permitted to vote on non-discretionary items if they have not received instructions from the
beneficial owners. Brokers are permitted to indicate a “broker non-vote” on non-discretionary items absent instructions from the
beneficial owner. Broker non-votes are treated as shares that are present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining whether a
quorum is present at the meeting. Broker non-votes relating to a proposal are not counted as votes cast with respect to that proposal.

»




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Following is certain information regarding certain executive officers of the Company. Information regarding the only other
executive officer of the Company, Robert E. Ritchey, President and Chief Executive Officer, is included under “Proposal |. Election
of Directors.”

H. Don Brown, age 51, is Senior Vice President — Human Resources and Real Estate, a position he has held since February
2006. Mr. Brown was Executive Vice President ~ Human Resources from July 2002 through February 2006. Prior to that time, he
held the position of Vice President of Human Resources from September 1995 until July 2002. From November 1994 to August 1995,
Mr. Brown served as Director of Human Resources,

Kenneth A. Goldberg, age 43, is Senior Vice President —- Corporate Development and Strategy, a position he has held since
February 28, 2007. Mr. Goldberg was Senior Vice President, Corporate Development and Marketing from August 2005 to February
28, 2007. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Goldberg was Vice President of Business Development for BEA Systems, Inc., a publicly
traded provider of application infrastructure seftware, from December 2004 to August 2005. He served BEA Systems, Inc. as Senior
Director of Business Development from June 2001 to December 2004. Mr. Goldberg was Chief Executive Officer and President, as
well as a founder of Cloud Pop, Inc., an e-commerce application service provider, from October 1999 to June 2001. Cloud Pop, Inc.
filed Chapter 7 bankruptcy on December 11, 2002.

Craig E. Holmes, age 50, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since joining the Company in
August 2003. He was appointed acting Principal Accounting Officer in May 2007. Prior to joining the Company, {rom September
2002 to July 2003 Mr. Holmes provided operational and financial consulting to a variety of companies. From August 2001 to June
2002 Mr. Holmes served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Masergy Communications, Inc., a network
services and equipment provider. From July 1999 to June 2001 Mr. Holmes served as Chief Financial Officer of EpicRealm Inc., a
software development and network services company. From September 1995 to June 1999 Mr. Holmes served as Vice President and
Chief Accounting Officer and then Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Excel Communications, Inc., a provider of
telecommunications equipment and services,

Dean C. Howell, age 49, is Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. Howell was Executive Vice President and
General Counsel from July 2002 through February 2006, and was elected Secretary in June of 2004. He held the position of Vice
President and General Counse! from July 2000 until July 2002. From March 1996 to June 2000, he served as Vice President and
Corporate Counsel and from Qctober 1992 to February 1996, as Legatl Counsel.

James A, Milton, age 46, is Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, a position he has held since the
commencement of his employment by the Company on January 30, 2006. From October 2004 until December 2005, Mr. Milton was
Executive Vice President of Global Sales and Services for UGS Corporation, a product lifecycle management software company.
Prior to joining UGS, from May 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Milton served as Senior Vice President and Managing Director for the
Americas for the Customer Solutions Group of Hewlett-Packard, a technology solutions provider to consumers, businesses and
institutions giobally. From January 2000 to May 2002, Mr. Milton was Senior Vice President and General Manager, North America
for Compaq Computer Corporation, a leading supplier of Internet infrastructure and access solutions.

Michael J. Poleyn, age 49, is currently Senior Vice President, Engineering and Chief Technology Officer, a position he has held
since August 2004. Prior to such time, Mr. Poleyn served as Senior Vice President, Engineering, a position he held from July 2002 to
August 2004. Prior to his promotion, Mr. Poleyn served as Vice President, Research and Development for the Company’s Enterprise
Solutions Division, a position he had held since March 2001. From December 2000 to February 2001, Mr. Polcyn served as Vice
President, Engineering. From March 1998 to December 2000, Mr. Polcyn served as Vice President, Packaged Products Line of
Business. Prior thereto, he served as Vice President, Business Development and Product Marketing from December 1995 to March
1998.

Francis G. Sherlock, age 46, is Senior Vice President and Managing Director EMEA, a position he has held since Januvary 2006,
Mr. Sherlock served as Senior Vice President, Operations from June 2002 until Janvary 2006. Mr. Sherlock served as Senior Vice
President and General Manager from March 2001 until June 2002. Prior to such time, Mr. Sherlock served as Director, Operations
from June 1999 to March 2001.




PROPOSAL 1. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The operation of our business and affairs is managed by and under the direction of the Board of Directors, which exercises all of
our corporate powers and establishes broad corporate policies. Under our Bylaws, we must have at least three and no more than eleven
director positions on the Board of Directors as from time to time fixed and determined by a vote of a majority of the directors serving
at the time of such vote. The number of director positions presently constituting the Board is seven (a number that cannot be increased
except in accordance with the Board Representation and Govermnance Agreement discussed below). The seven directors who are
elected at the meeting will serve until the next annual meeting of shareholders and untit their successors have been duly elected and
qualified. The seven nominees are the current directors of the Company: David W. Brandenburg, Daniel D. Hammond, Timothy W.
Harris, Gerald F. Montry, George C. Platt, Donald B, Reed and Robert E. Ritchey. During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, the
Board of Directors held 13 meetings. In addition, the Board of Directors held two special meetings of the outside members of the
Board. Each of the nominees who was a director in fiscal 2007 attended at least 75% of the aggregate of the total number of meetings
of the Board of Directors during his or her tenure as a director and the total number of meetings of any committees of the Board of
Directors on which he or she served during the last fiscal year.

Directors are ¢lected by a majority of the shares of Common Stock of the Company present in person or by proxy at the meeting
and entitled 10 vote, Votes may be cast in favor of or withheld from each nominee. All duly submitted and un-revoked proxies in the
form accompanying this proxy statement will be voted for the nominees selected by the Board of Directors except where authorization
50 to vote is withheld. Voles that are withheld from a nominee will have the same effect as a vote cast against such nominee. If any
nominee becomes unable or unwilling to serve (which is not presently foreseen), the persons designated as proxies will have full
discretion to cast votes for another person designated by the Board (acting in accordance with the Board Representation and
Governance Agreement), THE BOARD RECOMMENDS THAT SHAREHOLDERS VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF ITS
SEVEN NOMINEES.

BOARD REPRESENTATION AND GOVERNANCE AGREEMENT

On June 22, 2007, in connection with the resolution of a proxy solicitation that was initiated by David W. Brandenburg seeking to
have seven of his nominees elected to the Board of Directors, the Company entered into a Board Representation and Governance
Agreement (or Governance Agreement) with Mr. Brandenburg. Each of Saj-nicole A. Joni, Joseph J. Pietropaolo and Jack P. Reily
(the Outgoing Directors) resigned from the Board of Directors on June 22, 2007. The Governance Agreement was approved by the
Board of Directors following the resignation of the Qutgoing Directors. The following is a summary of the Governance Agreement,
which summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the Governance Agreement, which the Company filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 25, 2007 as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K.

Appointment of New Nominees Prior 1o the 2007 Annual Meeting. The Company has agreed to appoint Mr. Brandenburg, Daniel
D. Hammond and Timothy W. Harris (or collectively the New Nominees) as directors to fill the three vacancies on the Board of
Directors created by the resignations of the Qutgoing Directors, each to a term which will expire at the Company’s 2007 annual
meeting. These appointments were made on June 22, 2007,

2007 Annual Meeting. Unless the Board of Directors has determined, in accordance with the Governance Agreement, that its
fiduciary duties require it to act otherwise, the Company has agreed to cause the slate of nominees standing for election at the 2007
annual meeting to include the New Nominees as well as the “Incumbent Slate” consisting of Gerald F. Montry, George C. Platt,
Donald B. Reed and Robert E. Ritchey.

In connection with the 2007 annual meeting, the Company has also agreed to, among other things -

* refrain from nominating or recommending any person for election to the Board of Directors except the New
Nominees and the Incumbent Slate;

*  use its reasonable best efforts to solicit proxies in favor of the election of the New Nominees and the Incumbent
Slate; and

»  vote all valid proxies at the 2007 Annual Meeting, and cause all valid proxies received by the Company to be voted,
in the manner specified by such proxies; provided that if express directions are not provided by the shareholder, all
such proxies shail be voted in such manner as will assure the election of each member of the'Incumbent Slate and
each of the New Nominees.




Other Meetings or Actions of Shareholders. The Company (unless the Board of Directors has determined, in accordance with the
Governance Agreement, that its fiduciary duties require it to act otherwise) and Mr. Brandenburg have agreed to -

at all times prior to the election of directors at the Company’s 2008 annual meeting of shareholders, to cause such
party’s slate and the Company’s management to refrain from calling any special meetings of shareholders for the
purpose of removing any of the other party’s slate or taking any action to curtail the term of any of the other party’s
nominees; and

with respect to any election of directors or any meeting of shareholders occurring prior 10 the 2008 annual meeting,
to recommend against, and to cause each member of such party’s slate to recommend against, the removal of any
nominee of the other party then serving as a director, or curtailment of the term of any of the other party’s nominees,
and shall use its or his reasonable best efforts to solicit proxies against any such action.

Charter Documents. The Company has agreed to cause the Incumbent Slate and management to refrain from, at all times through
the 2008 annual meeting, facilitating any amendments to, or taking any action under, the Company’s organizational documents that
would be inconsistent with the intent of the Governance Agreement, including any increase in the size of the Board of Directors.

Board Leadership. Concurrently with appointment of the New Nominees as members of the Board, the Board of Directors will
appoint Mr. Brandenburg as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Daniel D. Hammond as Vice Chairman, and at all times through
the 2008 annual meeting -

Mr. Brandenburg will continue to serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Daniel D. Hammond will
continue to serve as Vice Chairman;

the Board of Directors will appoint Mr. Brandenburg as Chairman of the Board of Directors and Daniel D.
Hammond as Vice Chairman,

the Company wiil not take, and shail cause the Incumbent Siate to refrain from taking, any action without the prior
written consent of Mr. Brandenburg that would have the effect of diminishing the authority of the Chairman or Vice
Chairman;

the Vice Chairman will, in the absence or disability of the Chairman, have the duties, authority and powers of the
Chairman; and

the Vice Chairman will have such other duties, authority and powers as the Chairman may from time to time
delegate. '

Committee Representation. Concurrently with the execution of the Governance Agreement and pursuant thereto, the Board of
Directors will reconstitute its committees as follows:

Audit Committee: Gerald F. Montry — Chair, Timothy W. Harris and Donald B. Reed.

Compensation Committee: Donald B. Reed — Chair, Daniel D. Hammond and Timothy W. Harris.

Executive Committee: David W. Brandenburg — Chair, Robert E. Ritchey and George C. Platt.

Financial and Strategic Planning Committee: Daniel D. Hammond — Chair, Gerald F. Montry and George C. Platt.

Nominating Committee: Timothy W. Harris — Chair and Donald B. Reed.

Effective December 1, 2007 (when Mr. Brandenburg is expected to be *independent” under Nasdaq rules), and continuing
through the 2008 annual meeting, the Board of Directors will appoint Mr. Brandenburg as a member of the Nominating Committee.
Also, in the event that any other Board committee is created at any time through the 2008 annual meeting, the Board of Directors will
appoint at least one New Nominee to such committee. At all times through the 2008 annual meeting, unless required by applicable
law or applicable stock exchange rules, or with the prior consent of the New Nominees which shall not be unreasonably withheld, no
committees are to be disbanded and no amendments may be made to any committee charter.




Replacement of New Nominees. If at any time through the 2008 annual meeting, any of the New Nominees cannot serve as a
nominee or a director of the Company, Mr. Brandenburg will be entitled to appoint a replacement nominee or director; however,
unless such proposed replacement is one of four specified individuals (Stuart Barab, Wilson David “Bill” Fargo, Mark Weinzierl and
Michael J. Willner), such replacement ngminee or director must be reasonably acceptable to the Nominating Committee.

Replacement of Nominees with Respect to Incumbent Slate. 1f at any time through the 2008 annual meeting, any member of the
Incumbent Slate cannot serve as a nominee or director of the Company, Gerald F. Montry will be entitled to appeint a replacement
nominee or director; however, such replacement nominee or director must be reasonably acceptable to the Nominating Committee.

No Other Matters to be Presented for Shareholder Approval. The Company has agreed not to present any matter for a
shareholder vote at the 2007 annual meeting other than the matters described in Propasal Nos. 1 and 2 in this proxy statement.

Termination of Proxy Solicitation. Concurrently with appointment of the New Nominees as directors of the Company and their
nomination for election to the Board of Directors at the 2007 Annual Meeting in accordance with the Governance Agreement, Mr.
Brandenburg has agreed to withdraw his previous nomination of seven nominees for election to the Board of Directors and terminate
his retated proxy solicitation with respect to the election of directors at the 2007 Annual Meeting, notify the SEC of the termination of
his proxy solicitation, withdraw his demand to inspect the Company’s shareholder records and his related request pursuant to Rule 14a
7 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), for a shareholder list, and amend his Schedule 13D to
indicate the termination of his proxy solicitation and that, under Rule 13d-5(b)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act, he and the
other reporting persons filing the amended Schedule i3D, are no longer deemed to have beneficial ownership, for purposes of
Sections 13(d)} and 13(g) of the Exchange Act, of all equity securities of the Company beneficially owned by each of the other
reporting persons. :

Restrictions on Future Participation in Proxy Solicitations. For so long as at least three of the New Nominees are serving as
members of the Board of Directors, and provided that the Governance Agreement has not been breached in any material respect by the
Company, and subject to certain exceptions set forth in the Governance Agreement, Mr. Brandenburg has agreed not to, except as
participants in any “solicitation” (as such term is used in the proxy rules of the SEC) conducted by or on behalf of the Company, (i)
with respect to the Company, make, engage or in any way participate in, directly or indirectly, any third party “solicitation™ of proxies
or consents (whether or not relating to the election or removal of directors); (ii) seek to advise, encourage or influence any person with
respect to the voting of any Common Stock except in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors; (iii) except as
specifically and expressly set forth in the Governance Agreement, seek, alone or in concert with others, election or appointment to, or
representation on, or nominate or propose the nomination of any candidate to, the Board of Directors; or (iv) initiate, propose or
otherwise “solicit” (as such term is used in the proxy rules of the SEC) the Company's shareholders for the approval of shareholder
proposals whether made pursuant to Rule 14a-8 or Rule 14a-4 under the Exchange Act, or otherwise, or cause or encourage or attempt
to cause or encourage any other person to initiate any such shareholder proposal, regardless of its purpose, or otherwise communicate
with the Company’s shareholders or others pursuant to Rule 14a-1{1}(2)(iv}{A) under the Exchange Act.

Reimbursement of Out-of-Pocket Expenses. The Company has agreed to reimburse Mr. Brandenburg for all out-of-pocket legal
and other expenses incurred by him in connection with his proxy solicitation and the negotiation, execution and performance of the
Governance Agreement up to $500,000. Additionally, the Company has agreed to reimburse the New Nominees and members of the
Incumbent Slate for separate counsel in connection with matters relating to the Governance Agreement and their service on the Board
of Directors.

Brandenburg Voting Covenant. Mr. Brandenburg has agreed to cause all shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by him
and his affiliates, as to which he is entitled to vote at the 2007 annual meeting, to be voted in favor of (i} the election of the New
Nominees and the Incumbent Slate; and (ii} the approval of the Company’s 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

Certain Proposed Initiatives. As a material inducement for Mr. Brandenburg to enter into the Governance Agreement and
terminate his proxy solicitation, the Company has agreed that the Board of Directors will review the Company’s selling, general and
administrative expenses, explore opportunities to increase product sales revenue, including, but not limited to, expanding the sales
force, evaluate the strategic direction of the Company’s current and future products and services and the alignment of its research and
development efforts with such strategic direction, explore the feasibility of monetizing the Company’s patent portfolio through the
implementation of a royalty generating licensing program, and conduct a review of performance-based compensation medels as part
of an effort to more closely align executive and board compensation with the enhancement of shareholder value.




DIRECTOR RESIGNATION AGREEMENTS

As previously mentioned, each of Saj-nicole A. Joni, Joseph J. Pietropaolo and Jack P. Reily resigned from the Board of Directors
on June 22, 2007. In connection with their resignations, they each entered into substantially identical letter agreements with the
Company, dated June 22, 2007, The Company filed the letter agreements with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 25,
2007 as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K.

In the letter agreements, each of the resigning directors agreed (i) to resign from the Board of Directors, effective as of June 22,
2007 and (ii) not to stand for re-election as a director at the Company’s 2007 annual meeting of shareholders. The letter agreements
provide that the directors are not resigning because of any disagreement on any matter relating to the Company’s operations, policies
or practices, but rather at the request of the Company to enable the New Nominees to join the Board of Directors promptly following
the directors’ resignations. The letter agreements further provide that the resigning directors were not a party to, and did not vote on,
the Company’s decision to enter into the Governance Agreement with David W. Brandenburg. As consideration for their resignations,
each of the resigning directors is to receive a lump sum payment of $20,000, reimbursement of certain legal fees incurred in
connection with their review of the letter agreements and, in the case of Saj-nicole A. Joni, an additional $750. Additionally, (i) those
stock options held by the resigning directors that were granted following the 2006 annual meeting vested as of the effective date of the
resignations, and (ii) any stock options held by the resigning directors that would otherwise expire less than 12 months following their
resignations have been amended to expire 12 months after the effective date of the resignations.

Subject to certain exceptions, the parties are releasing and indemnifying each other to the fullest extent permitted by applicable
law. Additionally, the Outgoing Directors continue to be covered by the Company’s directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
their acts as a director through the effective date of their resignations.

CERTAIN INFORMATION REGARDING NOMINEES
Set forth below is certain information with respect to the seven nominees for election to the Board of Directors.

David W. Brandenburg, age 62, is currently President of the Brandenburg Life Foundation, a 501(c)(3) charitable foundation
which he founded with his wife in 1996. Mr. Brandenburg retired as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
November 2004 and left the Company’s Beard of Directors in December 2004. He had re-joined the Company as a Director in 1997
and became the Company’s Chief Executive Officer in June 2000. He also served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company from December 2000 to November 2004 and as President of the Company from February 2001 to July 2002, Prior to re-
joining the Company, from November 1997 until its merger with Davox Corporation in May 1998, Mr. Brandenburg served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of AnswerSoft, Inc., a global provider of call center software automation solutions. From
December 1994 until May 1995, Mr. Brandenburg served as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. In addition,
he served as the Company’s President from 1991 to 1994, as Chief Operating Officer of the Company from 1990 to 1991, and as a
Director of the Company from 1989 until 1995, Mr, Brandenburg rejoined the Company’s Board of Directors in June 2007 and has
served as Chairman of the Board since that time.

Daniel D. Hammond, age 55, is currently President of Hammond Development International, Inc., a privately-held real estate
investment company. Prior to this position, Mr. Hammond served in an advisory capacity to the Company and its former Chief
Executive Officer, David W. Brandenburg, from January 2001 to February 2004. Mr. Hammond is a founder of the Company and
served as its Chief Executive Officer from June 1986 to June 2000. He also served on the Company’s Board of Directors from January
1984 until December 2000 and as Chairman of its Board of Directors from December 1990 to December 2000. Mr. Hammond is the
named inventor of five U.S. patents issued to the Company and one U.S. patent pending. Mr. Hammond rejoined the Company’s
Board of Directors in June 2007 and has served as Vice Chairman of the Board since that time.

Timothy W. Harris, age 49, is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of Questia Media, Inc., a privately-held
company which provides copyrighted material in online digital libraries. Mr. Harris has served on the Board of Directors of Questia
Media since December 2002, Prior to his role as Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Harris held other positions with Questia Media
including as Vice President and Chief Operating Officer from January 2000 to December 2005 and as Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer from October 1999 to May 2004. Prior 1o joining Questia Media, Mr. Harris worked for Compaq Computer
Corporation from 1983 to 1998 in various positions, culminating in his role as Vice President and General Manager of their
Commercial Desktop Division. His previous positions included Vice President, General Manager, Value Desktop Division; Vice
President, Controller Deskiop PC Division; and Vice President, Controller Personal Computer Division. Mr. Harris has served as a
director of the Company since June 2007.
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Gerald F. Montry, age 68, has served, since 1998, as the Managing Partner of Mont Reuil & Co., a private investment firm, Mr,
Montry served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of DSC Communications Corporation, a telecommunications
equipment company, from 1986 until it was acquired by Alcatel in 1998. Prior to the acquisition he also served DSC as a member of
the Board of Directors. Prior to his tenure at DSC, Mr. Montry held management positions within the aerospace, defense and computer
industries. In addition to serving on the Company’s Board, Mr. Montry serves on the Board of Directors of TranSwitch Corporation.
Mr. Montry has served as a director of the Company since October 2002 and from November 2004 until June 2007 served as the
Company’s Chairman of the Board.

George C. Platt, age 66, is currenily the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of Viewcast.com, Inc., d.b.a.
Viewcast Corporation, a company engaged in video networking and internet video streaming, a position he has held since September
2006. Prior to his recent promotion, Mr. Platt served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Viewcast Corporation from October
1999 until September 2006. From January 1991 to September 1999 Mr. Platt served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of
InteCom Inc,, a wholly owned subsidiary of Matra-Hachette, a company engaged in the manufacture and sale of telephone switching
systems. Mr. Platt has served as a director of the Company since 1991,

Donald B. Reed, age 62, served as Chief Executive Officer of Cable Wireless Global from May 2000 to January 2003. Cable
Wireless Global incorporated Cable and Wireless ple’s wholly owned operations in the United States, United Kingdom, Europe and
Japan and was a provider of internet protocel (IP) and data services to business customers. From May 1999 until May 2000 Mr. Reed
served Cable and Wireless plc as Chief Executive Officer responsible for Global Services. Mr. Reed served on the Board of Directors
of Cable and Wireless ple from August 2000 to December 2002, Mr. Reed’s career includes 30 years at NYNEX (now part of
Verizon), a regional telephone operating company. From 1995 to 1997 Mr. Reed served NYNEX as President and Group Executive,
with responsibility for directing the company’s regional, national and international government affairs, public policy mmtiatives,
legislative and regulatory matters and public relations. Mr. Reed currently serves on the Board of Directors of Aggregate Industries,
CSG Systems International, Inc., St. Lawrence Cement Group, Inc. and Idearc, Inc. Mr. Reed has served as a director of the Company
since March 2004,

Robert E. Ritchey, age 60, is President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, a position he has held since November
2004, From July 2002 until his promotion, Mr. Ritchey served as President of the Company. From December 2000 until July 2002,
Mr. Ritchey served as President and General Manager Enterprise Solutions Division. Prior to joining the Company, from May 1999 to
November 2000, Mr. Ritchey served as Vice President and General Manager of Notifier Integrated Systems, a subsidiary of
Honeywell International, a provider of network based integration products to the electronic securltv and building controls industry.
Mr, Ritchey has served as a director of the Company since June 2004,
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Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers

The tabulation below sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of shares of Common Stock, as of
May 30, 2007, of each director and nominee for director of the Company, each executive officer listed in the Summary Compensation
Table included elsewhere in this proxy statement, and all directors, nominees for director and executive officers of the Company as a

group.

: Common Stock

' Beneficially Owned(1)
Percent of
Name Number of Shares Class

Directors and Nominees for Director
David W: Brandenburg 1,429,162(2) 3.68%
Daniel D. Hammond . 500,000(2) 1.29%
L 3

Timothy W. Harris 19,000(2)
Gerald F. Montry 222,000 (2) *
George C. Platt 92,500 (2) *
Donald B. Reed 63,000(2) *
Robert E. Ritchey 968,369 (2) 2.49%
Common Stock
Beneficially Owned(1)
Percent of
Name Number of Shares Class
Named Executive Officers (who are not a director or nominee named above)
Craig E. Holmes. 268,689 (3) *
Francis G. Sherlock ' 124,167 (3) *
James A. Milton 125,000 (3) *
Kenneth A, Goldberg ’ 62,666 (3) *

All Directors and Nominees for Director and Executive Officers as a Group (14) ﬁérsons 4.611,526 (4) 11.87%

* Less than 1%

3

(1) Unless otherwise indicated, all shares listed are directly held with sole voting and investment power.

(2) Shares are not outstanding but are subject to currently exercisable stock options, other than 1,429,162 shares held by Mr.
Brandenburg, 500,000 shares held by Mr. Hammond, 19,000 shares held by Mr. Harris, 7,500 shares held by Mr. Platt, 3,000
shares held by Mr. Reed, 55,869 shares held by Mr. Ritchey and 102,000 shares held directly by Mr. Montry and 50,000 shares
held indirectly by Mr. Montry in a family limited partnership.

(3) Shares are not outstanding but are subject to currently exercisable stock options, other than 36,189 shares held by Mr. Holmes,
6,000 shares held by Mr. Goldberg, and 50,000 shares held indirectly by Mr. Milton in a family trust.

(4) Consists of shares beneficially owned by the Company’s executive officers and directors. The shares beneficially owned by all
directors and executive officers as a group include 2,381,084 shares issuable upon exercise of currently exercisable options and
options which are exercisable within 60 days after June 25, 2007. The total also includes 102,200 shares held in trusts, family
partnerships, or by spouses of directors and executive officers. The inclusion of shares in this table as beneficially owned is not an
admission of beneficial ownership.
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Audit Committee Report .

We have reviewed and discussed the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended February 28, 2007 with
management and have discussed with Ernst & Young LLP, certified public accountants, the independent auditors and accountants for
the Company, the matters required to be discussed by SAS 61 (Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU Section 380Q), as
amended, and other SEC regulations with respect to those statements. ‘

We have been advised of the content of, and have received the written disclosures and the lefter from Ernst & Young LLP
required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees) and have discussed
with Ernst & Young LLP its independence in connection with its audit of the Company’s most recent financial statements. Based on
this review and these discussions, we recommended to the Board of Directors that these audited financial statements be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007 for filing with the SEC.

Joseph J. Pietropaolo, Gerald F. Montry and Jack P. Reily comprise the Audit Committee. As of the date of this report, all are
independent, as defined in Rule 4200(2)(15) of the Nasdaq Stock Market,

The Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee.

The information in this Audit Committee report shall not be deemed to be seliciting material, or be filed with the SEC or subject
to Regulation 14A or 14C or to liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Act of 1933, nor shall it be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that the
Company specifically incorporates these paragraphs by reference.

May 29, 2007

AUDIT COMMITTEE OF - .
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jaseph J. Pietropaolo, Chairman ' L,
Gerald F. Montry
Jack P. Reily
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

Annual Retainers and Meeting Fees. All directors who are not also our employees receive an annual retainer of $20,000 for
serving as a director of the Company. The Chairman of the Board, who is not an employee, receives an annual retainer of $50,000 for
serving the Board as Chairman. The Chairman of the Audit Committee and Chairman of the Compensation Committee receive annual
retainers of $10,000 and $5,000, respectively. The directors are also reimbursed for travel, lodging and related expenses incurred in
attending Board and committee meetings and for certain legal expenses. Directors who are not also our employees receive a fee of
$1,500 per day for each Board, committee or subcommittee meeting attended in person, and $750 per day for each such meeting
attended by phone conference, provided that no director will receive attendance fees with respect to more than two meetings which
occur on the same day and no director will receive a fee for a meeting if the only item of business at the meeting is a resolution to
approve minutes of prior meetings.

Stack Oprions. In addition to the compensation set forth above, each non-employee director is eligible to receive equity based
incentive awards under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The Board granted each non-employee director serving in fiscal 2007 an option
to purchase 15,000 shares of Common Stock on July 19, 2006 pursuant to the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, at an exercise price of
$6.615, which options can be exercised commencing on the date of 2007 annual meeting.

Current Freeze on Board Compensation. During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, the Board resolved to freeze compensation for
our directors until the Company’s performance improves or the Board determines that other circumstances dictate that it would be
appropriate to increase or offer additional compensation. The freeze precludes increases in annual retainers and meeting fees and new
stock option grants.

Director Compensation(1)

Fees Earned or Paid in Option Al Other
Name Cash(8)(2) Awards(S)1)(3)(4) Compensation($) Total (8)
Saj-nicole A. Joni, Ph.D. $ 62,000 $49.211 0 $111,211
Gerald F. Montry 126,250 49,211 0 175,461
Joseph J. Pictropaolo 71,250 49211 0 120,461
George C. Platt 41,000 49,211 0 90,211
Donald B. Reed 67,000 49,211 0 116,211
Jack P. Reily 64,250 49,211 0 113,461

{1) The amounts in the column entitled “Option Awards” reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting
purposes for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, in accordance with SFAS §23R. Assumptions used in the calculation of
these amounts are included in Note J to the Company’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007,
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(2) During our fiscal quarter ending May 31, 2007 we discovered we inadvertently made overpayments and underpayments to certain
non-employee directors for fiscal 2007, The overpayments in the aggregate amount of $10,500 were offset against fees earned by
the directors during fiscal 2008 and are not included in the column entitled “Fees Earned or Paid in Cash.” The underpayments in
the aggregate amount of $8,500 were paid during fiscal 2008 and are included in the column entitled “Fees Earned or Paid in
Cash.”

(3) As of February 28, 2007, the following non-employee directors held options covering the following aggregate number of shares
outstanding: Ms. Joni — 60,000 shares, of which 45,000 shares are exercisable; Mr. Montry ~ 70,000 shares, of which 55,000
shares are exercisable; Mr, Pietropaolo — 70,000 shares, of which 55,000 shares are exercisable; Mr. Platt — 85,000 shares, of
which 70,000 shares are exercisable; Mr, Reed — 60,000 shares, of which 45,000 shares are exercisable; and Mr, Reily — 70,000
shares, of which 55,000 shares are exercisable. All unvested options held by Ms. Joni, Mr. Pietropaolo and Mr. Reily were vested
on June 22, 2007. See “Director Resignation Agreements.”

(4) The grant date fair value of each director’s option awards granted during fiscal 2007, computed in accordance with SFAS 123R,
was $47,100.
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Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has established committees to address certain specific areas of the Board’s responsibility. These
committees include the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, Nominating Committee, Executive Committee, and Finance and
Strategic Planning Committee. The composition and chairmanships of these committees are subject to the Governance Agreement.
See “Board Representation and Governance Agreement.” The Board of Directors has determined that Daniel D. Hammond, Timothy
W. Harris, Gerald F. Montry and Donald B. Reed are “independent directors” under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s Listing
Standards. In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that Saj-nicole Joni, Ph.D., Joseph J. Pietropaclo and Jack P. Reily,
former directors who resigned on June 22, 2007, were “independent directors” under Rule 4200{a){15) of the NASD’s Listing
Standards. Mr. Brandenburg is nat currently deemed to be an “independent director” under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s Listing
Standards due to his previous employment with the Company less than three years ago. Effective December 1, 2007, Mr.
Brandenburg is expected to be able to qualify as an “independent director” under Rule 4200(a)(15} of the NASD’s Listing Standards.

The Audit Committee, which held 20 meetings during fiscal 2007, has the primary responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
financial information we report. Its functions include: (a) the appointment, compensation and oversight of independent auditors; (b)
reviewing the scope of the annual audit to be performed by the independent auditors prior to commencement of the audit; (c)
reviewing the results of those audits; (d) reviewing the arganization and scope of our internal system of audit and financial controls;
{e) meeting periodically with management and the independent public accountants to review financial, accounting and internal control
matters; (f) meeting periodically with the independent public accountants to discuss the results of their audit work and their opinions
as to the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality of financial reporting; and (g) all other functions set forth in the
Company’s Audit Committee Charter. The Audit Committee Charter is available to shareholders on our website,
http://www.Intervoice.com. The Company’s Board of Directors has determined that two members of the Audit Committee, Gerald F.
Montry and Timothy W. Harris, are audit committee financial experts. Its current members are Gerald F. Montry, Chairman, Timothy
W. Harris and Denald B. Reed.

The Compensation Committee, which held 8 meetings during fiscal 2007, has the authority to determine and approve all the terms
of the employment, compensation and benefits payable to executive officers of the Company, including those executive officers who.
are also directors. The Company’s management is from time to time directed by the Compensation Committee to review certain
compensation matters and make recommendations to the Compensation Committee concerning such matters. The Compensation
Committee has the authority to administer and grant equity based awards under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, and, if approved at the
annual meeting of shareholders, the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. The Compensation Committee also has authority to administer stock
options previously granted under the 2003 Stock Option Plan, the 1999 Stock Option Plan, and the 1998 Non-Qualified Stock Option
Plan. The Compensation Committee Charter is available to shareholders on our website, hitp://www.Intervoice.com, The
Compensation Committee is composed of Donald B. Reed, Chairman, Daniel D. Hammond and Timothy W. Harris.

The Nominating Committee, which met once during fiscal 2007, has the function to identify and propose to the full Board of
Directors nominees to fill vacancies on the Board of Directors. The Nominating Committee Charter is available to shareholders on our
website, http://www Intervoice.com. Pursuant to the Nominating Committee Charter, the Nominating Committee of the Board of
Directors will consider director candidates recommended by our shareholders. In order for the Nominating Committee to consider a-
potential nominee, shareholders must submit in writing (which shall not include e-mail} the following information to the Chairman of
the Nominating Committee no later than the last day of our fiscal year before the annual meeting of shareholders at which directors are
to be elected: the name of the sharcholder, contact information for the shareholder, number of shares of Common Stock owned by the
shareholder, name of the registered owner of the Common Stock (if different from the shareholder), name of the person recommended
for director, brief biography of the person recommended for director, qualifications of the person recommended for director, and
whether the person recommended for director consents to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee for director. The
Nominating Committee requires our directors to possess certain minimum qualifications. A director must have substantial or
significant business or professional experience or an understanding of technology, finance, marketing, financial reporting,
international business or other disciplines relevant to our business. A director must not have any conflicts of interests stemming from
his or her institutional or other affiliations that would preclude, or have the appearance of precluding, such director from performing
his or her duties and responsibilities as one of our directors, including without limitation, such director’s duties of loyalty, honesty,
and confidentiality, and the duty not to usurp corporate opportunities. The Nominating Committee also considers a wide variety of
qualities and skills in its selection of directors, including: economic, technical, scientific, academic, financial, accounting, legal,
marketing or other expertise applicable to our business; leadership or substantial achievement in their particular fields; demonstrated
ability to exercise sound business judgment; integrity and high moral and ethical character; potential to contribute to the diversity of
viewpoints, backgrounds, or experiences of the Board as a whole; capacity and desire to represent the balanced, best interests of the
shareholders as a whole and not primarily a special interest group or constituency; ability to work well with others; high degree of
interest in our business; dedication to our success; commitment to the responsibilities of a director; and international business or
professional experience. The Committee utilizes a variety of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees for director, and there
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are ne differences in the manner in which the Committee evaluates director nominees based on whether the nominee is recommended
by a shareholder. The Committee shall identify the candidates for director nominees in consultation with other members of the Board
and management, through the use of search firms or other advisers, or through recommendations submitted by shareholders. In order
to find qualified nominees for the Board, we have paid, and in the future could pay, fees to a search firms or other advisor te assist in
identifying and evaluating nominees for director. The current members of the Nominating Committee are Timothy W. Harris,
Chairman, and Donald B. Reed.

-The Executive Committee, which did not meet during fiscal 2007, may, to the extent permitted by law, exercise the power of the
Board of Directors when the Board is not in session. It also has the responsibility for reviewing long-range plans, capital expenditure
programs, acquisitions and general corporate financing matters and making related recommendations to the Board of Directors. Its
current members are David W. Brandenburg, Chairman, Robert E. Ritchey and George C. Platt.

The Finance and Strategic Planning Committee, which held 11 meetings during fiscal 2007, was formed in order to oversee and to
provide consultation and recommendations to the Board and management concerning our financing requirements and strategic
direction. The activities overseen by the Commiittee include mergers and acquisitions, commercial lending arrangements, the issuance
of equity, debt and convertible securities, stock buy-backs, and similar financing and strategic activities. Its current members are
Daniel D. Hammond, Chairman, Gerald F. Montry and George C. Platt.

Communication with Directors

Shareholders can send communications to the Board of Directors by delivering them in writing (which shall not include e-mail) to
The Board of Directors, Intervoice, Inc., 17811 Waterview Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75252. When we receive a shareholder
communication addressed to the Board we will forward it to the Chairman of the Board uniess the communication is addressed to the
Chairman of the Nominating Committee of the Board, the Chairman of the Compensation Committee of the Board, or the Chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Board, in which case we will forward the communication to the appropriate committee chairman.

Compensation Committee Intertocks and Insider Participation

None of the members of the Compensation Committee during fiscal 2007 was an officer or employee of the Company or any of
our subsidiaries, was formerly an officer of the Company or any of our subsidiaries, or had any other relationship that would require
disclosure in this proxy statement. None of our executive officers serves as a member of the compensation committee of another entity
(or other board committee performing equivalent functions, or in the absence of such committee, the entire board of directors for such
other entity), one of whose executive officers served as director of the Company. Nor did any executive officer of the Company serve
as a director of another entity, one of whose executive officers served on the Compensation Committee of the Company.

14




PROPOSAL 2. TO APPROVE OUR 2007 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

As shareholders, you are being asked to vote in favor of the adoption of the Intervoice, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, which the
Board of Directors adopted on May 29, 2007, and amended on June 1, 2007. If approved by shareholders, the plan will amend and
restate the existing Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, which was established effective July 13, 2005, and become the sole
plan for providing equity-based incentive compensation to the Company’s employees, non-employee directors and other service
providers, The 2005 Stock Incentive Plan amended and restated the Intervoice, Inc. 1998 Nonqualified Stock Option Plan, the
Intervoice-Brite, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan and the Intervoice, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan, and awards granted under these plans
will continue to be subject to the terms of the plans as in effect on the date of grant of the awards. A copy of the 2007 Stock Incentive
Plan, as adopted and amended by the Board of Directors, is set forth in Appendix A.

The Board of Directors believes that an equity stake through equity compensation programs effectively aligns service prov:der
and shareholder interests by motivating and rewarding long-term performance that will enhance sharcholder value and recommends
that shareholders approve the adoption' of the plan. Because non-employee directors and executive officers of the Company are
eligible to receive awards under the plan, they have a personal interest in the approval of the adoption of the plan.

The plan is intended to promote and advance the interests of the Company by prov1d1ng employees, non-employee directors and
other service providers of the Company and its affiliates added incentive to continue in the service of the Company through a direct
interest in the future success of the Company’s operations, The Board of Directors believes that employees, non-employee directors
and other service providers who have an investment in the Company are more likely to meet and exceed performance goals.

In order to address potential sharehelder concerns regarding the number of options, stock appreciation rights or stock .awards
(including restricted stock units) we intend to grant in a given year, the Board of Directors commits to our shareholders that for each
of the next three fiscal years (commencing with our fiscal year ending February 29, 2008} it will not grant a number of shares subject,
to options, stock appreciation rights or stock awards to employees or non-employee directors greater than 5.82% of the number of
shares of our Common Stock that we believe will be outstanding over such three year period. We'use 5.82% as a maximum burn rate
based on our Global Industry Classification Standards (GICS) Peer Group (4510 — Software and Services). For purposes of calculating
the number of shares granted in a year to determine our burn rate, stock awards will count as equivalent to (1) 1.5 option shares, if our
annual stock price volatility is 53% or higher, (2) two option shares if our annual stock price volanllty is between 25% and 52%, and
{3) four option shares if our annual stock price volatility is less than 25%.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE PROPOSAL TO APPROVE THE ADOPTION
OF THE 2007 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN. EACH PROPERLY EXECUTED PROXY CARD WILL BE VOTED IN
FAVOR OF THE PROPOSAL UNLESS SHAREHOLDERS SPECIFY OTHERWISE.

Description of the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan

The following is a summary of the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full
text of the plan, as adopted by the Board of Directors, as set forth in Appendix A.

Purposes. The plan allows for the grant of incentive and nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock
appreciation rights, performance awards, stock awards and other incentive awards to employees, non-employee directors and other
service providers of the Company and its affiliates who are in a position to make a significant contribution to the success of the
Company. Awards undér the plan are used to attract and retain highly qualified individuals to perform services for the Company and
to align the interests of those individuals with those of the shareholders of the Company. The plan will provide an essential component
of the total compensation package, reflecting the importance that the Company places on aligning the interests of service providers
with those of our shareholders.

Administration. The plan provides for administration by the Compensation Committee or another committee of the Board of
Directors. Each member of the committee must —

* meet independence requirements of NASDAQ),
+ bea “non-employee director” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, and

*  bean “outside director” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™).

For awards granted to non-employee directors, the committee will be the Board of Directors.
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The committee has the authority to -

= operate, interpret and administer the plan,

* determine eligibility for and the amount and nature of awards,

+  establish rules and regulations for the plan’s operation,

» accelerate the exercise, vesting or payment of an award if the acceleration is in the best interest of the Company,
*  require participants to hold shares acquired under an award for a stated period of time, and

« establish other terms and conditions of awards made under the plan.

The committee has authority on all matters relating to the discharge of its responsibilities and the exercise of its authority under the
plan. The plan provides for indemnification of committee members for personatl liability incurred related to any action, interpretation,
or determination made in good faith related to the plan and awards made under the plan. The committee may delepate authority to
grant awards under the plan to a subcommittee of two or more outside directors.

Eligibility. Employees, non-employee directors and other service providers of the Company and our affiliates who, in the opinion
of the committee, are in a position to make a significant contribution to the success of the Company and our affiliates are eligible to
participate in the plan. The committee determines the type and size of awards and sets the terms, conditions, restrictions and
limitations on awards within the confines of the plan’s terms. As of May 22, 2007, there were approximately 711 employees and six
non-employee directors who would be eligible to participate in the plan,

Available Shares. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock available for grant under the plan is 1,000,000 shares, plus
alt shares that remain available for grant under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan as of the effective date of the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan,
plus any shares subject to outstanding awards under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan that later cease to be subject to the awards for any
reason other than the awards having been exercised. In addition, if an award granted under the plan ceases to be subject io the award
for any reason other than exercise, the undelivered shares subject to the award will become available for future awards under the plan.
The committee has discretion to determine the manner of counting shares of Common Stock available for award under the plan.
Shares of Comimon Stock issued under the pian may be shares of original issuance or treasury shares or a combination of those shares.

The maximum number of shares of Common Stock available for grant of awards under the plan to any one participant is (i)
500,000 shares during the fiscal year in which the participant begins work for the Company and (i1) 300,000 shares during each fiscal
year thereafter. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be subject to nonqualified stock options and stock
appreciation rights granted to any one participant in a fiscal year is 500,000. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that
may be granted as incentive stock options is 1,000,000.

The number of shares available for award under the plan and maximum number of share grants are subject to adjustment for
certain corporate changes in accordance with the provisions of the plan.

Stock Options. The plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the
Code and nonqualified stock options that are not intended to meet those requirements. Incentive stock options may be granted only to
employvees of the Company and its affiliates. Options will be subject to terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations established by
the committee, as long as they are consistent with the terms of the plan.

The committee will determine when an option will vest and become exercisable. No option will be exercisable more than seven
years after the date of grant {or, in the case of an incentive stock option granted to a 10% shareholder, five years after the date of
grant). Unless otherwise provided in the option award agreement, options terminate within a certain period of time following a
participant’s termination of employment or service by reason of death, disability or retirement (18 months), by reason other than
death, disability, retirement or cause (12 months) or for cause {30 days). The 18-month exercise period following retirement is
shortened to 10 days following wriiten notice to the participant if the participant engages in a harmful activity (as defined in the pian).

Generally, the exercise price of a stock option granted under the plan may not be less than the fair market value of the Common
Stock on the date of grant. However, the exercise price may be less if the option is granted in connection with certain transactions and
complies with special rules under Section 409A of the Code. Incentive stock options must be granted at 100% of fair market value (or,
in the case of an incentive stock option granted to a 10 percent shareholder, 110% of fair market value). The average of the high and
low prices of the Common Stock on May 31, 2007 was $7.94,
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The exercise price of a stock option may be paid -

*  incash,

» in the discretion of the committee, with previously acquired nonforfeitable, unrestricted shares of Common Stock that have
an aggregate fair market value at the time of exercise equal to the total exercise price or by surrendering option shares having
a fair market value at the time of exercise equal to the total exercise price, or

« acombination of those shares and cash.

In addition, in the discretion of the committee, the exercise price may be paid by delivery to the Company or its designated agent
of an executed irrevocable option exercise form together with irrevocable instructions to a broker-dealer to sell or margin a sufficient
portion of the option shares and deliver the sale or margin loan proceeds directly to the Company to pay the exercise price and any
required withholding taxes.

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs). A stock appreciation right (or SAR) entitles the participant to receive an amount in cash and/or
shares of Common Stock, as determined by the committee, equal to the amount by which the Common Stock appreciates in value after
the date of the award. The committee will determine when the SAR vests and becomes exercisable. Generally, the exercise price of a
SAR will not be less than the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of grant. However, the exercise price may be less if
the stock is granted in connection with certain transactions and complies with special rules under Section 409A of the Code. No SAR
will be exercisable later than seven years after the date of the grant. The commitiee will set other terms, conditions, restrictions and
limitations on SARs, including rules as to exercisability after termination of employment or service.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units (RSUs). Restricted stock is shares of Common Stock that must be returned to the
Company if certain conditions are not satisfied. The committee will determine the restriction period and may impose other terms,
conditions and restrictions on restricted stock, including vesting upon achievement of performance goals under a performance award
and restrictions under applicable securities laws. The committee also may require the participant to pay for restricted stock. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the award agreement related to restricted stock, a participant holding restricted stock will have the right to
receive dividends on the shares of restricted stock during the restriction period, vote the restricted stock and enjoy all other
shareholder rights related to the shares of Common Stock. Upon expiration of the restriction period, the participant is entitled to
receive shares of common stock not subject to restriction.

Restricted stock units (or RSUs) are fictional shares of Common Stock. The committee will determine the restriction period and
may impose other terms, conditions and restrictions on RSUs. Upon the lapse of restrictions, the participant is entitled to receive one
share of Common Stock or an amount of cash equal to the fair market value of one share of common stock as provided in the award
agreement. An award of restricted stock units may include the grant of a tandem cash dividend right or dividend unit right. A cash
dividend right is a contingent right to receive an amount in cash equal to the cash distributions made during the period the RSU is
outstanding. A dividend unit right is a contingent right to have additional RSUs credited to the participant equal to the number of
shares of Common Stock (at fair market value) that may be purchased with the cash dividends. Restricted stock unit awards are
considered nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code.

Performance Awards. A performance award is an award payable in cash or Common Stock (or a combination) upon the
achievement of certain performance goals over a performance period. Performance awards may be combined with other awards to
impose performance criteria as part of the terms of the other awards. For each performance award, the committee will determine —

» the amount a participant may earn in the form of cash or shares of Common Stock or a formula for determining the amount
payable to the participant,

+ the performance criteria and level of achievement versus performance criteria that will determine the amount payable or
number of shares of Common Stock to be granted, issued, retained and/or vested,

»  the performance period over which performance is to be measured, which may not be shorter than one year,
» the_timing of any payments to be made,

*  restrictions on the transferability of the award, and

«  other terms and conditions that are not inconsistent with the plan.

The maximum amount that may be paid in cash under a performance award each fiscal year is $2,000,000. If an award provides
for a performance period longer than one fiscal year, the limit will be multiplied by the number of full fiscal years in the performance
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period. The performance measure(s) to be used for purposes of performance awards may be described in terms of objectives that are
related to the individual participant or objectives that are Company-wide or related to a subsidiary, division, department, region,
function or business unit of the Company in which the participant is employed, and may consist of one or more or any combination of
the following criteria:

»  Earnings or earnings per share (whether on a pre-tax, after-tax, operational or other basis)

»  Retum on equity

* Return on assets or net assets

* Revenues

* Income or operating income

¢ Expenses or expensé levels

*  Return on capital or invested capital or other related financial measures

¢ Capital expenditures

*  Economic value added

¢ Individual business objectives

¢  Accomplishment of mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, public offerings or similar extraordinary business transactions

*  One or more operating ratios

*  Stock price

*  Total shareholder return

*  Market share

»  Cash flow

+  Net borrowing, debt leverage levels, credit quality or debt ratings

*  Net asset value per share

*  Profit margin

¢ Operating profit

Performance awards may be designed to comply with Code Section 162(m) performance-based compensation requirements.
Section 162(m) of the Code limits the Company’s income tax deduction for compensation paid to each of the CEO and the four other
highest paid officers of the Company to §1 million each year. There is an exception to the $1 million deduction limitation for
performance-based compensation. To the extent that awards are intended to qualify as “performance-based compensation” under Code
Section 162(m), the performance criteria will be established in writing by the committee not later than 90 days afier the
commencement of the performance period, based on one or more, or any combination, of the performance criteria listed above. The
committee may reduce, but not increase, the amount payable and the number of shares to be granted, issued, retained or vested under a
performance award. Prior to payment of compensation under a performance award intended to comply with the Code Section 162(m)

performance-based compensation exception, the committee will certify the extent to which the performance goals and other criteria
are achieved.

Stock Awards and Other Incentive Awards. A stock award is an award of unrestricted Common Stock. Stock awards may be
granted upon terms and conditions determined by the committee. Shares of Common Stock issued under stock awards may be issued
for cash consideration or for no cash consideration. The committee may also grant other incentive awards under the plan based upon,
payable in or otherwise related to, shares of Common Stock if the committee determines that the other incentive awards are consistent
with the purposes of the plan. Other incentive awards will be subject to any terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations established by
the committee. Payment of other incentive awards will be made at the times and in the forms, which may be cash, shares of Common
Stock or other property, established by the committee.

New Plan Benefits. The number of awards that will be received by or allocated to our executive officers, non-employee directors,
employees and other service providers under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan is undeterminable at this time.
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Corporate Change. Unless an award agreement provides otherwise, if a participant’s employment or service with the Company is
involuntarily terminated other than for cause or voluntarity terminated for good reason during the period beginning 90 days before and
ending one year after a “corporate change” (as defined in the plan), any time periods, conditions or contingencies relating to exercise
or realization of, or lapse of restrictions under awards granted under the plan will be automatically accelerated or waived so that:

« il no exercise of the award is required, the award may be realized in full at the time of termination, or

» ifexercise of the award is required, the award may be exercised in full beginning at the time of termination.
Al

If awards are replaced in connection with a corporate change by comparable types of awards, those replacement awards will provide
for automatic acceleration or waiver in the event a participant’s employment or service with the Company is involuntarily terminated
other than for cause or is voluntarily terminated for good reason, within one year after the corporate change. The committee also may
require a participant to cash out outstanding awards in connection with a corporate change. Payment of awards in connection with a
corporate change or termination in connection with a corporate change will be delayed if necessary to comply with Code Section
409A,

Withholding Taxes. All applicable withholding taxes will be deducted from any payment made under the plan, withheld from
other compensation payable to the participant or the participant will be required to pay the taxes before the Company makes any
payment of cash or Common Stock under the plan. Payment of withholding taxes may be made by withholding shares of Common
Stock from any payment of Common Stock due or by delivery to the Company of previously acquired shares of Common Stock, in
either case having an aggregate fair market value equal to the amount of the required withholding taxes.

Transferability. No award will be subject to execution, attachment or similar process, and no award may be sold, transferred,
pledged, exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of, other than by will or under applicable laws of descent and distribution.
Any attempted sale, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecation or other disposition of an award not specifically permitted by the plan
or the award agreement will be null and void and without effect. If provided in the award agreement, nonqualified stock options may
be transferred by a participant to a permitted transferee. A participant may request that the Company observe the terms of a domestic
relations order in relation to the division of a plan award.

Amendment, The Board of Directors may suspend, terminate, amend or modify the plan, but may not without approval by our
shareholders, make any alteration or amendment that — ’

« increases the total number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued under the plan (other than adjustments in
connection with certain corporate reorganizations and other events),

«  changes the designation or class of persons eligible to receive awards under the plan, or

+ effects any change for which shareholder approval is required by or necessary to comply with applicéblc law or the listing
requirements of NASDAQ or any other exchange or association on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted.

An amendment to the plan will not require shareholder approval if it is made to conform the plan -to statutory or regulatory
requirenients.

Effectiveness. The Plan will become effective as of July 11, 2007, provided it is approved by the shareholders of the Company in
a manner that complies with applicable law within 12'months after such date; provided, however, that no awards may be made under
the Plan unless and until it is so approved. Unless terminated earlier, the plan will terminate on july 11, 2012.

United States Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following summary is based on an analysis of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the -“Code”) as currently in
effect, existing laws, judicial decisions, administrative rulings, regulations and proposed regulations, all of which are subject to
change.

Incentive Stock Options. No income will be recognized by a participant for federal income tax purposes upon the grant or exercise
of an incentive stock option. The basis of shares transferred to a participant upon exercise of an incentive stock option is the price paid
for the shares. If the participant holds the shares for at least one year after the transfer of the shares to the participant and two years
after the grant of the option, the participant will recognize long-term capital gain or loss upon sale of the shares received upon exercise
equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale and the basis of the stock. Generally, if the shares are not held for that
period, the participant will recognize ordinary income upon disposition in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the
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shares on the date of exercise over the amount paid for the shares, or if less (and if the disposition is a transaction in which loss, if any,
will be recognized), the gain on disposition. The participant’s additional gain or any loss upon disposition will be a capital gain or
loss, which will be long-term or short-term depending of whether the stock was held for more than one year.

The excess of the fair market value of shares received upon the exercise of an incentive stock option over the option' price for the
shares is an item of adjustment for the participant for purposes of the alternative minimum tax. Therefore, although no income is
recognized upon exercise of an incentive stock option, a participant may be subject to alternative minimum tax as a result of the
exercise,

If a participant uses already owned shares of common stock to pay the exercise price for shares under an incentive stock option,
the resulting tax consequences will depend upon whether the already owned shares of common stock are “statutory option stock,” and,
if so, whether the statutory option stock has been held by the participant for the applicable holding period referred to in Section
424(c)(3)(A) of the Code. In general, “statutory option stock” (as defined in Section 424(c)(3)(B) of the Code) is any stock acquired
through the exercise of an incentive stock option or an option granted under an employee stock purchase plan, but not stock acquired
through the exercise of a nonqualified stock option. If the stock is statutory option stock and the applicable holding period has been
satisfied, or if the stock is not statutory option stock, no income wiil be recognized by the participant upon the transfer of the stock in
payment of the exercise price of an incentive stock option, If the stock used to pay the exercise price of an incentive stock option is
statutory option stock and the applicable holding period has not been satisfied, the transfer of the stock will be a disqualifying
disposition which will result in the recognition of ordinary income by the participant in an amount equal to the excess of the fair
market value of the statutory option stock at the time the incentive stock option covering the stock was exercised over the amount paid
for the stock.

Nonqualified Stock Options. No income will be recognized by a participant for federal income tax purposes upon the grant of a
nonqualified stock option. Upon exercise of a nonqualified stock option, the participant will recognize ordinary income in an amount
equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise over the amount paid for the shares, If the participant
is an employee, income recognized upon the exercise of a nonqualified stock option will be considered compensation subject to
withholding at the time the income is recognized, and, therefore, the participant’s employer must make the necessary arrangements
with the participant to ensure that the amount of the tax required to be withheld is available for payment. Nonqualified stock options
are designed to provide the employer with a deduction equa! to the amount of ordinary income recognized by the participant at the
time of the recognition by the participant, subject to the deduction limitations described below.

Upon sale of the shares, the participant will have capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the sales proceeds and the
value of the shares on the day the option was exercised. This capital gain or loss will be long-term if the participant has held the shares
for more than one year and otherwise will be short-term.

If a participant uses already owned shares of common stock to pay the exercise price for shares under a nonqualified stock option,
the number of shares received under the nonqualified stock option which is equal to the number of shares delivered in payment of the
exercise price will be considered received in a nontaxable exchange, and the fair market value of the remaining shares received by the
participant upon the exercise will be taxable to the participant as ordinary income. If the already owned shares of common stock are
not “statutory option stock” or are statutory option stock and the applicable holding period referred to in Section 424(c)(3)(A) of the
Code has been satisfied, the shares received upon exercise of the nonqualified stock option will not be statutory option stock.
However, if the already owned shares of common stock are statutory option stock and the applicable holding period has not been
satisfied, it is not presently clear whether the exercise will be considered a disqualifying disposition of the statutory option stock,
whether the shares received upon the exercise will be statutory option stock, or how the participant’s basis will be'allocated among the
shares received.

Stock Appreciation Rights. There will be no federal income tax consequences to either the participant or the employer upon the
grant of Stock Appreciation Rights (or SARs). Generally, the participant will recognize ordinary income subject to withholding upon
the receipt of payment under SARs in an amount equal to the aggregate amount of cash and the fair market value of any common
stock received. Subject to the deduction limitations described below, the employer generally wilt be entitled to a corresponding tax
deduction equal to the amount includible in the participant’s income.

Restricted Stock. If the restrictions on an award of shares of restricted stock are of a nature that the shares are both subject to a
substantial risk of forfeiture and are not freely transferable (within the meaning of Section 83 of the Code), the participant will not
recognize income for federal income tax purposes at the time of the award unless the participant affirmatively elects to inctude the fair
market value of the shares of restricted stock on the date of the award, less any amount paid for the shares, in gross income for the
year of the award under Section 83(b) of the Code. In the absence of this election, the participant will be required to inciude in income
for federal income tax purposes on the date the shares either become freely transferable or are no longer subject to a substantial risk of
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forfeiture (within the meaning of Section 83 of the Code), the fair market value of the shares of restricted stock on that date, less any

amount paid for the shares. The employer will be entitled to a deduction at the time of income recognition to the participant in an

amount equal to the amount the participant is required to inciude in income, subject to the deduction limitations described below. Ifa

Section 83(b) election is made within 30 days after the date the restricted stock is received, the participant will recognize ordinary ’
income at the time of the receipt of the restricted stock, and the employer will be entitled to a corresponding deduction, equal to the

fair market value of the shares at the time, less the amount paid, if any, by the participant for the restricted stock. If a Section 83(b)

election is made, no additional income will be recognized by the participant upon the lapse of restrictions on the restricted stock, but,

if the restricted stock is subsequently forfeited, the participant may not deduct the income that was recognized pursuant to the Section

83(b) election at the time of the receipt of the restricted stock.

' Dividends paid to a participant holding restricted stock before the expiration of the restriction period will be additional
compensation taxable as ordinary income to the participant subject to withholding, unless the participant made an election under
Section 83(b). Subject to the deduction limitations described below, the employer generally will be entitled to a corresponding tax
deduction equal to the dividends includible in the participant’s income as compensation. If the participant has made a Section 83(b)

} election, the dividends will be dividend income, rather than additional compensation, to the participant.

|

If the restrictions on an award of restricted stock are not of a nature that the shares are both subject to a substantial risk of
forfeiture and not freely transferable, within the meaning of Section 83 of the Code, the participant will recognize ordinary income for
federal income tax purposes at the time of the transfer of the shares in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares of
restricted stock on the date of the transfer, less any amount paid therefor. The employer will be entitled to a deduction at that time in
an amount equal to the amount the participant is required to include in income, subject to the deduction limitations described below.

Restricted Stock Units (or RSUs). There will be no federal income tax consequences to either the participant or the employer upon
the grant of RSUs. Generally, the participant will recognize ordinary income subject to withholding upon the receipt of cash and/or
transfer of shares of Common Stock in payment of the RSUs in an amount equal to the aggregate of the cash received and the fair
market value of the common stock so transferred. Subject to the deduction limitations described below, the employer generally will be
entitled to a corresponding tax deduction equal to the amount includible in the participant’s income.

Performance Awards. There will be no federal income tax consequences to either the participant or the employer upon the grant
of performance awards. Generally, the participant will recognize ordinary income subject to withholding upon the receipt of cash
and/or shares of Common Stock in payment of performance awards in an amount equal to the aggregate of the cash received and the
fair market value of the common stock so transferred. If a performance award is performance-based compensation under Code Section
162(m), the employer will be entitled to a corresponding tax deduction equal to the amount includible in the participant’s income.
Otherwise, the employer’s deduction may be limited by Code Section 162(m) as described below.

Stock Awards and Other Incentive Awards. The participant will recognize ordinary income for federal income tax purposes at the
time of the stock award and, subject to the deduction limitations described below, the employer will be entitled to a corresponding
deduction. The tax treatment of other incentive awards will depend on the type of award. As a general rule, taxation generally will be
imposed at the time of vesting of the award, and ordinary income will generally equal the fair market value of the award at the time of
vesting. Subject to the deduction limitations described below, the participant’s employer will be entitled to a tax deduction at the same
time and for the same amount. If the participant is an employee, the participant will be subject to income tax withholding at the time
when the ordinary income is recognized.

Dividend Equivalents. Generally, a participant will recognize ordinary income subject to withholding upon the payment of any
dividend equivalents paid in relation to an award in an amount equal to the cash the participant receives. Subject to the deduction
limitations described below, the employer generally will be entitled to a corresponding tax deduction equal to the amount includible in
the participant’s income.

Limitations on the Employer’s Compensation Deduction. Section 162(m) of the Code limits the deduction certain employers may
 take for otherwise deductible compensation payable to certain executive officers of the employer to the extent the compensation paid
. to the officer for the year exceeds $1 million, unless the compensation is performance-based, is approved by the employer’s
' shareholders, and meets certain other criteria. :

In addition, Section 280G of the Code limits the deduction which the employer may take for otherwise deductible compensation
payable to certain individuals if the compensation constitutes an “excess parachute payment.” Excess parachute payments arise from
payments made to disqualified individuals which are in the nature of compensation and are contingent on changes in ownership or
control of the employer or certain affiliates. Accelerated vesting or payment of awards under the Plan upon a change in ownership or

21




disqualified individual receiving an excess parachute payment will be subject to a 20 percent excise tax.

Application of Code Section 4094. Section 409A of the Code imposes an additional 20% tax and interest on an individual
receiving nonqualified deferred compensation under a plan that fails to satisfy certain requirements. For purposes of Section 409A of
the Code, “nonqualified deferred compensation™ includes equity-based incentive programs, including some stock options, stock
appreciation rights and restricted stock unit programs. Generally speaking, Section 409A of the Code does not apply to incentive stock
options, nonqualified stock options and stock appreciation rights granted at fair market value if no deferral is provided beyond
exercise, or restricted stock.

Awards made under the plan will be designed to comply with the requirements of Code section 409A to the extent the awards
granted under the Plan are not exempt from coverage. However, if the Plan fails to comply with Section 409A of the Code in

operation, a participant could be subject to the additional taxes and interest,

control of the employer or its affiliates could result in excess parachute payments, In addition to the deduction limitation applicable, a
Awards made under the plan are not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We have a basic philosophy to offer compensation programs to our executives that reward the creation of shareholder value and
attract, retain and motivate a highly qualified executive management team. With respect to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, and the other three most highly-compensated executive officers, which we collectively refer to as the Named
Executives, this Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes our compensation philosophy and objectives, the process for
establishing the compensation programs for the Named Executives, and the policies and practices to administer such programs.

Compensation Objectives

The compensation programs specific to our Named Executives are administered by the Compensation Committee. The members
of the Compensation Committee are non-employee directors who are independent under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s Listing
Standards. The Compensation Committee designs and maintains compensation programs consistent with our executive compensation
philosophy to achieve the following objectives:

¢ To attract, retain and motivate highly qualified executives by offering compensation programs that are competitive with
programs offered by campanies in our peer group.

+  To link performance and executive pay by tying bonus amounts paid to executives to achievement of key objectives under
cerporate and/or departmental annual business plans.

+ To link performance and executive pay by considering achievement of key objectives under corporate and departmental
business plans for the preceding fiscal year in determining any salary adjustments and long-term incentive award amounts.

* To reward the creation of long-term shareholder value through long-term incentive compensation awards, and encourage
significant stock ownership to further align executive interests with the interests of our shareholders.

In pursuit of these objectives, the Compensation Committee believes that the compensation packages provided to the Named
Executives should include both cash and equity-based compensation, with an emphasis on performance-based pay.

Process for Establishing Compensation : .

The Compensation Committee has overall responsibility for the compensation of the Named Executives. In conducting an annual
performance review and determining appropriate compensation levels for our Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee
meets in executive session outside the presence of our Chief Executive Officer and other members of our executive management team.
With respect to the compensation levels for other Named Executives, the Compensation Committee considers input and
recommendations from our Chief Executive Officer, Senior Vice President of Human Resources and, when appropriate, other
members of the executive management team. Performance reviews for our Chief Executive Officer and each other Named Executive
are based on their performance against pre-agreed objectives under corporate and departmental business plans for the preceding fiscal
year. With the exception of our Chief Executive Officer, all of the Named Executives have departmental business plans with
departmental objectives. While our Chief Executive Officer and other members of the executive management team may make
recommendations concerning salary adjustments, cash bonus programs or award amounts for Named Executives, the Compensanon
Committee can exercise its discretion to modify or reject any recommendations from executives. -

In designing compensation programs and determining compensation levels, the Compensation Committee and our executive
management team are assisted by independent compensation consultants who conduct, or assist our human resources department in
conducting, an annual review of our total direct compensation program for the Named Executives. During fiscal 2007, the
Compensation Committee engaged Hay Group, Inc., a global human resources consulting firm, to provide the Compensation
Committee with relevant market data and alternatives to consider when making compensation decisions for our Named Executives.

In making compensation decisions, the Compensation Committee compares each-element of total direct compensation against a
peer group of 34 publicly traded companies in the software industry against which the Compensation Committee believes we compete
in the market for executive talent, which we collectively refer to as the Compensation Peer Group. Even though the surveys we use
refer to these companies as software companies, some of the companies are similar to us in that they offer bundled ‘solutions
comprised of hardware, software and services. The Compensation Peer Group is periodically reviewed by the Compensation
Committee. In addition to industry considerations, the Compensation Committee selects companies for the Compensation Peer Group
based on their annual revenues and market capitalization. Qur annual revenues are slightly below the median revenues of the
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-

! Compensation Peer Group because the Compensation Committee has included some larger companies against which they believe we
. compete to fill senior executive positions.

' To benchmark compensation for each of our Named Executives, we normally access data from two key resources: an executive
compensation survey reflective of the Compensation Peer Group and proxy statements and other public filings for the companies in
our Peer Group. To supplement the compensation data and analysis we obtain for our Compensation Peer Group, we access data from
a compensation survey for the entire software industry for any executive pesitions or compensation programs for which we lack clear
comparable data from the Compensation Peer Group. In reviewing compensation survey data for the entire software industry, we
focus on data for software companies with annual revenues similar to ours. Sources of data for compensation surveys and analysis
include Aon/Radford surveys for our Compensation Peer Group and the software industry. The Compensation Peer Group is currently
comprised of the following companies:

Actuate 12 Technologies Openwave |
Advent Software Informatica PegaSystems
BEA Systems Interactive Intelligence Radiant Systems
Borland Software Internet Security Systems Si

Boston Communications Interwoven SalesForce
Choridant Software Kana Software Software AG
Comverse Technology Kronos Vignette
CSG Systems Lawson Software Webmethods
Eclipsys USA Lightbridge

Entrust-US Matrix One

Epicor Software NDS

Genesys Telecom Labs Nuance Communications

Glenayre Electronics Open Solutions

To compete in the market for executive talent, the Compensation Committee generally targets total direct compensation (i.e., base
salary, annual cash incentives and value of long-term equity incentives) for the Named Executives at or approaching the 50th
percentile of the Compensation Peer Group. In targeting total direct compensation at the 50th percentile we recognize that market data
available for the Compensation Peer Group are not always directly comparable to the specific compensation programs we offer or to
the positions and responsibilities for some of our Named Executives. The limitations on obtaining comparable market data can limit
the precision of our assessment of the 50th percentile of the Compensation Peer Group for a compensation decision. In addition to
considering levels of compensation suggested by market data to make compensation decisions, the Compensation Committee may
also consider other relevant factors. The additional factors the Compensation Committee may consider in determining compensation
levels are discussed below for each element of the total compensation mix. The allocation between cash and non-cash compensation is
based on the practices of our Compensation Peer Group and the Compensation Committee’s determination of the appropriate mix
among base pay, annual cash incentives and long-term equity incentives to encourage retention and performance. For the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2007, the elements of the compensation mix include:

*  Base salary;
*  Annual cash bonuses;
=  Long-term incentive compensation; and

¢ Broad-based benefits programs.
Base Salary

We establish the base salary of each Named Executive based on consideration of the 50th percentile pay levels of the
Compensation Peer Group. We also consider other relevant factors for each Named Executive such as achievement of pre-agreed
objectives under his or her departmental business plan for the preceding fiscal year, individual performance review, the internal equity
of the executive’s base salary as compared to salaries of our other executives, and the level of the executive’s experience in his or her
current position, In reviewing base salaries for our Named Executives, we believe it is also appropriate to consider our performance
against key objectives under our corporate business plan for the preceding fiscal year, including objectives related to revenue and
earnings targets. Base salary adjustments are subject to terms and conditions under the Named Executive’s employment agreements,
Employment agreements with our Named Executives generally include a provision for an annual review of the executive’s base salary
and limit the ability of the Company to reduce the base salary below the level set forth in the contract. Due in significant part to the
Company’s failure to achieve revenue and earnings targets under our corporate business plan for fiscal 2006, the Compensation
Committee decided to not increase the salaries of any Named Executives during fiscal 2007. Although the Compensation Committee
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believes that competitive base salaries are necessary to attract and retain a highly qualified executive team, it feels that a significant
portion of executive compensation should be based on pay-for-performance.

Annual Cash Bonuses

It is our general practice to provide Named Executives an opportunity to earn cash bonus amounts under programs that reward
attainment of key objectives under corporate and/or departmental annual business plans. The objectives that underlie cash bonus
programs may vary between fiscal years and between the Named Executives, but generally include objectives that reward attainment
of targeted revenues and earnings. In setting the bonus amounts a Named Executive is eligible to earn for achieving specified
objectives, we generally target bonus levels at the 50th percentile of the Compensation Peer Group and published survey data. Bonus
opportunities for achieving objectives are generally established as a percentage of an executive’s base salary. Executives can
sometimes earn reduced bonus amounts if a minimum level of performance against an objective is achieved. Executives can
sometimes also eam increased bonus amounts for performance in excess of the level of performance targeted under an objective. The
decision as to whether to offer a cash bonus program to Named Executives for any fiscal year, the type and funding of any program
offered, and the objectives that underlie any program, are subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee and their
assessment of general and industry specific conditions existing during the applicable period. In determining the amount of bonus that a
Named Executive is eligible to earn under a bonus program, the Compensation Committee may also exercise discretion based on its
assessment of the executive’s contribution and accountability for the objectives that are the subject of the bonus, the internal equity of
the executive’s bonus opportunity as compared to bonus opportunities for our other executives, and any other factors the
Compensation Committee considers relevant. The Company does not have a formal policy regarding the adjustment or recovery of
payments or other awards (other than as required by law) if relevant performance measures are restated or otherwise adjusted.

For fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee offered each of the Named Executives an opportunity to earn a cash bonus under
our Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, or Fiscal 2007 AICP. Bonus amounts under the Fiscal 2007 AICP were
based on the Company’s performance against targeted amounts of adjusted operating income, or AOI, and revenues for fiscal 2007,
and were subject to achievement of minimum threshald levels of performance. The AOT was defined as operating income excluding
non-recurring acquisition costs, stock compensation expenses, and any other expenses the Compensation Committee, in its discretion,
determined were unusual or non-recurring. For purposes of determining whether the Company achieved the revenue target, the
Compensation Committee could, in its discretion, exclude any revenues it determined were unusual or non-recurring. Targeted
revenues and AOI under the Fiscal 2007 AICP reflected the amounts of revenues and AO! budgeted in our corporate business plan for
fiscal 2007. At the time the Fiscal 2007 AICP was approved, the Compensation Committee believed that obtainment of the targeted
revenues and AOI would be challenging but achievable. A range of bonus opportunities for each Named Executive under the Fiscal
2007 AICP is set forth in the table entitled “Grants of Plan Based Awards for Fiscal Year 2007.” Subject to the Company's
achievement of the minimum threshold amounts, bonus amounts under the Fiscal 2007 AICP would have increased or decreased in
accordance with a sliding scale based upon the amount, if any, the actual AOI and revenues for fiscal 2007 were less than or greater
than the targeted amounts. None of the Named Executives earned a cash bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP because the Company
failed to achieve the minimum threshold amounts of targeted AOY and revenues.

In addition to bonus opportunities under the Fiscal 2007 AICP, two of our Named Executives had opportunities to earn cash
bonuses based on sales bookings, revenues and/or contribution margins during fiscal 2007. Sales bookings include purchase orders for
sales of our products and related implementation services that are included in the Company’s reported solutions backlog, in addition to
orders for maintenance services and managed services that are not included in the Company’s reported solutions backlog for the
reasons discussed in the Management, Discussion and Analysis section of our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Annual Reports
on Form 10-K. Contribution margin under a departmental business plan refers to gross margin less certain departmental expenses. Our
Senior Vice President and Managing Director of thé EMEA, Frank Sherlock, functions as our principal sales executive for Europe, the
Middle East and ‘Africa (the “EMEA™). In his capacity as the principal sales executive for our EMEA operations, Mr. Sherlock had an
opportunity to earn the following bonuses for achieving objectives under his departmental business plan for the EMEA: 17.5% of his
base salary for achievement of departmental targeted revenues; 24.5% of his base salary for achievement of departmental targeted
sales bookings; and 10.5% of his base salary for achievement of the departmental targeted contribution margin. Our Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer, Jim Miiton, functions as our principal sales executive for global sales. Our principal sales
executive for the EMEA region, Mr. Sherlock, and principal sales executive for the Americas region, both report directly to Mr.
Milton. In his capacity as the principal sales executive for our global operations, Mr. Milton had an opportunity to earn a bonus equal
to 35% of his base salary for the achievement of targeted sales bookings under the Company’s corporate business plan for fiscal 2007.

At the time the corporate business plan and associated departmental business plans in support of the corporate business plan were
approved, the Compensation Committee believed that obtainment of the revenue, sales bookings and contribution margin targets
would be challenging but achievable. Subject to their achievement of the minimum threshold amounts under their respective bonus
plans, bonus amounts payable to Mr. Sherlock or Mr. Milton increased or decreased in accordance with a sliding scale based upon the
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amount, if any, actual sales bookings or, in the ¢ase of Mr. Sherlock, actual revenues and actual contribution margins, were greater
than or less than the targeted amounts, Based on the Company’s global sales bookings during fiscal 2007, Mr. Milton earned a bonus
equal to $122,500, or 35% of his base salary. Based on the Company’s results from operations for the EMEA during fiscal 2007, Mr.
Sherlock earned a bonus equal to $122,113, or 51% of his base salary. Approximately 58% of the aggregate bonus earned by Mr.
Sherlock was attributable to sales bookings for the EMEA. The sales bookings bonuses paid to Messrs. Milton and Sherlock are
supported by a 60% increase in the Company’s reported solutions backlog from the end of fiscal 2006 to the end of fiscal 2007.

In addition to the cash bonus opportunities under formal cash bonus programs such as the Fiscal 2007 AICP, the Compensation
Committee may choose to reward extraordinary performance and achievements by awarding discretionary bonuses to the Named
Executives and other executives from time to time. With respect to the Named Executives, no discretionary bonuses were awarded
based on the Company’s performance or the executive’s performance during fiscal 2007. However, in recognition of special
accomplishments during fiscal 2006, discretionary cash bonuses ranging between $5,000 and $10,000 were awarded to certain Named
Executives during the first week of fiscal 2007.

Long-term Incentive Compensation

It is our general practice to make a grant of long-term incentive compensation to our Named Executives during each fiscal year.
We believe that offering long-term incentive awards will aid in the retention of our Named Executives and serve to align their interests
with those of our shareholders. As with other elements of our total compensation program, we consider award levels at the 50th
percentile of the Compensation Peer Group and published survey data. In determining the level of award for a Named Executive we
also consider other relevant factors such as achievement of pre-agreed objectives under his or her departmental business plan for the
preceding fiscal year, the executive’s performance review, and the internal equity of the level of award granted to the executive
compared to awards granted to our other executives. In reviewing the award levels for our Named Executives, we believe it is also
appropriate to consider our performance against key objectives under the corporate business plan for the preceding fiscal year,
including objectives related to revenue and earnings targets, and whether the Company’s financial performance during the preceding
fiscal year has benefited our shareholders through any meaningful appreciation in the market price for our commen stock. In
administering our equity compensation programs, we closely monitor the level of dilution that can result from equity awards to our
executives and other employees and believe it is appropriate to consider the dilutive effect of our aggregate equity awards during any
fiscal year.

Historically, the Compensation Committee has emphasized equity-based compensation for our executives in the form of stock
option grants. During fiscal 2007, stock options were granted to the Named Executives. However, as a result of Financial Accounting
Standard No. 123R, the evolving landscape of equity-based compensation, and our desire to limit the aggregate number of shares
granted under our equity compensation plans to help reduce dilution to our shareholders, the Compensation Committee is considering
alternative forms of long-term incentive compensation for our Named Executives and other employees. If approved by sharcholders at
the annual meeting, the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan will provide a number of alternatives for granting long-term incentive
compensation, including options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards and other
incentive awards. The Compensation Committee is considering several alternatives, including awarding restricted stock units or
awarding a mix of stock options and restricted stock units. During fiscal 2007, the Compensation Committee did approve awards of
restricted stock units and awards of a mix of restricted stock units and stock options to employees who were not Named Executives.
The Compensation Committee will continue to review and consider alternative equity-based compensation practices that are less
dilutive to our shareholders than our traditional practices. As compared to our traditional stock option award practices, certain of these
alternative equity-based compensation practices would reduce the amount of compensation expense recognized in the Company’s
income statements, which would in turn increase net income.

On the day following our annual shareholders meeting during fiscal 2007, the Named Executives were granted stock options
under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of our common steck on the grant date. These
options vest in equal amounts on the first three anniversaries of the date of grant, subject to the Named Executive’s continued
employment with the Company. All options granted to the Named Executives in fiscai 2007 under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan
expire seven years from the grant date, untess the executive’s employment is terminated before the end of such seven-year pertod.

Broad-Based Benefits Programs

The Company offers certain broad-based benefits programs that include benefits such as health, dental, disability and life
insurance, health care savings accounts, paid vacation time and company contributions to a 401(k) Employee Savings Plan. Benefits
under such programs are provided to all employees in accordance with practices within the marketplace and are a necessary element of
compensation in attracting and retaining employees. In addition to our broad-based health program, the Company pays for an annual
physical exam for each of our vice presidents, including the Named Executives. All vice presidents and certain other management
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level employees in our United Kingdom subsidiary, including the Managing Director of the EMEA who is a Named Executive,
receive a car allowance. There are no additional benefits programs for our Named Executives.

Executive Employment Agreements

Each of the Named Executives has entered into an employment agreement with the Company. The Compensation Committee
believes employment agreements should not include provisions that would obligate a potential acquirer of the Company to make large
payouts to the Named Executives simply because a change of control has occurred. Because of this concern, the occurrence of a
change of control event alone will not trigger any payment obligations to the Named Executives under their respective employment
agreements. With the exception of the employment agreement with our Senior Vice President and Managing Director of the EMEA,
Francis Sherlock, each of the employment agreements include provisions that can under certain conditions trigger payment obligations
upon termination of the Named Executive’s employment. The Company’s contractual obligation to make payments to a Named
Executive following the termination of his employment is subject to certain conditions including execution of a general release
agreement, and adherence to non-compete and non-disparagement provisions. With the exception of Mr. Sherlock’s agreement, each
of the employment agreements include payment obligations in the event the Named Executive’s employment is terminated by the
Company without “Cause” (as defined in their respective employment agreements). The employment agreements with our Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer also provide for payments if the executive dies or if he
terminates his employment for “Good Reason” (as defined in their respective employment agreements). The agreements with these
three Named Executives further provide for the payment of “gross-up” benefits if the executive becomes liable for an excess parachute
excise tax in connection with a change in control. Excess parachute excise tax can have widely divergent and unexpected effects based
on an executive’s personal compensation history. The “gross-up” benefits are intended to provide an equal level of change in control
benefits without regard to the effect of the excise tax. Because the Company commits to employ a Named Executive for the term set
forth in the applicable employment agreement, we believe it is appropriate to incur payment obligations if the executive’s employment
is terminated without Cause during the term of the agreement. Based on similar considerations, we believe it is appropriate to incur a
payment obligation if the Named Executive terminates his employment for Good Reason.

A more detailed discussion of the Company’s obligation under certain conditions to make payments to Named Executives
following the termination of their employment, including any termination of their employment following a change of control, is set
forth in the section entitled “Agreements with Executive Officers.”

Long Term Incentive Plan Change of Control Provisions

Under the terms of the Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (and prior option plans), awards are generally subject to special
provisions upon the occurrence of change in control transactions (as defined in each plan) unless otherwise provided in the applicable
award agreement. Awards under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and prior option plans are not limited to the Named Executives, and
the Compensation Committee has broad discretion to authorize equity-based awards to other employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (and under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, if approved by our shareholders), if a
change in control occurs and a participant is involuntarily terminated other than for cause or the participant voluntarily terminates for
good reason, in either case within one year after a change in control (during the period beginning 90 days before a corporate change
and ending one year after a corporate change under the proposed 2007 Stock Incentive Plan), any outstanding stock options, restricted
stock, restricted stock units, and other plan awards would generally become immediately fully vested and exercisable. Awards granted
under the Company’s stock plans that were in effect before the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan are subject to the terms of the stock plans as
in effect when the awards were granted. Under the 1998 Stock Option Plan, the 1999 Stock Option Plan, and the 2003 Stock Option
Plan, in the event of a corporate change, there is no termination of service requirement and all outstanding options will become
exercisable in full and all restrictions imposed on any common stock that may be delivered upon exercise of those options will be
deemed satisfied. We believe the provision of these change in control benefits is generally consistent with market practice among our
peers, is a valuable executive talent retention incentive and is consistent with the objectives of our overall executive compensation
program.

Timing of Grants of Options and Restricted Stock Units

In fiscal 2007, we granted stock options to our Named Executives at a meeting of our Compensation Committee held the day after
our annual meeting of shareholders. It has been the practice of the Compensation Committee to hold a meeting the day of, or day after,
our annual meeting of shareholders to authorize a grant of stock options for our executive officers at an exercise price equal to the

market price of our common stock on the date the option grants are approved.

For fiscal year 2008, the Compensation Committee has adopted a formal procedure for granting stock options and restricted stock
units to alt executive officers, which includes the Named Executives. (There is, however, a present freeze on executive compensation.
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See “Current Freeze on Executive Compensation.”) The proposed procedures apply to all grants of stock options and restricted stock
units to executive officers, including, “new hire grants,” “continuing grants” and “annual grants.” They do not apply to grants made to
executive officers at such time, if any, as they may become new-hire employees of the Company in connection with the Company’s
acquisition of another business. The procedures include the following:

New Hire Grants of Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units. We endeavor to grant stock options and restricted stock units to
newly hired executives with grant dates effective soon after the Company has provided current information concerning the results
from operations for its most recent fiscal quarter or fiscal year and its outlook for the future. In effect, we consider these time perjods
between when the Company has recently provided such current information, which we refer to as the Interim Periods, to begin the day
after the third business day following our definitive earnings release for the Company’s preceding fiscal quarter and to end the day
before the third business day following a definitive earnings release for the next fiscal quarter. Accordingly, any stock options or
restricted stock units approved during an Interim Period by our Compensation Committee for a newly hired executive will be granted
on the third business day after the Company’s next definitive quarterly or annual earnings announcement. For example, if the
Compensation Committee authorized a grant to a new-hire executive officer on October 20th and the executive officer started
employment on November 20th and the third business day following the definitive earnings release for the fiscal quarter ended
November 30th is December 23rd, the grant date would be December 23rd. If the new-hire executive officer started employment on
October 10th but the Compensation Committee did not authorize the grant until after December 23rd, the grant date would be the third
business day following the definitive earnings release for the fiscal quarter ending February 28th or 29th.

Annual Grants of Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units. If the Compensation Committee determines to authorize regularly
scheduled “annual” grants of restricted stock units or stock options or a mix of stock options and restricted stock units for any fiscal
year, such grants will be made on the first business day after the date of our annual meeting of sharehelders, and the Compensation
Committee will authorize such grants on the first business day following the annual meeting of shareholders or on any date that occurs
during the 60 calendar day period preceding the first business day after the annual meeting.

Continuing Grants of Stock Options and Restricted Stock Units. In addition to the regularly scheduled “annual grants™ of stock
options and restricted stock units, the Compensation Committee may grant stock options and/or restricted stock units to executive
officers for retention, promotion or special bonus reasons, The procedure for continuing grants is similar to the procedure for “new
hire grants.” Any continuing grant of stock options or restricted stock units authorized during an Interim Period will be granted on the
third business day after the Company’s next quarterly earnings release.

Additional Procedures. The Compensation Committee recognizes that the timing and basis for authorizing any continuing grants
may inherently involve more discretion than the timing of new hire or annual grants. Because of the greater degree of discretion
inherent in continuing grants, the Compensation Committee will discuss the basis and timing of any continuing grants to executive
officers during a preceding fiscal year in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of the annual proxy statement. The
Compensation Committee further recognizes that in rare instances there may be substantial and justified reasons for deviating from
certain procedures outlined above. In the rare instance that the Compensation Committee may have determined it was appropriate to
deviate from the procedures outlined above during a preceding fiscal year, the terms of the deviation and the basis for the deviation
will be discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of the annual proxy statement.

FExercise Price of Stock Options. In all instances, the exercise price for stock options is set at the market price of the Company’s
common stock on the grant date. Under the express terms of the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, the market price is defined as the average
of the high and low price of the Company’s common stock. Based en recent guidance from the Securities and Exchange Commission,
the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan will define the market price as the closing price for the Company’s common stock on the grant date, if
such plan is approved at the annual meeting of shareholders.

Stock Ownership Guidelines

The Compensation Committee has not established required levels of stock ownership for the Named Executives or other
executive officers, but it has established stock ownership guidelines. These guidelines provide for each executive officer to hold a
number of shares of the Company’s common stock with an aggregate market value that equates to a specified multiple of the
executive's base salary. The guidelines currently range from four times base salary for the Chief Executive Officer to two times base
salary for senjor vice presidents who are executive officers. The value of each executive's share holdings for purposes of the
guidelines is based on the greater of the current market price of the Company’s common stock or the market price on the date the
executive purchased the shares. Even though some executive officers hold a number of shares at or above the number of shares
specified under the guidelines, the Compensation Committee recognizes that newer executive officers or employees who were
recently promoted to executive officer positions may require some period of time to achieve the guideline amounts. The guidelines
therefore contemplate a five-year transition period for acquiring a number of shares with the specified market value. The
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Compensation Committee monitors and considers each executive’s progress toward achieving the levels of share ownership specified
in the guidelines in determining grants of equity awards.

Tax Deductibility and Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code generally limits the corporate deduction for compensation paid to the Chief
Executive Officer and other Named Executives to $! million per individual, unless certain requirements are met which establish that
compensation as performance-based. The Compensation Committee has considered the impact of this tax code provision and attempts,
to the extent practical, to implement compensation policies and practices that maximize the potential income tax deductions available
to the Company by qualifying such policies and practices as performance-based compensation exempt from the deduction limits of
Section 162(m).

The Compensation Committee will continue to review and modify our compensation practices and programs as necessary to
ensure our ability to attract and retain key executives while taking into account the deductibility of compensation payments. Under the
2005 Stock Incentive Plan and, if approved at the annual meeting of shareholders, our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, awards of stock
options and stock appreciation rights are designed generally to meet the performance-based compensation exception to the Section
162(m) deduction limitation. Performance awards available under the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan and, if approved at the annual
meeting of shareholders, our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (which may be paid in the form of cash, restricted common stock or
unrestricted common stock), may be designed to meet the performance-based compensation exception to Section 162(m),

For fiscal 2007, Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code did not limit our deduction for compensation paid to our Chiefl
Executive Officer and other Named Executives. :

Current Freeze on Executive Compensation

During the first quarter of our fiscal 2008, the Compensation Committee resolved to freeze compensation for our executive
officers until the Company’s performance improves or the Compensation Committee determines that other circumstances dictate that
it would be appropriate to increase or offer additional compensation. The freeze includes any new bonus arrangements, salary
adjustments and equity-based compensation awards. The only exceptions to the freeze on executive compensation are for bonus
arrangements made available to one or more of our principal sales executives to provide an incentive for sales bookings, revenues
and/or contribution margins. The only Named Executive who will have an opportunity to earn bonuses in his capacity as a principal
sales executive is Mr. Sherlock, the Senior Vice President and Managing Director for the EMEA.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee of the Company has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis required
by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on such review and discussions, the compensation committee
recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement.

May 29, 2007

Members of the Compensation Committee
Donald B. Reed (Chair)

Saj-nicole A. Joni Ph.D.

Gerald F. Montry

Jack P. Reily
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The foliowing table sets forth certain summary information concerning the compensation paid or awarded to our Named

Executives for services rendered in all capacities to the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007.

1

Non-Equity
[ncentive Plan All Other
Option Awards Compensation Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salary (3)(1) ($)¥2) (8)(3) ($)(4) Total (§)

Robert E. Ritchey,
President & Chief Executive Officer 2007 §395000 31,169,369 b 0 $ 19,780 $1,584,149
Craig E. Holmes,
Executive Vice President .
& Chief Financial Officer 2007 262,500 290,122 ¢ 8,123 560,745
James A. Milton,
Executive Vice President , )
& Chief Operating Officer 2007 350,000 245,644 122,500 17,721 735,865
Francis G. Sherlock,
Senior Vice President
& Managing Director EMEA(5) 2007 239,561 95,267 122,113 16,499 473,440 -
Kenneth A. Goldberg,
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Development & Strategy (6) 2007 230,000 115,824 0 28,610 374,434

4y
(2)

(3)

4)

(5)

(6)

“Salary” includes amounts deferred at the Named Executive’s election pursuant to the Company’s 401(k) Employee Savings Plan.

The amounts disclosed under “Option Awards” represent the dotlar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
pursuant to FAS 123R. See Note J to the Company’s audited financia! statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for
a discussion of the relevant assumptions used in calculating these amounts.

Amounts disclosed under *Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” for Mr. Milton reflect the amount of cash bonus he earned
based on world-wide sales bookings during fiscal 2007. The amounts disclosed for Mr. Sherlock reflect the amount of cash bonus
he carned based on sales bookings, revenues and contribution margin for our EMEA operations. The bonus opportunities made -
available to Messrs. Milton and Sherlock are described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis.

“All Other Compensation™ for the Named Executives other than Mr. Sherlock, includes Company contributions on behaif of such
Named Executives under the Company’s 401(k) Employee Savings Plan, “gross-ups” or other amounts reimbursed during the
fiscal year for the payment of taxes and amounts includable in compensation for Company-paid group term life insurance and
disability insurance. All other compensation for Mr. Sherlock includes the items described in footote (5) below.

“All Other Compensation” for Mr. Sherlock includes $16,499 for car allowance, private medical coverage, Death in Service
Insurance, and fuel card usage.

“All Other Compensation” includes $21,537 to reimburse property taxes and relocation expenses for Mr. Goldberg.
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.GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to grants of plan-based awards for the fiscal year ended February
28, 2007 to the Named Executives.

Option
. Awsards:
- - Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of Exercise Price  Grant Date
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards(1)(2) Securities of Options Fair Value
Target N"lnximum Underlying of Option
| Name Grant Date Threshold (3} 8) .. ® Onptions (#) Awards (5/5h) Awards(3)
Robert E. Ritchey, e . : : o
President & Chief ) . .. . L. )
Executive Officer 7/13/06 $£ 159,975 $296,250 $ 563,408 150,000 $6.975 § 496,500
* } «
‘ Craig E. Holmes, A
| Executive Vice President & : T
: Chief Financial Officer 7/13/06 - 70,875 131,250 249,611 75,000 6975 . 248,250
' James A, Milton, Executive ' 66,150 122,500 - 232,971
' Vice President & Chief oo - o
Operating Officer 7/13/06 - 49:000 122,500 ' 367,500 75,000 6.975 248,250
Francis G. Sherlock, 22,639 41,924 79,729 A
Senior Vice President & ' B
Managing Director EMEA 7/13/06 50,307 125,769 - 377,306 35,000 6.975 - 115,850
Kenneth A. Goldberg, .
Senior Vice President, " .
Corporate Development & T o . )
Strategy 7/13/06 49,680 92,000 174,966 30,000 . 26975 . 99,300

. [ A . . R .

(1) The first row in the columns entitled “Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards” shows the range of
payouts that was targeted for performance under the Company’s Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive- Compensation Plan (the
“Fiscal 2007 AICP™), which was adopted-by the Compensation Committee on March 6, 2006. None of the Named Executives
eamned any bonuses under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which expired at the end of fiscal 2007. The Fiscal 2007 AICP is described in the
section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

(2) The second row in the columns entitled “Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards” shows the range of
payouts that was targeted under cash bonus plans  made available to Messrs. Milton and Sherlock in their capacities as the
principal sales executives for the Company’s global and EMEA operations, respectwely The actual amounts paid to Messrs,
Milton and Sherlock for the fi scal year ended February 28, 2007 are set forth in the Summary Compensation Table under the
column entitled “Non-Equity Indentive Plan‘Compensation.” The bonus opportunities made available to Messrs Milton' and
Sherlock are described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses™ in the Compensation Discussion and Analy51s ‘

(3) The amounts in the column entitled “Grant Date Fair Value of Option Awards” represent the full grant fair value of each award as
determined pursuant to FAS 123R.. . - . . ! ‘ S ) . o

IS L L .
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from a termination of Mr. Ritchey’s employment following a Corporate Change will generally occur six months after his date of
separation. The agreement also provides that, if the Change in Control Amount is subject to certain federal excise taxes, we will
“gross-up” the Change in Control Amount such that Mr. Ritchey will receive a net amount after such taxes, equal to the Change in
Control Amount that he would have received had such taxes not been imposed. If the Company had terminated Mr. Ritchey’s
employment without Cause or he had voluntarily terminated his employment with Good Reason on February 28, 2007, and this was
within 24 months of a “Change of Control” of the Company, Mr. Ritchey would have been entitled to receive a lump sum payment
equal to $1,181,050 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance in the aggregate amount of $17,363, for a
total value of $1,198,413.

Employment Agreements with Craig E. Holmes and James A. Milton. Effective’as of May 8, 2006, we entered into new
employment agreements with Craig Holmes, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and James Milton, our
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. The initial terms of the agreements will end on May 8, 2008, The new
employment agreements did not increase or otherwise modify the base salaries of $ 350,000 and $ 262,500 payable to Messrs. Milton
and Holmes, respectively, and did not offer them any additional cash bonus or equity based incentive opportunities. As with Mr.
Ritchey, each of them was eligible to earn a cash bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which is discussed below. In addition to his
opportunity to earn a bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP, Mr. Milton, in his capacity as our principal sales executive for global sales,
eamed a cash bonus equal to $ 122,500 or 35% of his base salary based on our global sales bookings for fiscal 2007. The bonus
opportunity for Mr. Milton in his capacity as a principle sales executive is described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, and a range of amounts of bonus he could have earned under such plan are described in
the table entitled “Grants of Plan Based Awards.”

The employment agreements with Messrs. Milton and Holmes require that the applicable executive not compete with us while he
renders services under his agreement and for a period of 18 months following the end of his employment. The agreements further
provide that we may terminate the executive’s employment for death, for Cause, or for Inability to Perform (as such terms are defined
in the agreements). Upon three months prior written notice, we may terminate the executive’s employment without Cause. The
executive may terminate his employment for Good Reason (as defined in the agreements), unless we are able to remedy the
circumstances constituting Good Reason within 30 days after the executive notifies us of such circumstances. If the executive dies, we
will pay his designated beneficiary any accrued and unpaid base salary plus a lump sum equivalent to six months’ base salary. In the
event that Messrs Milton and Holmes had died on February 28, 2007, their designated beneficiaries would have received lump sum
payments of $175,000 and $131,250, respectively. If the executive is terminated for Cause or for his Inability to Perform, we will have
no liability for further payments to him other than payment of any accrued and unpaid of his base salary through the date of
termination. .

If the executive’s employment is terminated by us for any reason other than death, Inability to Perform, or Cause, or if the
executive resigns for Good Reason, in either case prior to a Change of Control (as defined in their agreements), we will continue to
pay his base salary for 18 months following the end of his employment if, within 60 days, he signs a general release agreement. In
addition to paying his salary for 18 months we will continue to make matching contributions toward the payment of the executive’s
premiums for our group health insurance coverage for a period of up to 15 months. If, in our reasonable judgment, the executive after
the termination of his employment violates any of his obligations of confidentiality, noncompetition or nondisparagement, our
obligation to make monthly payments will end. In addition, we may suspend such payments if the executive is arrested or indicted for
any felony or similar criminal offense, or any violation of federal or state securities laws, or a civil enforcement action is brought
against him by a regulatory agency for actions or omissions related to his employment with us, or if we reasonably believe he
committed an act or omission that would have entitled us to terminate his employment for Cause. If the executive is found guilty or
enters into a plea agreement, consent decree, or similar arrangement with respect to a civil or criminal proceeding, or if the Board
determines that he has committed such an act or omission, our obligation to make any additional monthly payments will end and the
executive will repay to us any prior payments. If any such civil ar criminal proceedings do not result in a finding of guilt or an entry of
a plea arrangement or consent decree or similar arrangement, or the Board determines that the executive has not committed such an act
or omission, we will pay the executive any monthly payments that were suspended, with interest, and continue to make all remaining
payments. In the event that the Company had terminated Mr. Milton’s employment without “Cause” or he voluntarily terminated his
employment for “Good Reason,” in either case prior to a “Change in Control,” Mr. Milton would have been entitled to 18 monthly
payments in the aggregate amount of $525,000 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for a 15
month period in the aggregate amount of $20,967 for a total value of $545,967. In the event that the Company had terminated Mr.
Holmes employment without “Cause” or he voluntarily terminated his employment for “Good Reason,” in either case prior to a
“Change in Control,” Mr. Holmes would have been entitled to 18 monthly payments in the aggregate amount of $393,750 and
matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for a 15 month period in the aggregate amount of $20,967 for a
total value of $414,717,
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to grants of plan-based awards for the fiscal year ended February

28, 2007 to the Named Executives.

Option
Awards:
Estimated Future Payouts Under Number of Exercise Price  Grant Date
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards(1)(2) Securities of Options Fair Value
Target Mazimum Underlying of Option
Name Grant Date  Threshold (§) {$) L)) Options (#) Awards ($/Sh) Awards(3)
Robert E. Ritchey,
President & Chief
Executive Officer ‘ 7/13/06 $159,975 £ 296,250 $ 563,408 150,000 $6.975 $ 496,500
Craig E. Holmes,
Executive Vice President &
Chief Financial Officer 7/13/06 70,875 131,250 249,611 75,000 6.975 248,250
James A. Milton, Executive 66,150 122,500 232,971
Vice President & Chief
Operating Officer 7/13/06 49,000 122,500 367,500 75,000 6.975 248,250
Francis G. Sherlock, ' 22,639 41,924 79,729
Senior Vice President & .
Managing Director EMEA 7/13/06 50,307 125,769 377,306 35,000 6.975 - 115,850
Kenneth A. Goldberg,
Senior Vice President,
Corporate Development &
Strategy 7/13/06 49,680 92,000 174,966 30,000 .. +6.975 99,300

(1)

2)

&)

The first row in the columns entitled “Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards” shows the range of
payouts that was targeted for performance under the Company’s Fiscal Year 2007 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (the
“Fiscal 2007 AICP™), which was adopted by the Compensation Committee on March 6, 2006. None of the Named Executives
earned any bonuses under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which expired at the end of fiscal 2007. The Fiscal 2007 AICP is described in the
section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

The second row in the columns entitled “Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards™ shows the range of
payouts that was targeted under cash bonus plans made available to Messrs. Milton and Sherlock in their capacities as the
principal sales executives for the Company’s global and EMEA operations, respectively. The actual amounts paid to Messrs.
Milton and Sherlock for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007 are set forth in the Summary Compensation Table under the
column entitled “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation.” The bonus opportunities made available to Messrs. Milton and
Sherlock are described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

The amounts in the column entitled “Grant Date Fair Value of Option Awards” represent the full grant fair value of each award as
determined pursuant to FAS 123R.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT END OF FISCAL YEAR 2007

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to grants of stock options to the Named Executives that remained
outstanding at the end of fiscal year 2007.

Option Awards

Number of
Securities
Underlying Number of Securities
Unexercised Underlying .
Options (#) Unexercised Options Option Exercise Option Expiration
Name Exercisable (#) Unexercisahle Price ($) Date
Robert E. 160,000 0 $7.51550 1-Dec-10
Ritchey, 50,000 0 § 11.99000 11-May-11
President & 40,000 0 51.88 22-Apr-13
Chief Executive 200,000 0 $7.115 20-Aug-13
Officer 75,000 75,000 (1) $9.105 21-Jul-14
200,000 100,000 (2) $13.020 6-Dec-14
122,500 122,500 (3) $9.535 13-Jul-12
0 150,000 (4) $6.97500 13-Jul-13
Craig E. Holmes, 70,000 0 $7.010 27-Aug-13
Executive Vice 45,000 50,000 (5) $9.105 21-Jul-14
President & 42,500 42,500 (6) $9.535 13-Jul-12
Chief Financial Officer 0 75,000 (7) $6.97500 13-Jul-13
James A. Milton, 50,000 100,000 (8) $8.575 30-Jan-13
Executive Vice President & 0 75,000 (9) $6.97500 13-Jul-13
Chief Operating Officer
Francis G. Sherlock, 15,000 0 £ 14.87500 17-Aug-09
Senior Vice President & 7,500 0 9.68750 8-Aug-10
Managing Director EMEA 7,000 0 1.015 18-Jul-12
. 10,500 0 $1.88 22-Apr-13
30,000 0 §7.115 20-Aug-13
15,000 15,000 (10) $9.105 21-Jul-i4
12,500 12,500 (11) $9.535 13-Jul-12
0 35,000 (12) £6.97500 13-Jul-13
Kenneth A. Goldberg, 23,333 46,667 (13) $9.065 16-Aug-12
Senior Vice President, 0 30,000 (14) $£6.97500 13-Jul-13

Corporate Development & Strategy

(1) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 75,000 shares will vest on July 21, 2007.
{2) Ofthe shares underlying unvested options, approximately 100,000 shares will vest on December 6, 2007.
(3) Ofthe shares underlying unvested options, approximately 122,500 shares will vest on February 28, 2009.

(4) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 50,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2007, approximately 50,000 shares
will vest on July 13, 2008, and approximately 50,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2009.

(5) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximatety 30,000 shares will vest on July 21, 2007.
(6) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 42,500 shares will vest on February 28, 2009.

(7) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 25,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2007, approximately 25,000 shares
will vest on July 13, 2008, and approximately 25,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2009.
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(8) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 50,000 shares will vest on January 30, 2008 and approximately 50,000
shares will vest on January 30, 2009.

(9) Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 25,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2007, approximately 25,000 shares
will vest on July 13, 2008, and approximately 25,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2009.

(10)Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 15,000 shares will vest on July 21, 2007.
(11YOf the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 12,500 shares will vest on February 28, 2009.

(12)Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 11,666 shares will vest on July 13, 2007, approximately 11,667 shares
will'vest on July 13, 2008, and approximatety 11,667 shares will vest on July 13, 2009,

(13)Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 23,333 shares will vest on August 16, 2007 and approximately 23,334
shares will vest on August 16, 2008. '

(14)Of the shares underlying unvested options, approximately 10,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2007, approximately 10,000 shares
will vest on July 13, 2008, and approximately 10,000 shares will vest on July 13, 2009,

AGREEMENTS WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Employment Agreement with Robert E. Ritchey. Effective as of December 1, 2004, Robert E. Ritchey, our President and Chief
Executive Officer, entered into a new employment agreement with us. The initial term of his agreement will expire on February 28,
2008. The employment agreement provides that Mr. Ritchey will receive an annual base salary of $395,000 and may participate in our
annual incentive bonus programs applicable to his position, which included the Fiscal 2007 AICP which is discussed below. :

Under his employment agreement, Mr. Ritchey is required to not compete with us while he renders services and for a period of
two years following the end of his employment. The agreement further provides that we can terminate Mr. Ritchey’s employment for
death, for Cause, or for Inability to Perform (as such terms are defined in the agreement). Upon six months prior written notice, we
may also terminate his employment without Cause. Mr. Ritchey may terminate his employment for Good Reason (as defined in the
agreement) unless we are able to remedy the circumstances constituting Good Reason within 30 days after Mr. Ritchey notifies us of
such circumstances. If Mr. Ritchey dies, we will pay his designated beneficiary any accrued and unpaid salary plus a lump sum
equivalent to six months’ base salary. In the event that Mr. Ritchey had died on February 28, 2007, his beneficiary would have
received a lump sum payment equal to $197,500. If his employment is terminated for Cause or for his [nability to Perform, we will
have no liability for further payments to Mr. Ritchey other than payment of any unpaid portion of his base salary through the date of
termination.

If Mr. Ritchey’s employment is terminated by us for any reason other than death, Inability to Perform, or Cause, or if Mr. Ritchey
terminates his employment for Good Reason, in either event prior 1o a Change of Control of the Company, we will continue to pay
him an amount equal to his base salary and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for 18 months
following the end of his employment. To receive such payments following the termination of his employment, Mr. Ritchey must,
within 60 days, sign a general release agreement. If, following the termination of Mr. Ritchey's employment we determine in our
reasonable judgment that he has violated any of his obligations of confidentiality, noncompetition or nondisparagement, we will stop
making payments to him and require him to repay any prior payments. In addition, we may suspend such payments if Mr. Ritchey is
arrested or indicted for any felony or similar criminal offense, or any violation of federal or state securities laws, or a civil
enforcement action is brought against him by a regulatory agency for actions or omissions related to his employment with us, or if we
reasonably believe that he committed an act or omission that would have entitled us to terminate his employment for Cause. if Mr.
Ritchey is found guilty or enters into a plea agreement, consent decree, or similar arrangement with respect to a civil or criminal
proceeding, or if the Board determines that he has committed such an act or omission, we will stop making monthly payments to him
and require him to repay all prior payments. If any such civil or criminal proceedings do not result in a finding of guilt or an entry of a
plea arrangement or consent decree or similar arrangement, or the Board determines that Mr. Ritchey has not committed such an act or
omission, we will pay Mr. Ritchey any monthly payments that were suspended, with interest, and continue to make all remaining
payments. In the event that the Company had terminated Mr. Ritchey’s employment without “Cause™ or he voluntarily terminated his
employment for “Good Reason,” in either case prior to a “Change in Control,” Mr. Ritchey would have been entitled to 18 monthly
payments in the aggregate amount of $592,500 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for such 13
month period in the aggregate amount of $17,363 for a total value of $60%,363,

Following a Corporate Change (as defined in the agreement) and for a period of two years thereafier, if Mr. Ritchey’s
employment is terminated for any reason other than death, Inability to Perform, Cause, or termination by Mr. Ritchey for Good
Reason, we will pay him a lump sum amount (the “Change in Control Amount™) equal to his then-current base salary and the amount
of annual incentive bonus which he received in the Company’s last fiscal year multiplied by 2.99. Any lump sum payment resulting
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from a termination of Mr. Ritchey’s employment following a Corporate Change will generally occur six months after his date of
separation. The agreement also provides that, if the Change in Control Amount is subject to certain federal excise taxes, we will
“gross-up” the Change in Control Amount such that Mr. Ritchey will receive a net amount after such taxes, equal to the Change in
Control Amount that he would have received had such taxes not been imposed. If the Company had terminated Mr. Ritchey’s
employment without Cause or he had voluntarily terminated his employment with Good Reason on February 28, 2007, and this was
within 24 months of a *Change of Control” of the Company, Mr. Ritchey would have been entitled to receive a lump sum payment
equal to $1,181,050 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance in the aggregate amount of $17,363, for a
total value of $1,198,413,

Empiloyment Agreements with Craig E. Holmes and James A. Milton. Effective as of May 8, 2006, we entered into new
employment agreements with Craig Holmes, our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and James Milton, our
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. The initial terms of the agreements will end on May 8, 2008. The new
employment agreements did not increase or otherwise modify the base salaries of § 350,000 and $ 262,500 payable to Messrs. Milton
and Holmes, respectively, and did not offer them any additional cash bonus or equity based incentive opportunities. As with Mr.
Ritchey, each of them was eligible to earn a cash bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which is discussed below. In addition to his
opportunity to earn a bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP, Mr. Milton, in his capacity as our principal sales executive for global sales,
earned a cash bonus equal to $ 122,500 or 35% of his base salary based on our global sales bookings for fiscal 2007. The bonus
opportunity for Mr. Milton in his capacity as a principle sales executive is described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in
the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, and a range of amounts of bonus he could have earned under such plan are described in
the table entitled “Grants of Plan Based Awards.”

The employment agreements with Messrs. Milton and Holmes require that the applicable executive not compete with us while he
renders services under his agreement and for a period of 18 months following the end of his employment. The agreements further
provide that we may terminate the executive’s employment for death, for Cause, or for Inability to Perform (as such terms are defined
in the agreements). Upon three months prior written notice, we may terminate the executive’s employment without Cause. The
executive may terminate his employment for Good Reason (as defined in the agreements), unless we are able to remedy the
circumstances constituting Good Reason within 30 days after the executive notifies us of such circumstances. If the executive dies, we
will pay his designated beneficiary any accrued and unpaid base salary plus a lump sum equivalent to six months’ base salary. In the
event that Messrs Milton and Holmes had died on February 28, 2007, their designated beneficiaries would have received lump sum
payments of $175,000 and $131,250, respectively. If the executive is terminated for Cause or for his Inability to Perform, we will have
no liability for further payments to him other than payment of any accrued and unpaid of his base salary through the date of
termination.

If the executive’s employment is terminated by us for any reason other than death, Inability to Perform, or Cause, or if the
executive resigns for Good Reason, in either case prior to a Change of Control {as defined in their agreements), we will continue to
pay his base salary for 18 months following the end of his employment if, within 60 days, he signs a general release agreement. In
addition to paying his salary for 18 months we will continue to make matching contributions toward the payment of the executive’s
premiums for our group health insurance coverage for a period of up to 15 months, If, in our reasonable judgment, the executive after
the termination of his employment violates any of his obligations of confidentiality, noncompetition or nondisparagement, our
obligation to make monthly payments will end. In addition, we may suspend such payments if the executive is arrested or indicted for
any felony or similar criminal offense, or any violation of federal or state securities laws, or a civil enforcement action is brought
against him by a regulatory agency for actions or omissions related to his employment with us, or if we reasonably believe he
committed an act or omission that would have entitled us to terminate his employment for Cause, If the executive is found guilty or
enters into a plea agreement, consent decree, or similar arrangement with respect to a civil or criminal proceeding, or if the Board
determines that he has committed such an act or omission, our obligation to make any additional monthly payments will end and the
executive will repay to us any prior payments. If any such civil or criminal proceedings do not result in a finding of guilt or an entry of
a plea arrangement or consent decree or similar arrangement, or the Board determines that the executive has not committed such an act
or omission, we will pay the executive any monthly payments that were suspended, with interest, and continue to make all remaining
payments. In the event that the Company had terminated Mr. Milton’s employment without “Cause” or he voluntarily terminated his
employment for “Good Reason,” in either case prior to a “Change in Control,” Mr. Milton would have been entitled to 18 monthly
payments in the aggregate amount of $525,000 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for a 15
month period in the aggregate amount of $20,967 for a total value of $545,967. In the event that the Company had terminated Mr.
Holmes employment without “Cause” or he voluntarily terminated his employment for “Good Reason,” in either case prior to a
“Change in Control,” Mr. Holmes would have been entitled to 18 monthly payments in the aggregate amount of $393,750 and
matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance for a 15 month period in the aggregate amount of $20,967 for a
total value of $414,717.
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Following a Corporate Change (as defined in the agreements) and for a period of 18 months thereafter, if the employment of
Messrs. Milton or Holmes is terminated for any reason other than death, [nability to Perform, Cause, or termination by the executive
for Good Reason, we will pay him a lump sum-amount (the “Change in Control Amount”) equal to 2.00 times the sum of his then-
current base salary and the amount of annual incentive bonus he received for the last fiscal year (as determined in accordance with his
agreement), The payment will generalty occur six months after his date of separation. The agreement also provides that, if the Change
in Control Amount is subject to certain federal excise taxes, we will “gross-up” the Change in Control Amount such that the executive
will receive a net amount after such taxes, equal to the Change in Control Amount that he would have received had such taxes not
been imposed. If the Company had terminated Mr, Milton’s employment without Cause or he had voluntarily terminated his
employment with Good Reason on February 28, 2007, and this was within 18 months of a “Change of Control” of the Company, Mr.
Milton would have been entitled to receive a lump sum payment equal to $700,000 and matching contributions on premiums for our
group health insurance in the aggregate amount of $20,967, for a total value of $720,967. If the Company had terminated Mr. Holmes’
employment without Cause or he had voluntarily terminated his employment with Good Reason on February 28, 2007, and this was
within 18 months of a “Change of Control” of the Company, Mr. Holmes would have been entitled to receive a lump sum payment
equal to $525,000 and matching contributions on premiums for our group health insurance in the aggregate amount of $20, 967, for a
total value of $545,967.

Employment Agreement with Francis G. Sherlock. Mr. Sherlock has an employment agreement with our subsidiary in the
United Kingdom which was entered into by Mr. Sherlock when he joined Brite Voice Systems Group Limited on April 15, 1998. Brite
Voice Systems Group Limited, now known as Intervoice Limited, was acquired by us in June of 1999. Mr. Sherlock’s employment
agreement covers his employment within our UK operations and sets out the policies under which his employment is governed. Mr.
Sherlock’s employment agreement does not set out his annual salary but it does provide for severance notice in the event his
employment is terminated for reasons other than gross misconduct. Based on Mr. Sherlock’s tenure with us, Mr. Sherlock is currently
entitled to receive eight weeks notice if we terminate his employment.

As with the other Named Executives, Mr. Sherlock was eligible to earn a cash bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which is
discussed below. In addition to his opportunity to earn a bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP, Mr. Sherlock, in his capacity as a
principal sales executive, earned a cash bonus equal to $122,113 or 51% of his base salary based on sales bookings, revenues and
contribution margin for our EMEA operations during fiscal 2007. The bonus opportunity for Mr. Sherlock in his capacity as a
principal sales executive is also described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation Discussion and
Analysis, and a range of amounts of bonus he could have earned under such plan are described in the table entitled “Grants of Plan
Based Awards.”

Employment Agreement with Kenneth A. Goldberg. Effective March 1, 2007, we entered into an employment agreement with
Kenneth Goldberg, Senior Vice President of Corporate Development and Strategy. The initial term of the agreement will end on
February 28, 2009. The new employment agreement did not modify Mr. Goldberg’s annual base salary of $230,000 or his eligibility to
participate in the Fiscal 2007 AICP, which is discussed below, or any other annual incentive bonus program we may offer our
executive officers, including the Named Executives. The new agreement also did not provide for Mr. Goldberg to receive any
additional equity-based compensation.

The employment agreement requires Mr. Goldberg to not work for one of our competitors, disparage us, solicit employees to
terminate their employment, or solicit customers or vendors to terminate their business with us, during the term of the agreement and
for a period of 12 months (24 months with respect to non-solicitation of employees) following the end of his employment. Under the
agreement we may terminate Mr. Goldberg’s employment for death, for Cause, or for Inability to Perform (as such terms are defined
in his agreement). Upon 90 days prior notice we may also terminate his employment without Cause. If Mr. Goldberg dies we will pay
any accrued and unpaid salary to his designated beneficiary. If we terminate Mr. Goldberg’s employment for Cause or for Inability to
Perform, we will have no liability for further payments other than payment of any accrued and unpaid base salary through the date
specified in the notice of termination. If we terminate Mr. Goldberg’s employment for any reason other than death, Inability to
Perform, or Cause, we will continue to pay his base salary and matching contributions for his group health insurance for 12 months
following the end of his employment, provided he signs a general release agreement. In the event that the Company had terminated
Mr. Goldberg’s employment without “Cause” or he voluntarily terminated his employment for “Good Reason,” Mr. Goldberg would
have been entitled to 12 monthly payments in the aggregate amount of $230,000 and matching contributions on premiums for our
group health insurance for such 12 month period in the aggregate amount of $16,773, for a total value of $246,773.

If, in our reasonable judgment, Mr. Goldberg viclates any obligations of confidentiality, non-competition, non-solicitation or non-
disparagement after his employment is terminated, our obligation to make monthly payments under his agreement will end. In
addition, we may suspend such payments if he is arrested or indicted for any felony or similar criminai offense, or he violates any
federa! or state securities laws, or a civil enforcement action is brought against him by a regulatory agency for actions or omissions
related to his or her employment with us, or if we reasonably believes he has committed an act or omission that would have entitled us
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to terminate his employment for Cause. If Mr. Goldberg is found guilty or enters into a plea agreement, consent decree, or similar
arrangement with respect to a civil or criminal proceeding, or if the Board determines that he committed such an act or omission, we
will stop making monthly payments under his agreement and require him to repay any prior payments. If any such civil or criminal
proceedings do not result in a finding of guilt or an entry of a plea arrangement or consent decree or similar arrangement, or the Board
determines that he has not committed such an act or omission, we will pay him any monthly payments that were suspended, with
interest, and continue to make all remaining payments. Following a Corporate Change (as defined in his agreement) with less than one
year remaining under the agreement, the term of the agreement will automatically extend through the first anniversary of the date of
the Corporate Change. - :

The Fiscal 2007 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, The Named Executives and our other executive officers were eligible to
earn a cash bonus under the Fiscal 2007 Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Fiscal 2007 AICP”). The Named Executives and
other executive officers did not earn a bonus under the Fiscal 2007 AICP which expired as of February 28, 2007. The Fiscal 2007
AICP is described in the section entitled “Annual Cash Bonuses” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, and a range of
amounts of bonus each of the Named Executive’s could have earned under such plan is described in the table entitled “Grants of Plan
Based Awards.” For a discussion of the reasons why the Compensation Committee has not approved a cash bonus program for the
Named Executives for Fiscal 2008, see the section entitled “Current Freeze on Executive Compensation” in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis. For a discussion of our process for establishing the compensation mix for our Named Executives, including
the process for allocating amounts of salary and bonus in proportion to other elements of total compensation, see the section entitled
“Process for Establishing Compensation” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

Stock Options Granted to the Named Executives. Each of the Named Executives was granted an option to purchase shares of
Common Stock under our 2005 Stock Incentive Plan during fiscal 2007. The number of shares covered by the options granted to each
Named Executive and the exercise price for the options is set forth in the table entitled “Grants of Plan Based Awards.” An expanded
discussion of the terms of the options granted to the Named Executives and our process for granting them equity-based compensation
is set forth in the section entitled “Equity-Based Compensation” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. The Company’s 2005
Stock Incentive Plan and the prior option plans of the Company all have change of control provisions discussed in the section entitled
“Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Change of Control Provisions” in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis. :
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

On June 22, 2007, the Company entered into the Governance Agreement with David W. Brandenburg in connection with the
resolution of a proxy solicitation initiated by Mr. Brandenburg to have seven of his nominees elected to the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Governance Agreement provides for, among other things, the appointment of Mr. Brandenburg, Daniel D. Hammond
and Timothy W. Harris as directors concurrently with the execution of the Governance Agreement, the nomination of Messrs.
Brandenburg, Hammond and Harris for election as directions at the Company’s 2007 annual meeting, the election of Mr. Brandenburg
as the Chairman of the Board and Daniel D. Hammond as Vice Chairman of the Board, and the reimbursement by the Company of
Mr. Brandenburg’s out-of-pocket and other expenses in connection with his proxy solicitation and the negotiation, execution and
performance of the Governance Agreement up to $500,000. See “Board Representation and Governance Agreement.” Immediately
prior to entering into the Governance Agreement, the Company entered into letter agreements providing certain benefits to the three
former directors, Saj-nicole Joni, Joseph J. Pietropaclo and Jack P. Reily who agreed to resign at the Company’s request. See’
“Directors Resignation Agreements.”

The Board of Directors has determined that Daniel D. Hammond, Timothy W. Harris, Gerald F. Montry and Donald B. Reed are
“independent directors” under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s Listing Standards. In addition, the Board of Directors has determined
that Saj-nicole Joni, Ph.D., Joseph J. Pietropaolo and Jack P. Reily, former directors who resigned on June 22, 2007, were
“independent directors” under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASD’s Listing Standards. Mr. Brandenburg is not currently deemed to be an
“independent director” under Rule 4200(a)(15) of the NASI)’s Listing Standards due to his previous employment with the Company
less than three years ago. Effective December 1, 2007, Mr. Brandenburg is expected to be able to qualify as an “independent director”
under Rule 4200(a){15) of the NASD’s Listing Standards.

For information concerning agreements between the Company and each of Robert E. Ritchey, Craig E. Holmes, James A, Milton,
Francis G. Sherlock and Kenneth A. Goldberg see “Agreements with Executive Officers.”

Related Party Transaction Policy. The Board of Directors has adopted a written Related Party Transaction Policy (the
“Policy”). The purpose of the Policy is to describe the procedures used to review, approve or ratify and disclose, if necessary, any
transaction or series of transactions, that would require disclosure under Item 404(a) of Regulation 8-K of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in which (i) the aggregate amount involved will or may be expected to exceed $120,000 in any calendar year, (ii) we are
or will be a participant and (iii) a related person has or will have a direct or indirect material interest. For purposes of the Policy, a
related person is each member of the Board of Directors, each executive officer, any nominee for director, and any security holder
known to us to own of record or beneficially 5% of our Common Stock, or any member of their immediate family.

Once a related party transaction is presented,.the Audit Committee or another independent committee of the Board must review
the transaction for approval or ratification. In determining whether to approve or ratify a related party transaction, the Audit
Committee or other independent committee, as applicable, will consider all relevant facts and circumstances, including the following
factors:

*  the nature of the related person’s interest in the transaction;

* the material terms of the transaction, including the amount involved and type of transaction;

+ the importance to the related person and to us,

*  whether the transaction would impair the judgment of a director or executive officer to act in the best interest of the Company
and its shareholders; and

*  any other matters the Audit Committee deems appropriate.
No director may participate in any discussion, approval or ratification of a transaction in which he or she is a related person,

except that the director will provide all material information concerning the transaction to the Audit Committee or such other
designated independent commiitee,
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SECTION 16{A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

The Company is not aware of any executive officer or director who failed to file on a timely basis a report required under Section
16(a) of the Exchange Act to disclose a transaction or holdings involving our securities. In making this representation, we are relying
on written representations of its current and former executive officers and directors.

AUDITORS

The Audit Committee appointed the firm of Ernst & Young LLP as independent auditors of the Company for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2007. Ratification or other action by our shareholders concerning the appointment of the independent auditors of the
Company for fiscal 2007 is not required. The Audit Committee is still in the process of reviewing the appointment of independent
auditors for fiscal 2008 and, therefore, has not yet made an appointment.

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2007, Emst & Young LLP provided audit services to us including an examination of
our financial statements and an examination of our internal control over financial reporting. Emst & Young LLP has advised us that
no material relationship exists between Ernst & Young LLP or any of its partners and the Company and that it is independent from the
Company in all respects. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has considered the non-audit services provided to us by Ernst
& Young LLP and believes such are compatible with maintaining such firm’s independence. Certain audit and audit-related services
were not formally approved by the Audit Committee, due to inadvertence, until such services had been performed in whole or in part.
Emst & Young LLP determined that such audit and audit-related services were performed wnth the knowledge of the Audit Committee
and, therefore, there was no effect on their independence related to such services.

Representatives of Emst & Young LLP are expected to attend the 2007 annual meeting. These representatives will have the
opportunity to make a statement at the meeting if they desire to do so and will also be available to respond to appropriate questions.

FEES OF AUDITOR

The fees billed by Emst & Young LLP for professional services rendered to the Company and its subsidiaries for the fiscal years
ended February 28, 2006 and February 28, 2007 were as follows:

2006 2007
Audit Fees (a) , $ 1,048,749 85.7% $1,274914 91.8%
Audit-Related Fees (b) 57,449 4.7% 60,361 4.3%
Tax Fees (¢) 118,161 9.6% 54,106 3.9%
All Other Fees 0 0.0% 0 0.0%
Total $1,224,359 160.0% § 1,389,381 100.0%

(a) Fees for audit services billed for fiscal years 2006 and 2007 consisted of the audits of the Company’s annual consolidated
financial statements (including audits of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting), reviews of its quarterly
consolidated financial statemnents, consents and other services related to Securities and Exchange Commission matters, and
statutory audits of certain foreign subsidiaries.

b) Fees for audit-related services in fiscal 2006 consisted primarily of services related to the Company’s purchase of Edify
Corporation and to the production of documents in connection with certain legal matters. Fees for audit-related services in fiscal
2007 consisted primarily of services related to previously disclosed pending litigation and compliance matters.

(c) Tax fees billed in fiscal years 2006 and 2007 included fees for tax compliance services performed for the Company, including
compliance services related to various foreign subsidiaries and certain personnel on expatriate assignments, and tax advice
regarding doing business in certain foreign countries, and in fiscal 2006 the Company’s transfer pricing policies.

All services provided by Emst & Young LLP during fiscal year ended February 28, 2007 were approved by the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS AND OTHER MATTERS

If a shareholder intends to present a proposal for action at the Company’s 2008 annual meeting and wishes to have such proposal
considered for inclusion in the Company’s proxy materials in reliance on Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, the proposal must be
submitted in writing and received by the Company by February 13, 2008. Such proposals must also meet the other requirements of the
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to shareholder proposals.

In addition, if a shareholder submits a proposal outside of Rule 14a-8 for the 2007 annual meeting, then the Company’s proxy
may confer discretionary authority on the persons being appointed as proxies on behalf of management to vote on the proposal,
Proposals and nominations should be addressed to the Corporate Secretary of the Company at 17811 Waterview Parkway, Dallas,
Texas 75252.

The cost of solicitation of proxies will be borne by the Company. Solicitation may be made by mail, personal interview, telephone
and/or telegraph by officers and regular employees of the Company, who will receive no additional compensation for such
solicitations. To aid in the solicitation of proxies, the Company is employing the firm of Georgeson Shareholder Services, a proxy
solicitation firm in New York, New York, to solicit proxies from brokers, banks, nominees, institutional holders and individual
holders for use at the meeting at a fee of approximately $12,000, plus out-of-pocket expenses. The Company will bear the reasonable
expenses incurred by banks, brokerage firms and custodians, nominees and fiduciaries in forwarding proxy material to beneficial
OwWners,

For a discussion of the Company’s financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations, see Item 7
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K,
which Item is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this proxy statement. For a discussion of quantitative and qualitative
disclosures about market risk, see Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in the 2007 Annual Report
on Form 10-K, which Item is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this proxy statement. For the financial statements
and supplementary financial information for the Company, see Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary- Data” in the 2007
Annual Report on Ferm 10-K, which Item is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this proxy statement. For a
discussion of any changes in or disagreements with the dccountants on accounting and financial disclosure, see Item 9 “Changes in
and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure” in the 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, which Item
is incorporated herein by reference and made a part of this proxy statement. The Company will provide, by first class mail or other
equally prompt means, a copy of the information that is incorporated by reference in the proxy statement, without charge, to each
person to whom a proxy statement is delivered upon written or oral request within one day of receipt of such request. Requests for
such information may be directed to Intervoice, Inc., Attention: Corporate Secretary, 17811 Waterview Parkway, Dallas, Texas 75252,
telephone (972) 454-8000. :

\

INTERVOICE, INC.

Robert E. Ritchey
President
and Chief Executive Officer
Dallas, Texas
June 26, 2007
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APPENDIX A

INTERVOICE, INC.
2007 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
ARTICLE 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE

Section 1.1 Establishment, Intervoice, Inc. (“Intervoice™) hereby establishes the Intervoice, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, as
set forth in this document, as an amendment and restatement of the Intervoice, Inc, 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The Intervoice, Inc.
2005 Stock Incentive Plan was established effective July 13, 2005, as an amendment and restatement of the Intervoice, Inc. 1998
Stock Option Plan, the Intervoice-Brite, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan and the Intervoice, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan. Awards granted
pursuant to the Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock [ncentive Plan, the Intervoice, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, the Intervoice-Brite, Inc, 1999
Stock Option Plan or the Intervoice, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan shall continue to be governed by the terms of such plan as in effect
at the time of the award and the related award agreement.

Section 1.2 Purpese. The purposes of the Plan are to attract and retain highly qualified individuals to perform services for
Intervoice and to align the interests of those individuals with those of the stockholders of Intervoice. Intervoice is committed to
creating long-term stockholder value. Intervoice’s compensation philosophy is based on a belief that Intervoice can best create

~ stockholder value if employees, directors and certain others providing services to Intervoice and its Affiliates act and are rewarded as
' business owners. Intervoice believes that an equity stake through equity compensation programs effectively aligns service provider
and stockholder interests by motivating and rewarding long-term performance that will enhance stockholder value.

Section 1.3 Effectiveness and Term. The Plan shall become effective on July 11, 2007, provided it is approved by the
stockholders of Intervoice in a manner that complies with applicable law within 12 months after such date; provided, however, that no
Awards shall be made under this Plan unless and until it is approved by the stockholders of Intervoice within such 12-month period.
Unless terminated earlier by the Board, this Plan shall terminate on July 11, 2012,

ARTICLE II. DEFINITIONS

Section 2.1 “Affiliate” means (a) with respect to Incentive Stock Options, a “parent corporation” or a “subsidiary corporation” of
Intervoice, as those terms are defined in sections 424(e) and (f) of the Code, respectively, and (b} with respect to other Awards, any .
corporation or other type of entity in a chain of corporations or other entities, starting with Intervoice, in which each corporation or
other entity has a “controlling interest” in another corporation or entity in the chain; provided, however, that with respect to the grant
of an Option, SAR or other stock right, “Affiliate” does not include corporations or other entities in the chain below the corperation or
other entity for which the Participant was providing services on the date of grant of the Option, SAR or other sto¢k right. For purposes
of this Section, “contrelling interest” means (A) in the case of a corporation, ownership of stock possessing at least 50% of total
combined voting power of all classes of stock entitled to vote of such corporation or at least 50% of the total value of shares of all
classes of stock of such corporation; (B} in the case of a partnership, ownership of at least 50% of the profits interest or capital interest
of such partnership; (C) in the case of a sole proprietorship, ownership of the sole proprietorship; or (D} in the case of a trust or estate,
ownership of an actuarial interest (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.414(c)-2(b)(2)(ii)) of at least 50% of such trust or
estate.

Section 2.2 “Award” means an award granted to a Participant in the form of Options, SARs, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock
Units, Performance Awards, Stock Awards or Other Incentive Awards, whether granted singly or in combination.

Section 2.3 “Award Agreement” means a written agreement between Intervoice and a Participant that sets forth the terms,
conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to an Award.

Section 2.4 “Board” means the Board of Directors of Intervoice.
Section 2.5 “Cash Dividend Right” means a contingent right, granted in tandem with a specific Restricted Stock Unit Award, to
receive an amount in cash equal to the cash distributions made by Intervoice with respect to a share of Common Stock during the

period such Award is outstanding.

Section 2.6 “Cause” means a finding by the Committee of acts or omissions constituting willful misconduct or gross negligence
in the course of the Participant’s employment or service with the Company.

Section 2.7 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, including regulations thereunder
and successor provisions and regulations.
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Section 2.8 “Committee” means the Compensation Committee of the Board or such other committee of the Board as may be
designated by the Board to administer the Plan, which committee shail consist of two or more members of the Board, each of whom is
an Outside Director; provided, however, that with respect to the application of the Plan to Awards made to Outside Directors,
“Committee” means the Board. To the extent that no Committee exists that has the authority to administer the Plan, the functions of
the Committee shall be exercised by the Board. If for any reason the appointed Committee does not meet the requirements of Rule
16b-3 or Section 162(m) of the Code, such noncompliance with such requirements shall not affect the validity of Awards, grants,
interpretations or other actions of the Commitiee.

Section 2.9 “Common Stock” means the common stock of Intervoice, no par value per share, or any stock or other securities of
Intervoice hereafter issued or issuable in substitution or exchange for the Common Stock.

Section 2.10 “Company” means Intervoice and any Affiliate.

Section 2.11 “Competitor” means any person or entity that carries on business activities in competition with the activities of
Intervoice or any affiliate of Intervoice, including but not limited to, (a) Avaya, Nortel, Comverse Technology, Huawei, Aspect,
Alcatel/Lucent, Cisco Systems, Syntellect, TuVox, Viecore, Nuance, BBN, and Vocalocity, or, if those corporate names are not
formally correct, the businesses commonly referred to by those names; and (b) the successors to, assigns of, and Affiliates of the
persons or entities described in (a).

Section 2.12 “Corporate Change” means (a) the dissolution or liquidation of Intervoice; (b) a reorganization, merger, or
consolidation of Intervoice with one or more corporations (other than a merger or consolidation effecting a reincorporation of
Intervoice in another state or any other merger or consolidation in which the shareholders of the surviving corporation and their
proportionate interests therein immediately afier the merger or consolidation are substantially identical to the shareholders of
Intervoice and their proportionate interests therein immediately prior to the merger or consolidation) (collectively, a “Corporate
Change Merger™); (c) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of Intervoice; or (d) the occurrence of a Change in Control. A
“Change in Control” shall be deemed to have occurred if (a) individuals who were directors of Intervoice immediately prior to a
Control Transaction shall cease, within 18 months of such Control Transaction, to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors of
Intervoice (or of the Board of Directors of any successor to Intervoice or to a company which has acquired all or substantially all its
assets) other than by reason of an increase in the size of the membership of the applicable Board that is approved by at least a majority
of the individuals who were directors of Intervoice immediately prior to such Control Transaction or (b) any entity, person, or Group
acquires shares of Intervoice in a transaction or series of transactions that result in such entity, person, or Group directly or indirectly
owning beneficially 50% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock. As used herein, “Control Transaction” means (a) any
tender offer for or acquisition of capital stock of Intervoice pursuant to which any person, entity, or Group directly or indirectly
acquires beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock; (b} any Corporate Change Merger of
Intervoice; (c) any contested election of directors of Intervoice; or (d) any combination of the foregoing, any one of which results in a
change in voting power sufficient to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of Intervoice. As used herein, “Group” means persons
who act “in concert” as described in Sections 13(d)(3) and/or 14(d){2) of the Exchange Act.

Section 2.13 “Disability” means a Participant (a) is unable to engage in any substantial gainful activity by reason of any
medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a
continuous period of not less than 12 months, (b) is, by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which
can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months, receiving income
replacement benefits for a period of not less than 3 months under an accident and health plan covering employees of the Company, (c)
is determined to be disabled in accordance with a disability insurance program that includes a definition of disability that complies
with clause (a) or (b) of this Section, or (d) is determined to be totally disabled by the Social Security Administration.

Section 2.14 “Dividend Unit Right” means a contingent right, granted in tandem with a specific Restricted Stock Unit Award, to
have an additional number of Restricted Stock Units credited to a Participant in respect of the Award equal to the number of shares of
Common Stock that could be purchased at Fair Market Value with the amount of each cash distribution made by Intervoice with
respect to a share of Common Stock during the period such Award is outstanding.

Section 2.15 “Effective Date” means the date this Plan becomes effective as provided in Section1.3.

Section 2.16 “Employee” means an employee of the Company; provided, however, that the term “Employee” does not include an
Outside Director or an individual performing services for the Company who is treated for tax purposes as an independent contractor at

the time of performance of the services.

Section 2.17 “Exchange Act™” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Section 2.18 “Fair Market Value” means (a) if the Commoen Stock is listed on any established stock exchange or a national
market system, including without limitation Nasdaq Global Select Market, Nasdaq Global Market and Nasdaq Capital Market, the
closing sales price for such stock (or the closing bid, if no sales were reported) as quoted on such exchange or system for the date of
the determination {or if there was no quoted price for such date, then for the last preceding business day on which there was a quoted
price), as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Committee deems reliable, (b) if the Common Stock is
regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but selling prices are not reported, the mean between the high bid and low asked
prices for the Common stock for the date of the determination, as reported in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the
Committee deems reliable, or (c) if the Common Stock is not reported or quoted by any such organization, (i)-with respect to Incentive
Stock Options, the fair market value of the Common Stock as determined in good faith by the Committee within the meaning of
Section 422 of the Code, or (ii) with respect to other Awards, fair market value of the Common Stock as determined in good faith by
the Committee using a “reasonable application of a reasonable valuation method” within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code
and the regulations and other guidance thereunder.

Section 2.19 “FAS 123R” means Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,”
as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.

Section 2.20 “Fiscal Year” means the 12-month-period béginning each March 1 and ending on the last day of the following
February.

Section 2.21 “Good Reason” means {a) any demotion of the Participant as evidenced by a material reduction in the Participant’s
responsibilities, duties, compensation or benefits as in effect immediately prior to the Corporate Change, or (b) if the Company or its
successor does not provide full relocation benefits to the Participant, any permanent relocation of the Participant’s place of business to
a location 50 miles or more from the location prior to the Corporate Change.

Section 2.22 “Grant Date” means the date an Award is determined to be effective by the Committee upon the grant of such
Award. '

Section 2.23 “Harmful Activity” means directly or indirectly (a) disparaging Intervoice or its affiliates, any products, services,
or operations of Intervoice or its Affiliates, or any of the former, current, or future officers, directors, or employees of Intervoice or its
affiliates; (b) soliciting, inducing, persuading, or enticing, or endeavoring to solicit, induce, persuade, or entice, any person who is
then employed by or otherwise engaged to perform services for Intervoice or its affiliates to leave that employment or cease
performing those services; (c) soliciting, inducing, persuading, or enticing, or endeavoring to solicit, induce, persuade, or entice, any
person who is then a customer, supplier, or vendor of Intervoice or any of its affiliates to cease being a customer, supplier, or vendor
of Intervoice or any of its affiliates or to divert all or any part of such person’s or entity’s business from Intervoice or any of its
affiliates; or (d) associating as an employee, officer, director, agent, partner, stockholder, owner, member, representative, or
consultant, with any Competitor of Intervoice or any of its affiliates.

Section 2.24 “Incentive Stock Option” means an Option that is intended to meet the requirements of section 422(b) of the Code.
Section 2.25 “Interveice” means Intervoice, Inc., a Texas corporation, or any successor thereto.

Section 2.26 “NASDAQ” means The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. |

Section 2.27 “Nonqualified Stock Option” means an Option that is not an Incentive Stock Option..

Section 2.28 “Option™ means an option mlpurchase shares of Common Stock granted to a Participant pursuant to Article VIL. An
Option may be either an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option, as determined by the Committee.

Section 2.29 “Other Incentive Award” means an incentive award granted to a Participant pursuant to Article XII.

Section 2.30 “Qutside Director” means a member of the Board who: (a) meets the independence requirements of NASDAQ, or
if NASDAQ shall cease to be the principal exchange or quotation system upon which the shares of Common Stock are listed or.
quoted, then such exchange or quotation system as Intervoice elects to list or quote its shares of Commeon Stock and that the
Committee designates as Intervoice's principal exchange or quotation system, {(b) qualifies as an “outside director” under Section
162(m) of the Code, (c) qualifies as a “non-employee director” of Intervoice under Rule 16b-3, and (d) satisfies independence criteria
under any other applicable laws or regulations relating to the issuance of shares of Common Stock to Employees.
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Section 2.31 “Participant” means an Employee, Outside Director, or other individual or entity who performs services for the
Company that has been granted an Award; provided, however, that no Award that may be settled in Common Stock may be issued to a
i Participant that is not a natural person.

Section 2.32 “Performance Award” means an Award granted to a Participant pursuant to Article XI to receive cash or Common
Stock conditioned in whole or in part upon the satisfaction of specified performance criteria.

Section 2.33 “Permitted Transferee” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 15.4.
i Section 2,34 “Plan” means the Intervoice, Inc, 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, as in effect from time to time.

Section 2.35 “Prior Plan” means the Intervoice, Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, which was established effective July 13, 2003,
as an amendment and restatement of the Intervoice, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan, the Intervoice-Brite, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Plan
and the Intervoice, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan.

Section 2.36 “Purchased Restricted Stock™ shall have the meaning given such term in Section 9.2.

Section 2.37 “Restricted Period” means the period established by the Committee with respect to an Award of Restricted Stock
or Restricted Stock Units during which the Award remains subject to forfeiture.

Section 2,38 “Restricted Stock” means a share of Common Stock granted to a Participant pursuant to Article [X that is subject
to such terms, conditions, and restrictions as may be determined by the Commitltee.

Section 2.39 “Restricted Stock Unit” means a fictional share of Common Stock granted to a Participant pursuant to Article X
that is subject to such terms, conditions, and restrictions as may be determined by the Committee.

Section 2.40 “Retirement” means (i} with respect to an Employee, voluntary termination of employment after attaining age 55
and completing five years of continuous employment with the Company and {ii) with respect to an Outside Director, ceasing to be an
_ Qutside Director pursuant to an election by Intervoice’s shareholders or by voluntary resignation after attaining age 55 and completing
| five years of continuous service with the Company.
Section 2.41 “Rule 16b-3” means Rule 16b-3 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Exchange Act,
or any successor rule or regulation that may be in effect from time to time.

Section 2.42 “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR™ means a right granted to a Participant pursuant to Article V11 with respect
to a share of Common Stock to receive upon exercise cash, Common Stock or a combination of cash and Common Stock, equal to the
appreciation in value of a share of Common Stock.

ARTICLE I11. PLAN ADMINISTRATION

Section 3.1 Plan_Administrator and Discretionary Authority. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The
Committee shall have total and exclusive responsibility to control, operate, manage and administer the Plan in accordance with its
terms. The Committee shall have ail the authority that may be necessary or helpful to enable it to discharge its responsibilities with
respect to the Plan. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, the Committee shall have the exclusive right to: (a)
interpret the Plan and the Award Agreements executed hereunder; (b} decide all questions concerning eligibility for, and the amount
of, Awards granted under the Plan; (c) construe any ambiguous provision of the Plan or any Award Agreement; (d) prescribe the form
of Award Agreements; (e) correct any defect, supply any omission or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Award
Agreement; (f) issue administrative guidelines as an aid to administering the Plan and make changes in such guidelines as the
Committee from time to time deems proper; (g) make regulations for carrying out the Plan and make changes in such regulations as
the Committee from time to time deems proper; (h) determine whether Awards should be granted singly or in combination; (i) to the
extent permitted under the Plan, grant waivers of Plan terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations; (j) accelerate the exercise, vesting
or payment of an Award when such action or actions would be in the best interests of the Company; (k) require Participants to held a
stated number or percentage of shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to an Award for a stated period; and (1) take any and all
other actions the Committee deems necessary or advisable for the proper operation or administration of the Plan. The Committee shall
have authority in its sole discretion with respect to all matters related to the discharge of its responsibilities and the exercise of its
authority under the Plan, including without limitation its construction of the terms of the Plan and its determination of eligibility for
participation in, and the terms of Awards granted under, the Plan. The decisions of the Committee and its actions with respect to the
Plan shall be final, conclusive and binding on all persons having or claiming to have any right or interest in or under the Plan,
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including without limitation Participants and their respective Penmitted Transferees, estates, beneficiaries and legal representatives. In
the case of an Award intended to be eligible for the performance-based compensation exemption under section 162{m) of the Code,
the Committee shall exercise its discretion consistent with qualifying the Award for such exemption. The Committee may delegate the
authority to grant Awards under the Plan to a subcommittee of the Committee comprised of two or more Outside Directors.

Section 3.2 Liability; Indemnification. No member of the Committee, nor any person to whom it has delegated authority, shall
be personally liable for any action, interpretation or determination made in good faith with respect to the Plan or Awards granted
hereunder, and each member of the Committee (or delegatee of the Committee) shall be fully indemnified and protected by Intervoice
with respect to any liability he may incur. with respect to any such action, interpretation or determination, to the maximum extent
permitted by applicable law.

ARTICLE 1V. SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN
Section 4.1 Available Shares.

(a) Subject to adjustment as provided in Sections 4.2 and 4.3, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that shall be
available for grant of Awards under the Plan shall be (i) 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock, plus (ii) all shares of Common Stock
that, as of the Effective Date, remain available for grant of awards under the Prior Plan, plus (iii) shares of Common Stock subject to
outstanding awards under the Prior Plan on the Effective Date that later cease to be subject to such awards for any reason other than
such awards having been exercised. If an Award granted under this Plan expires, is forfeited or becomes unexercisable for any reason
without having been exercised in full, the undelivered shares of Common Stock which were subject to the Award shall, unless the Plan
shall have been terminated, become available for future Awards under the Plan.

(b) The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be subject to all Awards granted under the Plan to any one
Participant (i) during the Fiscal Year in which the Participant is first hired by the Company is 500,000 shares and (ii) during each
subsequent Fiscal Year is 300,000 shares. The maximum number of shares of Common Stock that may be subject to Nonqualified
Stock Options and SARs granted under the Plan to any one Participant during a Fiscal Year is 500,000. The maximum number of
shares of Common Stock that may be granted as Incentive Stock Options is 1,000,000, The limitations provided in this Section 4.1(b)
shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.2.

(c) Shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to the Plan may be original issue or treasury shares or a combination of the
foregoing, as the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall from time to time determine. Intervoice, during the term of this Plan, will at
all times reserve and keep available such number of shares of Common Stock as shall be sufficient to satisfy the requirements of the
Plan.

(d) Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, the Board or the Committee shall have the right to substitute or
assume awards in connection with mergers, reorganizations, separations or other transactions to which Section 424(a) of the Code
applies, provided such substitutions or assumptions are permitted by Section 424 of the Code and the regulations promulgated
thereunder.

Section 4.2 Adjustments for Recapitalizations and Reorganizations.

(a) The shares with respect to which Awards may be granted under the Plan are shares of Common Stock as presently constituted,
but if, and whenever, prior to the expiration or satisfaction of an Award theretofore granted, Intervoice shall effect a split, subdivision
or consolidation of shares of Common Stock or the payment of a stock dividend on Common Stock in the form of Common Stock
without receipt of consideration by Intervoice, the number of shares of Common Stock with respect to which such Award may
thereafter be exercised or satisfied, as applicable, (i) in the event of an increase in the number of outstanding shares, shall be
proportionately increased, and, if applicable, the exercise price per share shall be proportionately reduced, and (ii) in the eveni of a
reduction in the number of outstanding shares, shall be proportionately reduced, and, if applicable, the exercise price per share shall be
proporticnately increased. -

" (b) If Intervoice recapitalizes or otherwise changes its capital structure, thereafter upon any exercise or satisfaction, as applicable,
of an Award theretofore granted the Participant shall be entitled to receive (or to purchase, if applicable) under such Award, in lieu of
the number of shares of Commen Stock then covered by such Award, the number and class of shares of stock or other securities to
which the Participant would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the recapitalization if, immediately prior to the
recapitalization, the Participant had been the holder of record of the number of shares of Common Stock then covered by such Award.
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(c) In the event of changes in the outstanding Common Stock by reason of a reorganization, merger, consolidation, combination,
separation (including a spin-off or other distribution of stock or property), exchange, or other relevant change in capitalization
occurring after the date of grant of any Award and not otherwise provided for by this Section 4.2, any outstanding Awards and any
Award Agreements evidencing such Awards shall be subject to (i) adjustment by the Committee in its sole discretion as to the number,
price and kind of shares or other consideration subject to, and other terms of, such Awards to reflect such changes in the outstanding
Common Stock, or {ii) in the case of a Corporate Change, if approved by the Committee in its sole discretion, replacement with a
comparable Award pursuant to Article XIII.

(d) In the event of any changes in the outstanding Common Stock provided for in this Section 4.2, the apgregate number of shares
available for grant of Awards under the Plan may be equitably adjusted by the Committee, whose determination shall be conclusive.

Section 4.3 Adjustments for Awards. The Committee shall have sole discretion to determine the manner in which shares of
Common Stock available for grant of Awards under the Plan are counted. Without limiting the discretion of the Committee under this
Section, unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the following rules shall apply for the purpose of determining the number of
shares of Common Stock available for grant of Awards under the Plan:

(a) Options, Restricted Stock and Stock Awards. The grant of Options, Restricted Stock and Stock Awards shall reduce the
number of shares of Common Stock available for grant of Awards under the Plan by the number of shares of Common Stock subject
to such an Award.

(b) SARs. The grant of SARs that may be paid or settled (i) only in Common Stock or (ii} in either cash or Common Stock shall
reduce the number of shares available for grant of Awards under the Plan by the number of shares subject to such an Award; provided,
however, that upon the exercise of SARs, the excess of the number of shares of Commen Stock with respect to which the Award is
exercised over the number of shares of Common Stock issued upon exercise of the Award shall again be available for grant of Awards
under the Plan. The grant of SARs that may be paid or settled only for cash shall not affect the number of shares available for grant of
Awards under the Plan.

(c) Restricted Stock Units. The grant of Restricted Stock Units (including those credited to a Participant in respect of a Dividend
Unit Right) that may be paid or settled (i) only in Common Stock or (it} in either cash or Common Stock shall reduce the number of
shares available for grant of Awards under the Plan by the number of shares subject to such an Award; provided, however, that upon
settlement of the Award, the excess, if any, of the number of shares of Common Stock that had been subject to such Award over the
number of shares of Common Stock issued upon its settlement shall again be available for grant of Awards under the Plan. The grant
of Restricted Stock Units that may be paid or settled only for cash shall not affect the number of shares available for grant of Awards
under the Plan.

(d) Performance Awards and Other Incentive Awards. The grant of a Performance Award or Other Incentive Award in the form
of Common Stock or that may be paid or settled (i) only in Common Stock or (i) in either Common Stock or cash shall reduce the
number of shares available for grant of Awards under the Plan by the number of shares subject to such an Award, provided, however,
that upon settlement of the Award, the excess, if any, of the number of shares of Common Stock that had been subject to such Award
over the number of shares of Common Stock issued upon its settlement shall again be available for grant of Awards under the Plan.
The grant of a Performance Award or Other Incentive Award that may be paid or settled only for cash shall not affect the number of
shares available for grant of Awards under the Plan.

(e} Cancellation, Forfeiture and Termination. If any Award referred to in subsection (a), (b), (c), or {(d) of this Section (other than
an Award that may be paid or settled only for cash) is canceled or forfeited, or terminates, expires or lapses, for any reason, the shares
then subject to such Award shall again be available for grant of Awards under the Plan.

(f) Payment of Exercise Price and Withholding Taxes. If shares of Common Stock are used to pay the exercise price of an Award,
the number of shares available for grant of Awards under the Plan shall be increased by the number of shares delivered as payment of
such exercise price. If shares of Common Stock are used to pay withholding taxes payable upon exercise, vesting or payment of an
Award, or shares of Common Stock that would be acquired upon exercise, vesting or payment of an Award are withheld to pay
withholding taxes payable upon exercise, vesting or payment of such Award, the number of shares available for grant of Awards under
the Plan shall be increased by the number of shares delivered or withheld as payment of such withholding taxes.

ARTICLE V., ELIGIBILITY

The Committee shali select Participants from those Employees, Outside Directors and other individuals or entities providing
services to the Company that, in the opinion of the Committee, are in a position to make a significant contribution to the success of the
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Company. Once a Participant has been selected for an Award by the Committee, the Committee shall determine the type and size of
Award to be granted to the Participant and shall establish in the related Award Agreement the terms, conditions, restrictions and
limitations applicable to the Award, in addition to those set forth in the Plan and the administrative guidelines and regulations, if any,
established by the Committee. :

ARTICLE VI. FORM OF AWARDS

Section 6.1 Form of Awards. Awards may be granted under the Plan, in the Committee’s sole discretion, in the form of Options
pursuant to Article VII, SARs pursuant to Article VIII, Restricted Stock pursuant to Article IX, Restricted Stock Units pursuant to
Article X, Performance Awards pursuant to Article X1, and Stock Awards and Other Incentive Awards pursuant to Article XiI, or a
combination thereof, All Awards shall be subject to the terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations of the Plan. The Committee may,
in its sole discretion, subject any Award to such other terms, conditions, restrictions and/or limitations (including without limitation
the time and conditions of exercise, vesting or payment of an Award and restrictions on transferability of any shares of Common Stock
issued or delivered pursuant to an Award), provided they are not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan. The Committee may, but is
not required to, subject an Award to such conditions as it determines are necessary or appropriate to ensure that an Award constitutes
“qualified performance based compensation” within the meaning of section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder.
Awards under a particular Article of the Plan need not be uniform, and Awards under more than one Article of the Plan may be
combined in a single Award Agreement. Any combination of Awards may be granted at one time and on more than one occasion to
the same Participant. Subject to compliance with applicable tax law, an Award Agreement may provide that a Participant may elect to
defer receipt of income attributable to the exercise or vesting of an Award.,

Section 6.2 No Repricing. Except for adjustments made pursuant to Section 4.2, no Award may be repriced, replaced, regranted
through cancellation or modified without stockholder approval, if the effect would be to reduce the exercise price for the shares
underlying such Award; and, the Committee may not cancel an outstanding Option that is under water for the purpose of granting a
replacement Award of a different type. :

Section 6.3 No Reload Rights. Options shall not contain any provision entitling the Participant to an automatic grant of
additional Options in connection with any exercise of the original Option. -

Section 6.4 Substitution of SARs for Options. Any provision of this Plan to the contrary notwithstanding, if Intervoice is
required to or elects to record as an expense in its consolidated statements of earnings the cost of Options pursuant to FAS 123R or a
similar accounting requirement, the Committee shall have the sole discretion to substitute, without receiving Participants’ consent,
SARs settled only in stock for outstanding Options; provided, however, that the terms of the substituted SARs are the same as the
terms of the Options, the number of shares underlying the SARs equals the number of shares underlying the Options and the
difference between the Fair Market Value of the underlying shares and the grant price of the SARs is equivalent to the difference
between the Fair Market Value of the underlying shares and the exercise price of the Options.

ARTICLE VII. OPTIONS

Section 7.1 General. Awards may be granted in the form of Options that may be Incentive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock
Options, or a combination of both; provided, however, that Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to Employees.

Section 7.2 Terms and Conditions of Options. An Option shall be exercisable in whole or in such instaliments and at such times
as may be determined by the Committee. The price at which a share of Common Stock may be purchased upon.exercise of an Option
shall be determined by the Committee, but such exercise price shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value per share of
Common Stock on the Grant Date unless the Option is granted through the assumption of, or in substitution for, outstanding awatds
previously granted to individuals who became Employees as a result of a merger, consolidation, acquisition, or other corporate
transaction involving the Company, provided that such assumption or substitution either complies with the requirements of Section
409A of the Code or is consistent with maintaining the exempt status of the Award from the application of that section. Except as
otherwise provided in Section 7.3, the term of each Option shall be as specified by the Committee; provided, however, that no Options
shall be exercisable later than seven years after the Grant Date. Options may be granted with respect to Restricted Stock or shares of
Common Stock that are not Restricted Stock, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion. '

Section 7.3 Restrictions Relating to Incentive Stock Options.
{a) Options granted in the form of Incentive Stock Options shall, in addition to being subject to the terms and conditions of

Section 7.2, comply with section 422(b) of the Code. To the extent the aggregate Fair Market Value (determined as of the times the
respective Incentive Stock Options are granted) of Common Stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for
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the first time by an individual during any calendar year under all incentive stock option plans of Intervoice and its Affiliates exceeds
£i00,000, such excess Incentive Stock Options shall be treated as options that do not constitute Incentive Stock Options. The
Committee shall determine, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Code, which of a Participant’s Incentive Stock Options
will not constitute Incentive Stock Options because of such limitation and shall notify the Participant of such determination as soon as
practicable after such determination. The price at which a share of Common Stock may be purchased upon exercise of an Incentive
Stock Option shall be determined by the Committee, but such exercise price shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a
share of Common Stock on the Grant Date. No Incentive Stock Option shall be granted to an Employee under the Plan if, at the time
such Option is granted, such Employee owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of
stock of Intervoice or an Affiliate, within the meaning of section 422(b){6) of the Code, unless (i) on the Grant Date of such Option,

the exercise price of such Option is at least 110% of the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock subject to the Option and (ii) such
Option by its terms is not exercisable after the expiration of five years from the Grant Date of the Option.

(b) Each Participant awarded an Incentive Stock Option shall notify Intervoice in writing immediately after the date he or she
makes a disqualifying disposition of any shares of Common Stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of such Incentive Stock Option. A
disqualifying disposition is any disposition {(including any sale) of such Common Stock before the later of (i) two years after the Grant
Date of the Incentive Stock Option or (ii) one year after the date of exercise of the Incentive Stock Option.

Section 7.4 Exercise of Options.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, Options shall be exercised by the delivery of a written notice of exercise to
Intervoice, setting forth the number of whole shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Option is to be exercised,
accompanied by full payment for such shares.

{b) Upon exercise of an Option, the exercise price of the Option shall be payable to Intervoice in full either: (i) in cash or an
equivalent acceptable to the Committee, (ii) in the sole discretion of the Committee and in accordance with any applicable
administrative guidelines established by the Committee, (A) by tendering one or more previously acquired nonforfeitable, unrestricted
shares of Common Stock having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the time of exercise equal to the total exercise price or (B) by
surrendering a sufficient portion of the shares with respect to which the Option is exercised having an aggregate Fair Market Value at
the time of exercise equal to the total exercise price, or {ii1) in a combination of the forms specified in (i) or (ii) of this subsection;
provided, however, that payment of the exercise price by means of tendering or surrendering shares of Common Stock shall not be
permitted when the same may, in the reasonable opinion of the Committee, cause Intervoice to record a loss or expense as a result
thereof.

(c) During such time as the Common Stock is registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, to the extent permissible under
applicable law, payment of the exercise price of an Option may also be made, in the absolute discretion of the Commitiee, by delivery
to Intervoice or its designated agent of an executed irrevocable option exercise form together with irrevocable instructions to a broker-
dealer to sell or margin a suffictent portion of the shares with respect to which the Option is exercised and deliver the sale or margin
loan proceeds directly to Intervoice to pay the exercise price and any required withholding taxes.

(d) As soon as reasonably practicable after receipt of written notification of exercise of an Option and full payment of the exercise
price and any required withholding taxes, Intervoice shall (i} deliver to the Participant, in the Participant’s name or the name of the
Participant’s designee, a stock certificate or certificates in an appropriate aggregate amount based upon the number of shares of
Common Stock purchased under the Option, or (ii) cause to be issued in the Participant’s name or the name of the Participant’s
designee, in book-entry form, an appropriate number of shares of Common Stock based upon the number of shares purchased under
the Option.

Section 7.5 Termination of Employment or Service. Each Award Agreement embodying the Award of an Option shall set forth
the extent to which the Participant shall have the right to exercise the Option following termination of the Participant’s employment or
service with the Company. Such provisions shall be determined by the Committee in its absolute discretion, need not be uniform
among all Options granted under the Plan and may reflect distinctions based on the reasons for termination of employment or service,
In the event a Participant’s Award Agreement embodying the award of an Option does not set forth such termination provisions, the
following termination provisions shall apply with respect to such Award:

(a) Termination Other Than for Retirement, Disability, Death or Cause. If the employment or service of a Participant shall

terminate for any reason other than Retirement, Disability, death or Cause, each outstanding Option held by the Participant may be
exercised, to the extent then vested, until the earlier of (i) the expiration of 12 months from the date of such termination of
employment or service or (ii) the expiration of the term of such Option.




(b} Termination by Reason of Retirement, Disability or Death, If the employment or service of a Participant shall terminate by
reason of Retirement, Disability or death, each outstanding Option held by the Participant may be exercised, to the extent then vested,
until the earlier of (i) the expiration of 18 months from the date of such termination of employment or service or (ii) the expiration of
the term of such Option; provided, however, that with respect to a Participant who terminates employment or service by reason of
Retirement and engages in a Harmful Activity either before or after Retirement, as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion,
the 18-month period described in subsection (b)(i) shall be reduced to ten days from the date Intervoice gives notice of the Harmful
Activity to the Participant.

(c) Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding subsections (a) and (b) above, if the employment or service of a Participant shall
terminate for Cause, each outstanding Option held by the Participant may be exercised, to the extent then vested, until the earlier of (i)
the expiration of 30 days from the date of such termination of employment or service or (ii) the expiration of the terms of such Option.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Option will not be treated as an Incentive Stock Option unless at all times beginning on the Grant
Date and ending on the day three months {one year in the case of a Participant who is “disabled” within the meaning of Section
22{e)(3) of the Code) before the date of exercise of the Option, the Participant is an employee of Intervoice or an Affiliate (or a
corporation or a parent or subsidiary corporation of such corporation issuing or assuming an option in a transaction to which Section
424(a) of the Code applies).

ARTICLE VHI. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

Section 8.1 General. The Committee may grant Awards in the form of SARs in such numbers and at such times as it shall
determine. SARs shali vest and be exercisable in whole or in such installments and at such times as may be determined by the
Committee. The price at which SARs may be exercised shall be determined by the Committee but shall not be less than 100% of the
Fair Market Value per share of Common Stock on the Grant Date unless the SARs are granted through the assumption of, or in
substitution for, outstanding awards previously granted to individuals who became Employees as a result of a merger, consolidation,
acquisition, or other corporate transaction involving the Company, provided that such assumption or substitution either complies with
the requirements of Section 409A of the Code or is consistent with maintaining the exempt status of the Award from the application of
that section. The term of each SAR shall be as specified by the Committee; provided, however, that no SARs shall be exercisable later
than seven years after the Grant Date. At the time of an’ Award of SARs, the Committee may, in its sole discretion, prescribe
additional terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to the SARs, including without limitation rules pertaining to the
termination of employment or service (by reason of death, permanent and total disability, or otherwise) of a Participant prior to
exercise of the SARs, as it determines are necessary or appropriate, provided they are not inconsistent with the Plan.

Section 8.2 Exercise of SARs. SARs shall be exercised by the delivery of a written notice of exercise to Intervoice, setting forth
the number of whole shares of Common Stock with respect to which the Award is being exercised. Upon the exercise of SARs, the
Participant shall be entitled to receive an amount equal to the excess of the aggregate Fair Market Value of the shares of Common
Stock with respect to which the Award is exercised (determined as of the date of such exercise) over the aggregate exercise price of
such shares. Such amount shall be payable to the Participant in cash or in shares of Common Stock, as provided in the Award
Agreement.

ARTICLE IX. RESTRICTED STOCK

Section 9.1 General. Awards may be granted in the form of Restricted Stock in such numbers and at such times as the Committee
shall determine, The Committee shall impose such terms, conditions and restrictions on Restricted Stock as it may deem advisable,
including without limitation providing for vesting upon the achievement of specified performance goals pursuant to a Performance
Award and restrictions under applicable Federal or state securities laws. A Participant shall not be required to make any payment for
Restricted Stock unless required by the Committee pursuant to Section 9.2.

Section 9.2 Purchased Restricted Stock. The Commitiee may in its sole discretion require a Participant to pay a stipulated
purchase price for each share of Restricted Stock (“Purchased Restricted Stock™). . '

Section 9.3 Restricted Period, At the time an Award of Restricted Stock is granted, the Committee shall establish a Restricted
Period applicable to such Restricted Stock. Each Award of Restricted Stock may have a different Restricted Period in the sole
discretion of the Committee.

Section 9.4 Qther Terms and Conditions. Restricted Stock shall constitute issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock for
all corporate purposes. Restricted Stock awarded to a Participant under the Plan shall be registered in the name of the Participant or, at
the option of Intervoice, in the name of a nominee of Intervoice, and shall be issued in book-entry form or represented by a stock
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certificate. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Award Agreement, a Participant to whom Restricted Stock has been awarded
shall have the right to receive dividends thereon during the Restricted Period, 1o vote the Restricted Stock and to enjoy all other
stockholder rights with respect thereto, except that (a) Intervoice shall retain custody of any certificates evidencing the Restricted
Stock during the Restricted Period, and (b) the Participant may not sell, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecate or otherwise dispose
of the Restricted Stock during the Restricted Period. A breach of the terms and conditions established by the Committee pursuant to
the Award of the Restricted Stock may result in a forfeiture of the Resiricted Stock. At the time of an Award of Restricted Stock, the
Committee may, in its sole discretion, prescribe additional terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to the Restricted
Stock, including without limitation rules pertaining to the termination of employment or service (by reason of death, permanent and
total disability, retirement or otherwise) of a Participant prior to expiration of the Restricted Period.

Section 9.5 Miscellanesus. Nothing in this Article shall prohibit the exchange of shares of Restricted Stock pursuant to a plan of
merger or reorganization for stock or other securities of Intervoice or another corporation that is a party to the reorganization, provided
that the stock or securities so received in exchange for shares of Restricted Stock shall, except as provided in Article Xill, become
subject to the restrictions applicable to such Restricted Stock. Any shares of Commen Stock received as a result of a stock split or
stock dividend with respect to shares of Restricted Stock shall also become subject to the restrictions applicable te such Restricted
Stock.

ARTICLE X. RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

Section 10.1 General. Awards may be granted in the form of Restricted Stock Units in such numbers and at such times as the
Committee shall determine. The Committee shall impose such terms, conditions and restrictions on Restricted Stock Units as it may
deem advisable, including without limitation prescribing the period over which and the conditions upon which a Restricted Stock Unit
may become vested or be forfeited, and providing for vesting upon the achievement of specified performance goals pursuant to a
Performance Award. Upon the lapse of restrictions with respect to each Restricted Stock Unit, the Participant shall be entitled to
receive from the Company one share of Common Stock or an amount of cash equal to the Fair Market Value of one share of Common
Stock, as provided in the Award Agreement. A Participant shall not be required to make any payment for Restricted Stock Units.

Section 10.2 Restricted Period. At the time an Award of Restricted Stock Units is granted, the Committee shall establish a
Restricted Period applicable to such Restricted Stock Units. Each Award of Restricted Stock Units may have a different Restricted
Period in the sole discretion of the Committee.

Section 10.3 Cash Dividend Rights and Dividend Unit Rights. To the extent provided by the Committee in its sole discretion, a
grant of Restricted Stock Units may include a tandem Cash Dividend Right or Dividend Unit Right grant. A grant of Cash Dividend
Rights may provide that such Cash Dividend Rights shall be paid directly to the Participant at the time of payment of related dividend,
be credited to a bookkeeping account subject to the same vesting and payment provisions as the tandem Award (with or without
interest in the sole discretion of the Committee), or be subject to such other provisions or restrictions as determined by the Committee
in its sole discretion. A grant of Dividend Unit Rights may provide that such Dividend Unit Rights shall be subject to the same vesting
and payment provisions as the tandem Award or be subject to such other provisions and restrictions as determined by the Committee
in its sole discretion.

Section 10.4 Other Terms and Conditions. At the time of an Award of Restricted Stock Units, the Committee may, in its sole
discretion, prescribe additional terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to the Restricted Stock Units, including
without limitation rules pertaining to the termination of employment or. service (by reason of death, permanent and total disability,
retirement or otherwise) of a Participant prior to expiration of the Restricted Period.

ARTICLE XI. PERFORMANCE AWARDS

Section 11.1 General. Awards may be granted in the form of Performance Awards that may be payable in the form of cash,
shares of Common Stock, or a combination of both, in such amounts and at such times as the Committee shall determine. Performance
Awards shall be conditioned upon the level of achievement of one or more stated performance goals over a specified performance
period that shall not be shorter than one year. Performance Awards may be combined with other Awards to imposé performance
criteria as part of the terms of such other Awards.

Section 11.2 Terms and Conditions. Each Award Agreement embodying a Performance Award shall set forth (a) the amount,
including a target and maximum amount if applicable, a Participant may earn in the form of cash or shares of Common Stock or a
formula for determining such amount, (b) the performance criteria and level of achievement versus such criteria that shall determine
the amount payable or number of shares of Common Stock to be granted, issued, retained and/or vested, (c) the.performance period
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over which performance is to be measured, (d) the timing of any payments to be made, (&) restrictions on the transferability of the
Award, and (f) such other terms and conditions as the Committee may determine that are not inconsistent with the Plan.

Section 11,3 Code Section 162{m) Requirements. The Committee shall determine in its sole discretion whether all or any
portion of a Performance Award shall be intended to satisfy the requirements for “performance-based compensation” under section
162(m) of the Code (the “162(m) Requirements”), The performance criteria for any Performance Award that is intended to satisfy the
162(m) Requirements shall be established in writing by the Committee based on one or more performance goals as set forth in Section
11.4 not later than 90 days after commencement of the performance period with respect to such Award, provided that the outcome of
the performance in respect of the goals remains substantially uncertain as of such time. The maximum amount that may be paid in
cash pursuant to Performance Awards granted to a Participant with respect to a Fiscal Year that are intended to satisfy the 162(m)
Requirements is $2,000,000; provided, however, that such maximum amount with respect to a Performance Award that provides for a
performance period longer than one Fiscal Year shall be the foregoing limit multiplied by the number of full Fiscal Years in the
. performance period. At the time of the grant of a Performance Award and to the extent permitted under Code section 162(m) and
regulations thereunder for a Performance Award intended to satisfy the 162(m) Requirements, the Committee may provide for the
manner in which the performance goals will be measured in light of specified corporate transactions, extraordinary events, accounting
changes and other similar occurrences.

Section 11.4 Performance Goals. The performance measure(s) to be used for purposes of Performance Awards may be described
in terms of objectives that are related to the individual Participant or objectives that are, Company-wide or related to a subsidiary,
division, department, region, function or business unit of the Company in which the Participant is employed or with respect to which
the Participant performs services, and may consist of one or more or any combination of the following criteria: (a) earnings or
eamnings per share (whether on a pre-tax, after-tax, operational or other basis), (b) return on equity, (c) return on assets or net assets,
(d) return on capital or invested capital and other related financial measures, (&) cash_flow, (f) revenues;-(g) income or operating
income, (h) expenses or expense levels, (i} one or more operating ratios, (j) stock price, (k) total shareholder return, (1) market share,
(m) operating profit, (n) profit margin, (o) cash flow, (p) capital expenditures, (q) net borrowing, debt leverage levels, credit quality or
debt ratings, (r) the accomplishment of mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, public offerings or similar extraordinary business
transactions, (s) net asset value-per share, (t) economic value added and (u) individual business objectives. The performance goals
based on these performance measures may, be made relative to the performance of other business entities.

Section 11.5 Certiﬁcation and Negative Discretion. Prior-to the payment of any compensation pursuant to a Performance
Award that s intended to satisfy the 162(m) Requirements, the Committee shall certify the extent to which the performance goals and
other material terms of the Award: have been,achieved or satisfied. The Committee in its sole discretion shall have the authority to
reduce, but not to, increase, the amount payable and the number of shares to be granted, issued, retained or vested pursuant to a
Performance Award. s : v - . ;
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Section 12.1 Stock Awards. Stock Awards may be granted to Participants upen such terms and conditions as the Commmee may
determine. Shares of Common Stock .issued pursuant to*Stock Awards may be issued for cash consideration or for no cash
consideration. The Committee shall determine the number of shares of Commbn Stock to be issued pursuant to a Stock Award.

.

Section 12.2 Other Incentive Awards. Other Incentive Awards may be granted in such amounts, upon such terms and at such
times as the Committee shall determine. Other Incentive Awards may be granted based upon, payable in or otherwise related to,.in
whole or in part, shares of Common Stock if-the Committee, in its sole discretion, determines that such Other Incentive Awards are
consistent with the purposes of the Plan. Each grant of an Other Incentive Award shall be evidenced by.an Award Agreement that
shall specify the amount of the Other Incentive Award and the terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to such Award.
Payment of Other Incentive Awards shall be made at such times and in such form, which may be cash, shares of Commeon Stock or
other property (or a combination thereof), as established by the Committee, subject to the terms of the Plan. v, .. -
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Sectlon 13.1 Vestlng of Awards. Excepl as provnded otherwise below in’ thlS Artlcle or in an Award Agreement at the time.an
Award is granted, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, if a Participant’s employment or service with the Company is
involuntarily terminated other than for.Cause or if a Participant voluntarily terminates employment or service for Good Reason, in
either case within the period beginning 90 days prior to and ending one year following a Corporate Change of Intervoice, any time
periods,” conditions or contingencies relating .to the exercise or realization of, or lapse of restrictions under, any Award shall be
automatlcally accelerated or waived so that: . oy




(b) Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no Award shall be subject to execution, attachment or similar process, and no
Award may be sold, transferred, pledged, exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of, other than by will or pursuant to the
applicable laws of descent and distribution. Any attempted sale, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecation or other disposition of an
Award not specifically permitted by the Plan or the Award Agreement shall be null and void and without effect.

{c) If provided in the Award Agreement, Nonqualified Stock Options may be transferred by a Participant to a Permitted
Transferee. For purposes of the Plan, “Permitted Transferee” means (i) a member of a Participant’s immediate family, (ii) any person
sharing the Participant’s household (other than a tenant or employee of the Participant), (iii) trusts in which a person listed in (i) or (ii)
above has more than 50% of the beneficial interest, (iv) a foundation in which the Participant or a person listed in (i) or (ii} above
controls the management of assets, (v} any other entity in which the Participant or a person listed in (i) or (ii) above owns mare than
50% of the voting interests, provided that in the case of the preceding clauses (i) through (v), no consideration is provided for the
transfer, and (vi) any transferee permitted under applicable securities and tax laws as determined by counsel to Intervoice. In
determining whether a person is a “Permitted Transferee,” immediate family members shall include a Participant’s child, stepchild,
grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-1aw, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships.

(d) Incident to a Participant’s divorce, the Participant may request that Intervoice agree to observe the terms of a domestic
refations order which may or may not be part of a qualified domestic relations order (as defined in Code Section 414(p)) with respect
to all or a part of one or more Awards made to the Participant under the Plan to the Participant’s alternate payee. Intervoice’s decision
regarding such a request shall be made by the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, based upon the best interests of
Intervoice. The Committee’s decision need not be uniform among Participants. As a condition of participation, a Participant agrees to
hald Intervoice harmless from any claim that may arise out of Intervoice’s observance of the terms of any such domestic relations
order.

Section 15.5 Withhelding Taxes. The Company shall be entitled to deduct from any payment made under the Plan, regardless of
the form of such payment, the amount of all applicable income and employment taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to
such payment, may require the Participant to pay to the Company such withholding taxes prior to and as a condition of the making of
any payment or the issuance or delivery of any shares of Common Stock under the Plan, and shall be entitled to deduct from any other
compensation payable to the Participant any withholding obligations with respect to Awards. In accordance with any applicable
administrative guidelines it establishes, the Committee may allow a Participant to pay the amount of taxes required by law to be
withheld from or with respect to an Award by (a) withholding shares of Common Stock from any payment of Common Stock due as a
result of such Award, or (b) permitting the Participant to deliver to the Company previously acquired shares of Common Stock, in
eagh case having an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such required withholding taxes. No payment shall be made
and no shares of Common Stock shall be issued pursuant to any Award unless and until the applicable tax withholding obligations
haye been satisfied.

Section 15.6 No _Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or
any Award granted hereunder, provided that the Committee in its sole discretion may round fractional shares down to the nearest
whole share or settle fractional shares in cash, :

Section 15.7 Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given or made under the Plan or pursuant to any Award Agreement
(unless provided otherwise in such Award Agreement) shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made if (a)
delivered personally, (b} transmitted by first class registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested,
(c) sent by prepaid overnight courier service, or (d) sent by telecopy or facsimile transmission, with confirmation receipt, to the person
who is to receive it at the address that such person has theretofore specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith. Such
notices shall be effective (i) if delivered personally or sent by courier service, upon actual receipt by the intended recipient, (ii) if
mailed, upon the earlier of five days after deposit in the mail or the date of delivery as shown by the return receipt therefor, or (iii} if
sent by telecopy or facsimile transmission, when the answer back is received. Intervoice or a Participant may change, at any time and
from time to time, by written notice to the other, the address that it or such Participant had theretofore specified for receiving notices.
Until such address is changed in accordance herewith, notices hereunder or under an Award Agreement shall be delivered or sent (A}
to a Participant at his address as set forth in the records of the Company or (B} to Intervoice at the principal executive offices of
Intervoice clearly marked “Attention: General Counsel.”

Section 15.8 Compliance with Law and Stock Exchange or Association Reguirements. In addition, it is the intent of
Intervoice that Options designated as Incentive Stock Options comply with the applicable provisions of Section 422 of the Code, and
that Awards intended 1o constitute “qualified performance-based awards” comply with the applicable provisions of Section 162(m) of
the Code, and that any deferral of the receipt of the payment of cash or the delivery of shares of Common Stock that the Committee
may permit or require, and any Award granted that is subject to Section 409A of the Code, comply with the requirements of Section
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over which performance is to be measured, (d) the timing of any payments to be made, (e) restrictions on the transferability of the
Award, and (f) such other terms and conditions as the Committee may determine that are not inconsistent with the Plan.

Section 11.3 Code Section 162(m) Requirements. The Committee shall determine in its sole discretion whether all or any
portion of a Performance Award shall be intended to satisfy the requirements for “performance-based compensation” under section
162(m) of the Code (the “162(m) Requirements™). The performance criteria for any Performance Award that is intended to satisfy the
162(m) Requirements shall be established in writing by the Committee based on one or more performance goals as set forth in Section
11.4 not later than 90 days after commencement of the performance period with respect to such Award, provided that the outcome of
the performance in respect of the goals remains substantially uncertain as of such time. The maximum amount that may be paid in
cash pursuant to Performance Awards granted to a Participant with respect to a Fiscal Year that are intended to satisfy the 162(m)
Requirements is $2,000,000; provided, however, that such maximum amount with respect to a Performance Award that provides for a
performance period longer than one Fiscal Year shall be the foregoing limit multiplied by the number of full Fiscal Years in the
performance period. At the time of the grant of a Performance Award and to the extent permitted under Code section 162(m) and
regulations thereunder for a Performance Award intended to satisfy the 162(m) Requirements, the Committee may provide for the
manner in which the performance goals will be measured in light of specified corporate transactions, extraordinary events, accountmg
changes and other similar occurrences.

Section 11.4 Performance Goals. The performance measure(s) to be used for purposes of Performance Awards may be described
in terms of objectives that are related to the individual Participant or objectives that are Company-wide or related to a subsidiary,
division, department, region, function or business unit of the Company in which the Participant is employed or with respect to which
the Participant performs services, and may consist of one or more or any combination of the following criteria; (a) earnings or
earnings per share (whether on a pre-tax, after-tax, operational or other basis), (b) return on equity, (¢} return on assets or net assets,
(d) return on capital or invested capital and other related financial measures, (&) cash flow, (f) revenues, (g) income or operating
income, (h) expenses or expense levels, (i) one or more operating ratios, (j) stock price, (k) total shareholder return, (1) market share,
(m) operating profit, (n) profit margin, (o) cash flow, (p) capital expenditures, (q) net borrowing, debt leverage levels, credit quality or
debt ratings, (r) the accomplishment of mergers, acquisitions, dispositions, public offerings or similar extraordinary business
transactions, (s) net asset value per share, (t) economic value added and (u) individual business objectives. The performance goals
based on these performance measures may, be made relative to the performance of other business entities,

Section 11.5 Certification and Negative Discretion. Prior to the payment of any compensation pursuant to a Performance
Award that is intended to satisfy the 162(m) Requirements, the Committee shall certify the extent to which the performance goals and
other material terms of the Award have been achieved or satisfied. The Committee in its sole discretion shall have the authority to -
reduce, but not to increase, the amount payable and the number of shares to be granted, issued, retained or vested pursuant to a
Performance Award, -

ARTICLE XII. OTHER INCENTIVE AWARDS

Section 12.1 Stock Awards. Stock Awards may be granted to Participants upon such terms and conditions as the Committee may
determine, Shares of Common Stock issued pursuant to Stock Awards may be issued for cash consideration or for no cash
consideration. The Committee shall determine the number of shares of Commbdn Stock to be issued pursuant to a Stock Award.

Section 12.2 Other Incentive Awards. Other Incentive Awards may be granted in such amounts, upon such terms and at such
times as the Committee shall determine. Other Incentive Awards may be granted based upon, payable in or otherwise. related to, .in
whole or in part, shares of Common Stock if the Committee, in its sole discretion, determines that such Other Incentive Awards are
consistent with the purposes of the Plan. Each grant of an Other Incentive Award shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that
shall specify the amount of the Other Incentive Award and the terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to such Award.
Payment of Other Incentive Awards shall be made at such times and in such form, which may be cash, shares of Common Stock or
other property {or a combination thereof), as established by the Committee, subject to the terms of the Plan,

ARTICLE XIlI. CORPORATE CHANGE
Section 13.1 Vesting of Awards. Except as provided otherwise below in this Article or in an Award Agreement at the time an
Award is granted, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Plan, if a Participant’s employment or service with the Company is
inveluntarily terminated other than for Cause or if a Participant voluntarily terminates employment or service for Good Reason, in
either case within the period beginning 90 days prior to and ending one year following a Corporate Change of Intervoice, any time
periods, conditions or contingencies reilating .to the exercise or realization of, or lapse of restrictions under, any Award shall be
automatically accelerated or waived so that:
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(a) if no exercise of the Award is required, the Award may be realized in full at the time of the occurrence of the Participant’s
termination of employment or service; or

(b) if exercise of the Award is required, the Award may be exercised in full commencing on the date of the Participant’s
termination of employment or service.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any Award that consists of deferred compensation within the meaning of Section
409A of the Code, delivery of payment with respect to such Award to a Participant who is a “specified employee™ (as defined in Code
Section 409A and the regulations thereunder) as of the date of his or her “separation from service” (as defined in Code Section 409A
and the regulations thereunder) shall be delayed for a period of six months after the Participant’s separation from service (or, if earlier
than the end of the six-month period, the date of death of the Participant). In the event all-outstanding Awards are replaced in
connection with a Corporate Change by comparable types of awards of at least substantially equivalent value, as determined by the
Committee in its sole discretion, such replacement awards shall provide for automatic acceleration or waiver as provided above in the
event of a Participant’s involuntary termination of employment or service with the Company other than for Cause or voluntary
termination of employment or service for Good Reason, as applicable.

Section 13.2 Cancellation of Awards, Notwithstanding the foregoing, on or prior to the date of a Corporate Change, the
Committee may take any of the following actions with respect to any or all outstanding Awards, without the consent of any
Participant: (2) the Committee may require that Participants surrender their outstanding Options and SARs in exchange for payment
by the Company, in cash, Common Stock, the securities of another company, or a combination thereof, as determined by the

Committee, in an amount equal to the amount, if any, by which the then Fair Market Value of the shares of Common Stock subject to -

the Participant’s unexercised Options and SARs exceeds the exercise price or grant price, and (b) with respect to Participants holding
Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Awards or Other Incentive Awards, and related Cash Dividend Rights and
Dividend Unit Rights (if applicable), the Committee may determine that such Participants shall receive payment in settlement of such
Awards (and dividend rights), in an amount equivalent to the value of such Awards (and dividend rights) at the time of such
settlement. Such surrender or settlement shall take place as of the date of the Corporate Change or such other date as the Committee
may specify. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any Award that consists of deferred compensation within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code, in the event of a Corporate Change that does not satisfy the requirements for a change in the ownership or
effective control of Intervoice or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of Intervoice within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code and Treasury guidance and regulations thereunder, then delivery of payment with respect to such Award as
provided herein shall be made upon the earliest of the Participant’s (i) “separation from service” (within the meaning of Code Section
409A and the regulations thereunder), (ii) the Disability, (iii} death or (iv) a Corporate Change that does satisfy the requirements for a
change in the ownership or effective control of Intervoice or a change in the ownership of a substantial portion of the asscts of
Intervoice within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code and Treasury guidance and regulations thereunder; provided, however,
that delivery of payment upon separation from service to a Participant who is a “specified employee” (as defined in Code Section
409A and the regulations thereunder) as of the date of his or her separation from service shall be delayed for a period of six months
after the Participant’s separation from service (or, if earlier than the end of the six-month period, the date of death of the Participant).

ARTICLE XIV. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

Section 14.1 Plan Amendment and Termination. The Board may at any time suspend, terminate, amend or medify the Plan, in
whole or in part; provided, however, that no amendment or modification of the Plan shall become effective without the approval of
such amendment or modification by the holders of at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock if (a) such amendment or
modification increases the maximum number of shares subject to the Plan (except as provided in Article 1V) or changes the
designation or class of persons eligible to receive Awards under the Plan, or (b) counsel for Intervoice determines that such approval is
otherwise required by or necessary to comply with applicable law or the listing requirements of NASDAQ or such other exchange or
association on which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted. An amendment to the Plan shall not require stockholder approval if it
is made to conform the Plan to statutory or regulatory requirements, such as, without limitation, changes to Section 409A of the Code,
or regulations issued thereunder. Upon termination of the Plan, the terms and provisions of the Plan shall, notwithstanding such
termination, continue to apply to Awards granted prior to such termination. Except as otherwise provided herein, no suspension,
termination, amendment or modification of the Plan shall adversely affect in any material way any Award previously granted under
the Plan, without the consent of the Participant (or the Permitted Transferee) holding such Award.

Section 14.2 Award Amendment and_Cancellation. The Committee may amend the terms of any outstanding Award granted
pursuant to the Plan, but except as otherwise provided herein, no such amendment shall adversely affect in any material way the
Participant’s (or a Permitted Transferee’s) rights under an outstanding Award without the consent of the Participant (or the Permitted
Transferee) holding such Award.
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Section 14.3 Performance-Based Compensation. In the case of an outstanding Award intended to be eligible for the
performance-based compensation exemption under section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall not, without the approval of the
holders of at least a majority of the shares of Common Stock, amend the Plan or the Award in a manner that would adversely affect
the Award’s continued eligibility for the performance-based compensation exemption under section 162{m) of the Code.

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

Section 15.1 Award Agreements. After the Committee grants an Award under the Plan to a Participant, Intervoice and the
Participant shall enter inio an Award Agreement setting forth the terms, conditions, restrictions and limitations applicable to the
Award and such other matters as the Committee may determine to be appropriate. The Committee may permit or require a Participant
to defer receipt of the payment of cash or the delivery of shares of Common Stock that would otherwise be due to the Participant in
connection with any Award; provided, however, that any permitted deferrals shall be structured to meet the requirements of Section
409A of the Code and regulations thereunder, The terms and provisions of the respective Award Agreements need not be identical. All
Award Agreements shall be subject to the provisions of the Plan, and in the eveni of any conflict between an Award Agreement and
the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall govern. All Awards under the Plan are intended to be structured in a manner that will. either
comply with or be exempt from Section 409A of the Code.

Section 15.2 Listing; Suspension,

+

(a) As long as the Common Stock is listed on a national securities exchange or system sponsored by a national securities
association, the issuance of any shares of Common Stock pursuant to an Award shall be conditioned upon such shares being listed on
such exchange or system. Intervoice shall have no obligation to issue such shares unless and until such shares are so listed, and the
right to exercise any Option or other Award with respect to such shares shall be suspended until such listing has been effected.

(b) [f at any time counsel to Intervoice or its Affiliates shall be of the opinion that any sale or delivery of shares of Common Stock
pursuant to an Award is or may in the circumstances be unlawful or result in the imposition of excise taxes on Intervoice or its
Affiliates under the laws of any applicable jurisdiction, Intervoice or its Affiliates shall have no obligation to make such sale or
delivery, or to make any application or to effect or to maintain any qualification or registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or otherwise, with respect to shares of Common Stock or Awards, and the right to exercise any Option or other Award shall
be suspended until, in the opinion of such counsel, such sale or delivery shall be lawful or will not result in the 1mposmon of excise
taxes on Intervoice or its Affiliates,

(c) Upon termination of any period of suspension under this Section, any Award affected by such suspension that shall not then
have expired or terminated shall be reinstated as to all shares available before such suspension and as to shares that would otherwise
have become available during the period of such suspension, but no such suspension shall extend the term of any Award unless
otherwise determined by the Committee in its sole discretion,

Section 15.3 Additienal Conditions. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary: (a) the Committee may, if it shall
determine it necessary or desirable in its sole discretion, at the time of grant of any Award or the issbance of any shares of Common
Stock pursuant to any Award, require the recipient of the Award or such shares of Common Stock, as a condition to the receipt
thereof, to deliver to Intervoice a written representation of present intention to acquire the Award or such shares of Common Stock for
his own account for investment and not for distribution, (b) the certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to a Participant may
include any legend that the Committee deems appropriate to reflect any restrictions on transfer, and (c) all certificates for shares of
Common Stock delivered under the Plan shall be subject to such stop transfer orders and other restrictions as the Committee may
deem advisable under the rules, regulations and other requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any stock exchange
or association upon which the Common Stock is then listed or quoted, any applicable federal or state securities law, and any
applicable corporate law, and the Committee may cause a legend or legends to be placed on any such certificates to make appropriate
reference to such restrictions. .
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Section 15.4 Transferability.

(a) All Awards granted to a Panicipant shall be exercisable during his lifetime only by such Participant, or if applicable, a
Permitted Transferee as provided in subsection (c) of this Section; provided, however, that in the event of a Participant’s legal
incapacity, an Award may be exercised by his guardian or legal representative. When a Participant dies, the personal representative,
beneficiary, or other person entitled to succeed to the rights of the Participant may acquire the rights under an- Award. Any such
successor must furnish proof satisfactory to Intervoice of the successor’s entitlement to receive the rights under an Award under the
Participant’s will or under the applicable laws of descent and distribution.




(b) Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no Award shall be subject to execution, attachment or similar process, and no
Award may be sold, transferred, pledged, exchanged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of, other than by will or pursuant to the
applicable laws of descent and distribution. Any attempted sale, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecation or other disposition of an
Award not specifically permitted by the Plan or the Award Agreement shall be null and void and without effect.

(c) If provided in the Award Agreement, Nonqualified Stock Options may be transferred by a Participant to a Permitted
Transferee. For purposes of the Plan, “Permitted Transferee” means (i) a member of a Participant’s immediate family, (ii) any person
sharing the Participant’s household (other than a tenant or employee of the Participant), (iii) trusts in which a person listed in (i) or (ii)
above has more than 50% of the beneficial interest, (iv) a foundation in which the Participant or a person listed in (i) or (ii) above
controls the management of assets, (v) any other entity in which the Participant or a person listed in (i) or (ii) above owns more than
50% of the voting interests, provided that in the case of the preceding clauses (i) through (v), no consideration is provided for the
transfer, and (vi) any transferee permitted under applicable securities and tax laws as determined by counsel to Intervoice. In
determining whether a person is a “Permitted Transferee,” immediate family members shall include a Participant’s child, stepchild,
grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoptive relationships.

(d) Incident to a Participant’s divorce, the Participant may request that Intervoice agree to observe the terms of a domestic
refations order which may or may not be part of a qualified domestic relations order (as defined in Code Section 414(p)) with respect
to all or a part of one or more Awards made to the Participant under the Plan to the Participant’s alternate payee. Intervoice’s decision
regarding such a request shall be made by the Committee, in its sole and absolute discretion, based upon the best interests of
Intervoice. The Committee’s decision need not be uniform among Participants. As a condition of participation, a Participant agrees to
hald Intervoice harmless from any claim that may arise out of Intervoice’s observance of the terms of any such domestic relations
order.

Section 15.5 Withholding Taxes. The Company shall be entitled to deduct from any payment made under the Plan, regardless of
the form of such payment, the amount of all applicable income and employment taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to
such payment, may require the Participant to pay to the Company such withholding taxes prior to and as a condition of the making of
any payment or the issuance or delivery of any shares of Common Stock under the Plan, and shall be entitted to deduct from any other
compensation payable to the Participant any withholding obligations with respect to Awards. In accordance with any applicable
administrative guidelines it establishes, the Committee may allow a Participant to pay the amount of taxes required by law to be
withheld from or with respect to an Award by (a) withholding shares of Common Stock from any payment of Common Stock due as a
result of such Award, or (b) permitting the Participant to deliver to the Company previously acquired shares of Common Stock, in
each case having an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such required withholding taxes. No payment shall be made
and no shares of Common Stock shall be issued pursuant to any Award unless and until the applicable tax withholding obligations
haye been satisfied. |

Section 15.6 No Fractional Shares. No fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or
any Award granted hereunder, provided that the Committee in its sole discretion may round fractional shares down to the nearest
whole share or settle fractional shares in cash.

Section 15.7 Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given or made under the Plan or pursuant to any Award Agreement
(unless provided otherwise in such Award Agreement) shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made if (a)
delivered personally, (b) transmitted by first class registered or certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested,
(c) sent by prepaid overnight courier service, or (d) sent by telecopy or facsimile transmission, with confirmation receipt, to the person
who is to Teceive it at the address that such person has theretofore specified by written notice delivered in accordance herewith. Such
notices shall be effective (i) if delivered personally or sent by courier service, upon actual receipt by the intended recipient, (ii) if
mailed, upon the earlier of five days after deposit in the mail or the date of delivery as shown by the return receipt therefor, or (iii) if
sent by telecopy or facsimile transmission, when the answer back is received. Intervoice or a Participant may change, at any time and
from time to time, by written notice to the other, the address that it or such Participant had theretofore specified for receiving notices.
Until such address is changed in accordance herewith, notices hereunder or under an Award Agreement shall be delivered or sent (A)
to a Participant at his address as set forth in the records of the Company or (B) to Intervoice at the principal executive offices of
Intervoice clearly marked “Attention: General Counsel.”

Section 15.8 Compliance with Law and Stock Exchange or Association Requirements. In addition, it is the intent of
Intervoice that Options designated as Incentive Stock Options comply with the applicable provisions of Section 422 of the Code, and

that Awards intended to constitute “qualified performance-based awards” comply with the applicable provisions of Section 162(m) of
the Code, and that any deferral of the receipt of the payment of cash or the delivery of shares of Common Stock that the Committee
may permit gr require, and any Award granted that is subject to Section 409A of the Code, comply with the requirements of Section
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409A of the Code and regulations thereunder. To the extent that any legal requirement of Section 16 of the Exchange Act or Sections
422, 162(m) or 409A of the Code (or related regulations) as set forth in the Plan ceases to be required under Section 16 of the
Exchange Act or Sections 422, 162(m) or 409A of the Code, as applicable, that Plan provision shall cease to apply. Any provision of
this Plan to the contrary notwithstanding, the Committee may revoke any Award if it is contrary to law, governmental regulation, or
stock exchange or association requirements or modify an Award to bring it into compliance with any government regulation or stock
exchange or association requirements. The Committee may agree to limit its authority under this Section.

Section 15.9 Binding Effect. The obligations of Intervoice under the Plan shall be binding upon any successor corporation or
organization resulting from the merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Intervoice, or upon any successor corporation or
organization succeeding to all or substantially all of the assets and business of Intervoice. The terms and conditions of the Plan shall
be binding upon each Participant and his Permitted Transferees, heirs, legatees, distributees and legal representatives.

Section 15,10 Severability. If any provision of the Plan or any Award Agreement is held to be illegal or invalid for any reason,
the illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions of the Plan or such agreement, as the case may be, but such
provision shall be fully severable and the Plan or such agreement, as the case may be, shall be construed and enforced as if the illegal
or invalid provision had never been included herein or therein.

Section 15,11 No Restriction of Corporate Action. Nothing contained in the Plan shall be construed to prevent Intervoice or any
Affiliate from taking any corporate action (including any corporate action to suspend, terminate, amend or modify the Plan) that is
deemed by Interveice or such Affiliate to be appropriate or in its best interest, whether or not such action would have an adverse effect
on the Plan or any Awards made or to be made under the Plan. No Participant or other person shall have any claim against Intervoice
or any Affiliate as a result of such action.

Section 15.12 Governing Law. The Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws (and not the
principles relating to conflicts of laws) of the State of Texas except as superseded by applicable federal law.

Section 15.13 No Right, Title or Interest in Company Assets. No Participant shall have any rights as a stockholder of
Intervoice as a result of participation in the Plan until the date of issuance of Conmmon Stock in his name and, in the case of Restricted
Stock, unless and until such rights are granted to the Participant pursuant to the Plan. To the extent any person acquires a right to
receive payments from the Company under the Plan, such rights shall be no greater than the rights of an unsecured general creditor of
the Company, and such person shall not have any rights in or against any specific assets of the Company. All Awards shall be
unfunded.

Section 15.14 Risk of Participation. Nothing contained in the Plan shall be construed either as a guarantee by Intervoice or its
Affiliates, or their respective stockholders, directors, officers or employees, of the value of any assets of the Plan or as an agreement
by Intervoice or its Affiliates, or their respective stockholders, directors, officers or employees, to indemnify anyone for any losses,
damages, costs or expenses resulting from participation in the Plan.

Section 15.15 No_Guarantee of Tax Conseguences. No person connected with the Plan in any capacity, including without
limitation Intervoice and its Affiliates and their respective directors, officers, agents and employees, makes any representation,
commitment or guarantee that any tax treatment, including without limitation federal, state and local income, estate and gift tax
treatment, will be applicable with respect to any Awards or payments thereunder made to or for the benefit of a Participant under the
Plan or that such tax treatment will apply to or be available to a Participant on account of participation in the Plan.

Section 15.16 Continued Emplovment or Service. Nothing contained in the Plan or in any Award Agreement shall confer upon
any Participant the right to continue in the employ or service of the Company, or interfere in any way with the rights of the Company
to terminate a Participant’s employment or service at any time, with or without cause. The loss of existing or potential profit in
Awards will not constitute an element of damages in the event of termination of employment or service for any reason, even if the
termination is in violation of an obligation of Intervoice or an Affiliate to the Participant.

Section 15.17 Miscellaneous. Headings are given to the articles and sections of the Plan solely as a convenience to facilitate
reference. Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction of the Plan or any provisions hereof,
The use of the masculine gender shall also include within its meaning the feminine. Wherever the context of the Plan dictates, the use
of the singular shall also include within its meaning the plural, and vice versa.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, this 2007 Stock Incentive Plan has been executed as of the Effective Date.

INTERVOICE, INC.

By:

Name:

Title:
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